
 

 

 
Portfolio Holder Decisions/Leader 

Decisions 

 
Date:  Friday 12 February 2021 
Time:  12.00 pm 

 
Membership 
Councillor Peter Butlin 
Councillor Jeff Clarke 
 
Items on the agenda: -  
 

1.   Warwickshire cycling links: A package of infrastructure 
improvements 
 

3 - 10 

2.   Residential Rehabilitation and Inpatient Detoxification 
Commissioning 
 

11 - 18 

3.   Warwick Variation 6 TRO 
 

19 - 258 

Monica Fogarty 
Chief Executive 

Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall, Warwick 

 



 

Portfolio Holder 
Decisions/Leader Decisions 
Friday 12 February 2021 

Page 2 
  

 

 

 
Disclaimers 
 

Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of 
their election of appointment to the Council. A member attending a meeting where a matter 
arises in which s/he has a disclosable pecuniary interest must (unless s/he has a 
dispensation):  
 
• Declare the interest if s/he has not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Must leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting  
 
Non-pecuniary interests must still be declared in accordance with the Code of Conduct. 
These should be declared at the commencement of the meeting 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web  
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1 
 

Public Speaking 
Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of 
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter 
within the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If 
you wish to speak please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days 
before the meeting. You should give your name and address and the subject upon which 
you wish to speak. Full details of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s 
Standing Orders.  
 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

1 

Portfolio Holder Decision   
Warwickshire cycling links: A package of 

infrastructure improvements 
 
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance and 

Property 

Date of decision 12 February 2021 

 

Signed 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Decision taken 
That the Deputy Leader of the Council approves the addition of five cycling schemes into 
the capital programme, funded by S106 Agreement contributions to a combined value of 
£747,334. The five schemes are: 

1. Weddington Road, Nuneaton. Funding received £210,694 
2. Radford Road, Leamington Spa, Funding received £95,074 
3. Daventry Road, Southam. Funding received £150,000 
4. Whitley South, Baginton. Funding received £150,000 
5. Heathcote, Leamington Spa. Funding received £141,566 

 

 
 

Reasons for decisions 

 
The County Council has secured and received funding through S106 Agreements to 
deliver five cycling infrastructure schemes. Approval is now required from the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance and Property to add these schemes to the capital programme funded 
by the S106 contributions to progress the development and delivery of identified 
schemes.  

 

 
 

Background information 

 

In July 2020, the Government published ‘Gear change: a bold vision for cycling and 
walking’ plan, which set out its vision and aims for the future of cycling. 

 
The Council’s Cycling Strategy aims to increase cycling in Warwickshire by improving the 
safety and quality of the cycling environment. The funding allocations outlined in this 

Page 3

Page 1 of 4 Agenda Item 1



 

2 

report will progress the delivery of safe off-road cycling routes which will enable more 
people to complete everyday journeys by cycle. 

 
S106 Agreement funding has been received towards the costs of delivering the cycling 
infrastructure schemes listed in table 1 which will link new development with town 
centres, rail stations and employment/education centres, and will also deliver key missing 
links within Warwickshire’s urban cycle networks. 
 
The developer contributions are ring-fenced for walking and cycling infrastructure 
improvements. The funding will be used to progress development and delivery of 
identified cycle schemes.   
 

Table 1: S106 Contributions received for the development of off-site walking and 
cycling infrastructure improvements. 

 

Location Value 

Weddington Road, Nuneaton £210,694 

Radford Road, Leamington Spa £95,074 

Daventry Road, Southam £150,000 

Whitley South – Baginton £150,000 

Heathcote, Leamington Spa £141,566 
 

 

 
 

Financial implications 
 

The S106 contributions listed in table 1 have been received by the County Council and 
need to be allocated to appropriate capital budgets. This requires that the schemes are 
added to the capital programme which will also enable the development and delivery of 
schemes to progress.  
 
There is a risk that as scheme design work progresses, additional unexpected costs will 
emerge which exceed the available funding. To overcome this issue all cost estimates will 
include a suitable contingency allowance for the stage of design. Should the contingency 
be insufficient to meet the increased costs the Cycle Schemes Project Board will decide 
whether to seek additional funding to deliver the scheme or to descope the project to 
meet the available budget.  

 

Monitoring of the capital project costs will be reported as part of the quarterly financial 
monitoring report to Cabinet. 
 

 
 

Environmental implications 

Environmental implications  
 

Transport is the single largest cause of carbon emissions in the UK. The cycle schemes 
detailed in this report will provide infrastructure which will enable more journeys to be 
made by cycling, thereby contributing to reduced carbon emissions as well as lower 

Page 4

Page 2 of 4



 

2 

levels of congestion and improved air quality.  
 

 

Timescales associated with the decision and next steps 

Timescales associated with the decision and next steps 
 

Approving the addition of these schemes to the capital programme will enable scheme 
development and delivery to progress. This will include working towards the 
establishment of a delivery programme. The new cycling schemes identified within this 
report will be entered onto the Capital Programme and a corresponding finance code 
established.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Report Author Daniel Morris 
danielmorris@warwickshire.gov.uk,  

Assistant Director Assistant Director for Communities 
davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Lead Director Strategic Director for Communities 
markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Lead Member Portfolio Holder for Finance and Property 
 
 

Urgent matter? No 

Confidential or exempt? No 

Is the decision contrary to the 
budget and policy 
framework? 

No 

 
 

List of background papers 
N/A 

 
 

Members and officers consulted and informed 

Portfolio Holder – Councillor Butlin 
 
Corporate Board – N/A 
 
Legal – Ian Marriott 
 
Finance – Caroline Jones 
 
Equality – Keira Rounsly 

Page 5

Page 3 of 4



 

2 

 
Democratic Services – Isabelle Moorhouse 
 
Councillors – Cllr Adkins, Cllr Crump, Cllr Kondakor, Cllr Redford and Cllr Birdi. 
 
Local Member(s): Cllr Adkins, Cllr Crump, Cllr Kondakor, Cllr Redford and Cllr 
Birdi 

 
 

Page 6

Page 4 of 4



 

 

Portfolio Holder Decision – Residential 
Rehabilitation and Inpatient Detoxification 

Commissioning 
 
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Finance and 

Property 

Date of decision 12 February 2021 

 

Signed 
 
 

 
Decision taken 
 

That the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Property approves: 
 

 The recommissioning and procurement of a Residential Rehabilitation and 
Detoxification Framework.  

 

 That the Framework covers a period of 3 years with option to extend for periods of 
up to 36 months years thereafter.  

 

 That Coventry City Council lead the recommissioning and procurement process on 
behalf of themselves and Warwickshire County Council. 

 

 
 

Reasons for decisions 
 

Due to the overall financial level associated with commissioning the service, approval 
from the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Property is required. 
 

 
 
 

Background information 

 
Drug and alcohol support services can be broken down into the following tiers as outlined 
in Table one: 
 
Table one - Overview of Tiers of provision for drug and alcohol services: 
 

Tier 1 Universal provision i.e. Police, Housing, Primary Care and Education 
 

Page 7

Page 1 of 3 Agenda Item 2



 

 

Tier 2 Low threshold substance misuse specialist interventions i.e. drop-in 
centres, harm reduction and needle/ equipment exchange. 
 

Tier 3 Care planned interventions including substitute prescribing, 
psychodynamic interventions and recovery support. 
 

Tier 4 Residential rehabilitation and inpatient detox interventions which provide 
medically monitored / managed detox, accommodation, support and 
rehabilitation to service users with complex alcohol and/or drug misuse 
issues.   

 
Within Warwickshire, Tier 2 and Tier 3 provision is currently provided by Change Grow 
Live (CGL) – the current commissioned adult drug and alcohol treatment provider.  
 
Tier 4 provision includes residential rehabilitation and inpatient detoxification with access 
to these services targeted at the following priority groups: 
 

 Those with co-occurring mental health and substance misuse needs 

 Repeat users of multiple health and social care services  

 Victims of domestic abuse or childhood abuse and therefore likely to have      
significant psychological / emotional problems linked to their substance misuse 

 Prolific and priority offenders 
 
Individuals referred for Tier 4 treatment will already have accessed the community 
options and failed to successfully complete them or have been assessed as not suitable 
for community options.   
 
Currently there is a Joint Framework Agreement in place for the provision for residential 
rehabilitation across Coventry, Warwickshire and Leicestershire, with Leicestershire 
County Council (LCC) operating as the lead commissioning organisation for this. This 
Framework commenced in April 2018 and will expire in December 2021. There is a 
separate Warwickshire County Council (WCC) Framework in place for inpatient 
detoxification which will also expire in December 2021. 
 
WCC has the opportunity to develop a new Tier 4 Framework for both residential 
rehabilitation and inpatient detoxification jointly with Coventry City Council (CCC), where 
CCC will operate as the lead commissioning organisation. LCC intend to develop their 
own standalone Framework. 
 
It is proposed that the new Framework will have a 3-year initial term, with a single 3-year 
option to extend, and as both Frameworks for residential rehabilitation and inpatient 
detoxification will end on 31st December 2021, the re- procurement arrangements need to 
be agreed to ensure procurement timescales can be met and service provision will be in 
place for the 1st January 2022.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

Page 2 of 3



 

 

Financial implications 
 
The annual budget for Tier 4 Residential Rehabilitation and Inpatient Detoxification 
provision for WCC for is £305,000. The budget for the Framework will be met within 
existing financial resources. 
  

 
 

Environmental implications 
 
None identified. 
 

 
 
 

Report Author Lead Commissioner for Vulnerable People – 
Rachel Jackson 

Assistant Director Assistant Director Strategy and Commissioning – 
Becky Hale 

Lead Director Strategic Director for People – Nigel Minns 

Lead Member Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care & Health – 
Councillor Les Caborn 

 
 

Urgent matter? No 

Confidential or exempt? Exempt 

Is the decision contrary to the 
budget and policy 
framework? 

No 

 
 

List of background papers 
There are no background papers included 
 

 
 

Members and officers consulted and informed 

Portfolio Holder – Councillor Caborn 
Strategic Director for People – Nigel Minns 
Director of Public Health – Shade Agboola 
Assistant Director Strategy and Commissioning – Becky Hale 
Category Specialist, Strategic Procurement – Heather Boyd 
Finance - Accountant – Elaine Lister 
Democratic Services – Helen Barnsley 
Legal – Corporate and Commercial Solicitor – Katherine Lyons 
 

 

Page 9

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Portfolio Holder Decision – Warwick 
Variation 6 TRO 

 
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Transport and 

Planning 

Date of decision 12 February 2021 

 

Signed 
 
 

 
Decision taken 
 
That the Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning approves that the proposed Warwickshire 
County Council (District of Warwick) (Permitted Parking Area and Special Parking Area) (Waiting 
Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation 6) 
Order 2021 be implemented as advertised with the exception of the proposals relating to the 
following locations: 
 
Chapel Street 
Clinton Lane 
Emscote Road 
Rugby Road. 
 
 

 

Reasons for decisions 

Copies of plans detailing proposals for waiting restrictions can be found as Appendix B.  

No objections were received to the following proposals: 

1. Binswood Street 

2. Birmingham Road 

3. Broxell Close 

4. Culworth Close 

5. New Brook Street 

6. Newbold Terrace 

7. Percy Terrace 

8. Tower Street 

9. Upper Grove Street 

10. Wise Street 

Objections and comments were received to the following proposals: 

1. Binswood Avenue 

2. Castle Close 

3. Chapel Street 

4. Charter Approach 

5. Clinton Lane 

6. Cross Road 

7. Emscote Road 

8. Farley Street Page 11

Page 1 of 34 Agenda Item 3



 

 

 
 

9. Fernhill Drive 

10. Gas Street 

11. Greville Road 

12. Heathcote Road 

13. Kingsway 

14. Montgomery Road 

15. Myton Gardens 

16. Newbold Terrace East 

17. Old Milverton Road 

18. Othello Avenue 

19. Radford Road 

20. Reeve Drive 

21. Rugby Road 

22. Spring Pool 

23. St Micheals Road 

24. Stratford Road 

25. Trinity Street 

26. Wedgnock Green 

27. Wharf Street 

28. William Street 

The following tables detail the objections and comments received together with the officers’ 
responses. 

 

Page 12

Page 2 of 34



 

 

1. Binswood Avenue – Residents Parking bays 

 
1.1. It is proposed to extend the existing limited waiting bays with L1 exemption on the south side of 

Binswood Avenue on to the north side outside 1-25 Binswood Avenue. This will preserve or 

improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

 

1.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 2 

Total comments 5 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A 

No problem with additional parking bays being marked on the north side of 
Binswood Avenue.  It will probably help avoid confusion which would-be 
parkers suffer from at the moment as the parking regulations are different 
on each side of the road. 

1 

B 

it would be better to leave the yellow lines at the end of the cul de sac so 
that people who have driven to the end of the road, expecting a way 
through, are able to turn round safely and easily.  There is already very 
little space for them to do so. 

1 

C 

Thank you for notice of changes to parking in Binswood Avenue. 
We live at 16 Newbold Court and will obviously be affected by these 
changes and look forward to your confirmation that we will be issued with 
a residents parking permit 

1 

D 
Visitors to the properties along this street often struggle to find parking 
slots because of visitors/commuters to Leamington Town Centre.  

1 

E 
extended bays would narrow the street, which would make it more 
dangerous for daily school use 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A Supports proposals 

B 
It is thought that the space left for turning would be used for parking. Binswood Avenue is 
signed as No Through Road so road users should not expect a way through. Vacant 
parking spaces may be used to turn vehicles around. 

C 
No objection. Parking permits are available on request in the normal way via the Council’s 
website. 

D 

All visitors would be subject to a 2-hour limit, so there will turnover of parking places for 
re-use by other road users. As part of the residents parking schemes within Warwickshire, 
residents are also permitted to register visitors’ vehicles on their permit system which 
would allow them to park within the required zone. 

E 

The proposed parking bays replicate the existing pattern of parking, which leaves 
adequate space between vehicles on the north and south sides of the road to manoeuvre. 
Due to areas of planting in the carriageway, some proposed bays are to be marked longer 
than regular bays, but these will be used as normal by one vehicle at a time. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 Page 13

Page 3 of 34



 

 

 

2. Castle Close – No Waiting at any Time 

 
2.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the south and west sides of 

Castle Close Road, outside 2-23, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

2.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 2 

Total comments 12 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Support 8 

B 
Object: Should be Single Yellow Lines, operational for 4 hours on 
both sides, weekdays, no footway parking, except residents and 
carers, deliveries etc. 

1 

C Support & ask for 2 hour waiting limit where DYLs not proposed 2 

L 
Object: this will increase parking pressures for a visiting carer or 
relative or even a tradesman. Could the council provide an 
exemption for carers to park on double yellows. 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A Supports proposals 

B 
Single Yellow Line restrictions would apply to all vehicles including visitors and 
residents. Deliveries and all loading/unloading would not be restricted by the proposals. 

C A 2 hour waiting limit would apply to residents and carers 

D 

We don’t provide exemption for carers to park on double yellow lines, Carers will have 
alternative parking available in the surrounding streets. This also applies to relatives 
and tradesman who wish to gain access into Castle Close. Deliveries and all 
loading/unloading would not be restricted by the proposals. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 14

Page 4 of 34



 

 

3. Chapel Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 

 
3.1. It is proposed to extend the section of limited waiting bays with L6 exemption on the north side 

of Chapel Street. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the 

road runs. 

3.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 3 

Total comments 0 

 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A/B 
The purpose of these proposals was to provide parking within the L6 zone and as such they 
would benefit the wider area rather than solely the residents of Regency Mews. 

C 
Whilst it is acknowledged that parked cars could reduce the visibility of potential hazards at 
this location, observing proper road safety guidance these risks can be mitigated. 

D 
The total length of the proposed parking bay would only permit a small number of cars to 
park along Chapel Street therefore the increase in noise generated would likely be 
negligible. 

E 
These proposals were requested by a resident with concerns for pressure within the L6 
parking zone as a whole. 

 

Recommendations 

Due to the lack of support received it is recommended that these proposals are withdrawn 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they will be 
forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A 
Parking outside Regency Mews will adversely affect the aesthetics of 
the street, lowering the appeal of the properties. 

2 

B 
Additional parking is not required as there is sufficient parking for the 
nearby properties. 

3 

C 
Parking in this location will reduce the safety of the road by obscuring 
risks. 

2 

D 
An increase in parking would lead to an increase in noise and 
disturbance for the nearby residents. 

2 

E 
The proposals were consulted upon 4 years ago and nothing has 
changed since 

1 

 

Page 15

Page 5 of 34



 

 

4. Charter Approach – No Waiting at any Time 

 
4.1. A request was received to extend the existing Double Yellow Lines from the West Street 

junction to the end of the bollards outside no. 3 and introduce Double Yellow Lines at the 

junction outside no. 38 & no.25-27, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic.  

4.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Total comments 1 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A 

The problem has now been moved further into Charter Approach 
with cars parking either side of the road just beyond the bollards 
starting outside of number 4 & 5. I strongly suggest that additional 
bollards are installed outside 4 & 5 Charter Approach to prevent 
cars parking there straddling the pavement and road. This will 
then help ensure that cars only park on one side of the road at 
this choke point allowing better access for vehicles that need to 
reach the end of Charter Approach. 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A 
The bollards and proposed Double Yellow Lines are to protect the junction of the three 
arms of Charter Approach. Further physical or legal restrictions would reduce the 
amount of parking available to residents and visitors. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 16

Page 6 of 34



 

 

 

5. Clinton Lane – No Waiting at any Time 

 
5.1. It is proposed to introduce new, and to extend existing, no waiting at any time restrictions on the 

east and west sides of Clinton Lane, between the junctions with Castle Green and Beehive Hill, 

thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

5.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 42 

Total comments 61 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A 
Lack of adequate parking places for residents outside their 
properties or reasonably close as a result of the proposals. 

42 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A 
The majority of 61 responses were objections (42), only 7 responses supporting the 
proposals in some way and 15 other comments, including suggesting alternative 
proposals such as HGV bans and resident parking bays.  

 

Recommendations 

Due to the amount of correspondence objecting to this scheme it is recommended that these 
proposals are withdrawn. 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 17

Page 7 of 34



 

 

6. Cross Road – Double Yellow Lines 

 
6.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the junctions along the length of 

Cross Road acting as junction protection at and between the junctions with Guy’s Cliffe Road 

and Oswald Road, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic.  

6.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 3 

Total comments 6 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A 

to ask that the Council try first with single yellow lines for the 
Percy Terrace/ Cross Road junction. The current situation is 
dangerous and commuter parking on Cross Road means that 
often the bin lorries can’t get through.  However, there is no 
alternative parking, and I hope that starting with single lines on 
this particular junction - Percy Terrace is the widest of the roads - 
will enable us to get used to the restrictions which I agree are 
necessary, particularly in the working week.  Double yellow at all 
junctions [would lead] to radical reduction of residents’ parking 
particularly at weekends 

1 

B 

[Support] request is the double yellow line is extended along 
Cross Road [on the south side between Guy’s Cliffe Road & 
Gunnery Terrace] as cars park next to the entrance between 8 
Cross Road and Pyper’s Cottage making it very difficult to come 
out of the entrance to the back of the properties and car parking. 
The cars park illegally and make it dangerous to exit as visibility 
and the turning circle is significantly reduced 

1 

C Support 1 

D 

Support but also add proposed DYLs to the most important part of 
the “chicane”, the corner on the north east side of the junction 
between Gunnery Terrace and Cross Road to the front of number 
13. This is where parking causes most problems both to residents 
and to delivery vehicles (especial the poor refuse collectors) 

1 

E 

the double yellow lines stretch further into the streets (in places) 
than I would deem necessary and would limit parking spaces that 
I wouldn’t deem dangerous e.g. to the door of number 9 Cross 
Road where you would not have any visual benefit turning onto 
Guys Cliffe Avenue and vice versa. We would support the 
application if parking could be guaranteed for the residents of the 
area (e.g. via area pay / display or Residents permits) and the 
yellow lines are limited to an area where they would have true 
benefit to road users. 

 

F 
Object: Currently road markings north of the Oswald Road 
junction restricts parking for 4 meters which is perfectly adequate 
and should be mirrored in a southerly direction 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A 
Single Yellow Lines would only prohibit parking at junctions for signed hours. The 
obstruction of junctions and hazards to road users would remain outside signed hours. 

B/C Support proposals 

D Support proposals. The effects of the restrictions will be monitored, and it will be Page 18

Page 8 of 34



 

 

determined if further restrictions are justified. 

E 

The restrictions have been designed to prevent obstruction of the carriageway by 
parked vehicles as well as to improve sight lines between road users. A residents 
parking scheme is not included in this proposal and in any case would not guarantee 
parking spaces for all residents. 

F 

The restrictions have been designed to prevent obstruction of the carriageway for 
refuse vehicles by parked vehicles. A clear distance of 10.0m is commonly 
recommended at junctions, but this proposal requires only 8.0m at the south of the 
Oswald Road junction. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 19

Page 9 of 34



 

 

7. Emscote Road, Warwick – Proposed Limited Waiting / Residents’ Parking Restrictions 

 
7.1. It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with W3 permit exemptions on the north side 

Emscote Road, between Ilex Court and Broad Street, this will preserve and improve the 

amenities of the local area through which the road runs.  

7.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 3 

Additional comments 5 

Support in principle received 1 

 

 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

Due to the lack of public support it is recommended that these proposals are withdrawn. 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

Ref Comments received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 
It was pointed out that only one of the laybys on the south side of 
the road is shown on the plan, there are 3 in total, 2 are missing 
from the plan. 

2 

B 
There is confusion as to whether all laybys on both sides of the 
road are included as part of the restriction advertised. 

2 

C 
If only north side is considered for the restrictions, then the south 
side is expected to be overwhelmed. 

3 

D 
With the proposed restrictions, East of Ilex Court's already 
existing issues will be exacerbated, so they would like the same 
restrictions applied on Ilex Court. 

2 

E 
Details on which house numbers will get resident's parking 
permits or how the scheme will be operated are missing. 

2 

F Support Received for proposal.  1 

Ref Officer Comments in Response to Comments 

A The laybys on the south side are unrestricted and will not be affected by the proposals 

B The proposals were for restrictions in the laybys on the north side of the road only 

C 
Whilst it is acknowledged that restrictions here will put additional pressure on the 
unrestricted sections, properties on the south side  have large off-street parking places 
and it was felt that we didn’t need to make any alterations on this side.  

D 
Ilex Court is not eligible for a residents parking scheme as the majority of the residences 
have off street parking available. 

E 
If these proposals are introduced, then the properties that are eligible will be contacted 
and the process will be explained 

F No comment necessary 

 

Page 20

Page 10 of 34



 

 

8. Farley Street and Plymouth Place– No Waiting at any Time 

 
8.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the north and south sides of the 

junction of Plymouth Place and Farley Street. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and 

ensuring free flow of traffic. 

8.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 3 

Additional comments 6 

Support in principle received 0 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 Officer Comments in Response to Comments 

A/D/F 

It is acknowledged that these restrictions could put additional pressure on the parking 
situation around Plymouth Place, however these proposals were created as a balance 
between the needs of the residents and the needs of other road users As a 
consequence the overall capacity of the road will be reduced to prevent dangerous 
parking near the junction 

B/E 

To introduce a residents parking scheme solely along Plymouth Place would move the 
parking issues to the surrounding streets, thereby exacerbating the situation in the area 
as a whole, any residents parking scheme that is proposed would require double yellow 
lines to be installed along one side of the road in order to maintain a suitable road width 
whilst still providing spaces for residents. 

C 
Additional restrictions can be consulted upon in a subsequent variation or as part of a 
larger scheme. 

Ref Comments received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 
This would add to the existing parking issues in the areas of 
Radford Road/ Farley Street/ Plymouth Place, because of multiple 
occupancy houses.  

1 

B 
Changes should only be implemented along with a parking permit 
system/scheme for the entire road or be replaced entirely by a 
resident parking scheme.  

3 

C 
Russell Terrace/Farley Street Jct. was discussed at the sit-down 
meeting with the councillors as that was the jct. with accident 
occurrences.  

1 

D 
Residents will no longer be able to park outside their own 
property. 

2 

E 
Parking permit system introduced at Russell Terrace has 
introduced further issues for Plymouth Place & Farley Street.  

1 

F 
Over past years the area has become a popular parking choice 
for minibuses, taxis and commercial vehicles, the proposed 
restriction would only exacerbate existing issues.  

2 

 

Page 21

Page 11 of 34



 

 

9. Fernhill Drive+ No Waiting at any Time 

 
9.1. It is proposed to introduce new, and to extend existing, no waiting at any time restrictions on the 

north east, south east, and south west sides of Fernhill Drive, thereby avoiding danger to 

persons or traffic 

9.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 2 

Additional comments 8 

Support in principle received 2 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

Ref Comments received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 
There are no double yellows proposed across dropped crossings, 
people park on them; vulnerable persons not able to cross safely. 

7 

B 
Changes should only be implemented along with a parking permit 
system/scheme for the entire road. 

3 

C 
The current proposal would add to the existing difficulties driving 
up/down the Drive 

2 

D 
Changes should only be implemented if done along the entire 
length of the road as residents have ample off-street parking.  

1 

E 
It is implied that parking issues around the area are because of 
the nearby school and leisure centre. 

2 

F 
Suggestions for double yellows to cover both sides of both sharp 
bends. 

3 

G 
Sharp bend at the top of Fernhill Drive has parked cars 
obstructing visibility of the jct with Upper Holly Walk. 

3 

H 
Areas that are not restricted by double yellows will see an 
increase in cars parking outside residents’ properties  

3 

I Support Received for proposal 2 

 Officer Comments in Response to Comments 

A 

These restrictions were proposed to prevent dangerous parking along Fernhill Drive 
whilst balancing the needs of road users and the nearby businesses. Including further 
restrictions at this location would require re-consultation with relevant interested parties. 
These restrictions can be consulted upon at a later date. 

B 
A residents parking scheme would not be appropriate for Fernhill Drive as a majority of 
the properties have access to off street parking spaces. 

C/F/G 
The double yellow lines were proposed in locations where parking would cause an 
obstruction to traffic. Whilst these proposals would still permit vehicles to park along 
Fernhill Drive, they would only permit it where it is safe to do so. 

D/H 
These proposals were created as a balance between the needs of the residents and the 
needs of other road users. As a consequence, these proposals will still permit vehicles 
to park in suitable locations whilst preventing dangerous parking elsewhere. 

E 
The restrictions are being introduced due to a combination of local issues which include 
the school and Leisure Centre. 

I No comment necessary 

Page 22

Page 12 of 34



 

 

 

10. Gas Street, Priory Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption+ No Waiting at 

any Time 

 
10.1. It is proposed to introduce residents parking schemes on Gas Street and Priory Street. 

Sections of no waiting at any time restrictions along the length of Gas Street and Priory Street 

will avoid danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic.  

10.2 The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer     

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Additional comments 1 

Support in principle received 2 

 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

Ref Comments received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A Parking restrictions are welcome by residents. 2 

B Option 4 was put forward by one of the residents 1 

Ref Officer Comments in Response to Comments 

A No comment necessary. 

B 
An informal consultation was undertaken by the local County Councillor for an extension 
to the residents parking zone. A number of options were presented to the residents and 
these proposals received popular support. 

 

Page 23

Page 13 of 34



 

 

11. Greville Road, Warwick – Proposed No Waiting at Any Time Restrictions 

 
11.1. It is proposed to extend the no waiting at any time restrictions on the east and west sides of 

Greville Road, north of its junction with Dickins Road, thereby avoiding danger to persons or 

traffic. 

11.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Additional comments 1 

Support in principle received 1 

 

 

Ref Officer Comments in Response to Comments 

A 
These proposals were for the removal of the disabled badge holders only bay along 
Greville Road and replacing them with double yellow lines. Further extensions to the 
double yellow lines can be considered as part of a subsequent variation. 

B No comment necessary. 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

Ref Comments received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 
Proposed Double yellows should be extended further on the East 
side of the road and existing lines between no. 92-98 should be 
removed.   

1 

B Support Received for disabled bay to be removed.  1 

 

Page 24

Page 14 of 34



 

 

12. Heathcote Road, Whitnash – Proposed No Waiting at Any Time Restrictions 

 
12.1. It is proposed to extend existing no waiting at any time restrictions on Heathcote Road 

connecting restrictions on the north side, and extending south side restrictions up to and a 

short distance into Avon Street, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring the 

free flow of traffic.  

12.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 3 

Additional comments 5 

Support in principle received 1 

 

Ref Objections received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 
It is Avon Road residents who are concerned about the many 
Heathcote Road residents who do not have driveways and will be 
forced to use Avon Road to park.  

4 

B 
Avon Road is already experiencing issues with Heathcote Road 
residents parking near the jct. the restriction would made things 
more difficult. 

3 

C 
Heathcote Road resident is objecting as he doesn’t have a 
driveway and is disabled and reliant on carers and other medical 
staff. 

1 

D 
Double yellows should not run very close to the shops area as this 
would drive more traffic and further parking issues on Avon Road. 

1 

E 
Residents are requesting that the double yellows should be 
accompanied by resident parking permits for both Avon Road and 
Heathcote Road. 

3 

F Support Received for part of proposal + note D 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments in Response to Objections 

A/B/D 

It is acknowledged that these restrictions could put additional pressure on the parking 
situation around Avon Road, however these proposals were created as a balance 
between the needs of the residents and the needs of other road users As a 
consequence the overall capacity of the road will be reduced to prevent dangerous 
parking near the junction. 

C 

We don’t provide exemption for carers to park on double yellow lines, Carers will have 
alternative parking available in the surrounding streets. A vehicle that is displaying a 
valid Disabled Persons Blue Badge is able to park on double yellow lines for up to 3 
hours. 

E 
A residents parking scheme here is not appropriate as a majority of the properties have 
access to off street parking places 

F No comment necessary. 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 25

Page 15 of 34



 

 

13. Monarch Gardens / Kingsway, Leamington Spa – Proposed No Waiting at Any Time 

Restrictions 

 
13.1.  It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the east and west sides of 

Monarch Gardens extending into Kingsway, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

13.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Additional comments 1 

Support in principle received 1 

 

Ref Objections received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 

Resident is requesting that the double yellows extend along 
Kingsway up to jct. with Queensway. Traffic queueing at the jct., 
parked vans and HGVs make it difficult for emergency services to 
access Monarch Gardens. 

1 

B Support Received for proposal. 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments in Response to Objections 

A 
These restrictions were proposed to balance the needs of the residents, nearby 
businesses and other road users. Extending the restrictions up to the junction would 
likely move the parking into less suitable areas. 

B No comment necessary. 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 26

Page 16 of 34



 

 

14. Montgomery Road / Tachbrook Road, Leamington Spa – Proposed No Waiting at Any Time 

Restrictions 

 
14.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the on the north and south 

sides on the junction of Montgomery Road extending into Tachbrook Road, avoiding danger 

to persons or traffic.  

14.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 3 

Additional comments 3 

Support in principle received 0 

 

Ref Objections received 

Total number of 
responses 

containing the 
comment  

A 
Concerns that with the double yellows many residents from the 
area would have no other option for parking 

2 

B 
Resident is objecting by implying that the 18m restriction is too 
small and should be extended due to people parking too close to 
the jct., it is pointed out that cyclists are at risk of being hit. 

1 

C 
Objections to installing the double lines and complaints that the 
residents are harassing people who park legally on the street.  

2 

 

Ref Officer Comments in Response to Objections 

A/B/C 

These proposals were created as a balance between the needs of the residents and the 
needs of other road users As a consequence the overall capacity of the road will be 
reduced by approximately 2 car spaces to prevent dangerous parking near the junction 
and give safe access/egress to motorists using Montgomery Road, there are no further 
plans to introduce further restrictions at this time. 

 

Officers’ Recommendation 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 27

Page 17 of 34



 

 

15. Myton Gardens – No Waiting Mon-Fri 8am-6pm 

 
15.1. A request was received to introduce a No Waiting restriction along Myton Gardens to prevent 

vehicles belonging to students of the nearby school from parking along Myton Gardens, 

presenting difficulties for the residents. 

  

15.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Total comments 9 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Agree with the proposals 9 

B Consider resident exemptions to single yellow line 1 

C 
Consider extending the restrictions to include Saturday and 
Sunday 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary. 

B 
It is against the Warwickshire County Council parking policy to permit vehicles to wait in 
areas of No Waiting unless there are specific reasons to do so. 

C 
An extension of the restrictions to include Saturday and Sunday could be considered, 
however this would likely create a detrimental impact on the residents as this would also 
prevent visitors from parking nearby. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised. 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

 

Page 28

Page 18 of 34



 

 

16. Newbold Terrace East – No Waiting at any Time 

 
16.1 It is proposed to introduce sections of no waiting at any time restrictions on the south side of Newbold   

 Terrace East in order to create passing points for traffic, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

 

16.2 The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 
recommendations. 

 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 1 

Total comments 8 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A Will make parking even more difficult for residents 1 

B There are not enough spaces along the road 1 

C Consider using double yellow lines to protect the crossing points 4 

D Request to extend the double yellows further from the traffic lights 2 

E 
Proposed 20 metre passing place should be extended to 40 metre 
passing place 

1 

F 
Request that more resident parking bays are installed along Newbold 
Terrace East 

2 

G Support the proposals 2 

H 
Request that the double yellow lines are extended a further 20 metres 
towards the leisure centre 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A/B 

It is acknowledged that these restrictions could put additional pressure on the parking 
situation around Newbold Terrace East, however these proposals were created as a 
balance between the needs of the residents and the needs of other road users As a 
consequence the overall capacity of the road will be reduced to prevent dangerous 
parking near the junction. 

C/F 
Including further restrictions at this location would require re-consultation with relevant 
interested parties. These restrictions can be consulted upon at a later date. 

D/E/H 
These proposals were created as a balance between the needs of the residents and the 
needs of other road users. As a consequence, these proposals will still permit vehicles 
to park in suitable locations whilst preventing dangerous parking elsewhere 

G No comment necessary 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 29

Page 19 of 34



 

 

17. Old Milverton Road – No Waiting at any Time 

 
17.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions along the east side of Old 

Milverton Road outside of Vauxhall Drive, replacing the existing restrictions, thereby avoiding 

danger to persons and traffic.  

17.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 1 

Total comments 0 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A 

Residents comment 
”Queuing traffic is more likely to happen given the new position the 
Council is suggesting that the car transporters are likely to be due to the 
restrictions” 

1 

B Request extending the yellow lines from Goodfellow Street. 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A 
These parking restrictions were proposed to allow the car dealership to load/unload 
their transporter (a short-term action by its nature) on Milverton Road rather than on the 
Rugby Road which is a major route into and out of Leamington. 

B 
The existing restrictions at the junction of Old Milverton Road and Goodfellow Street are 
sufficient to allow safe egress and access from Goodfellow Street. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 30

Page 20 of 34



 

 

18. Othello Avenue – No Waiting at any Time 

 
18.1. It is proposed to introduce sections of no waiting at any time restrictions for junctions and 

central island features for the length of Othello Avenue. Thereby avoiding danger to persons 

or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic.  

18.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 1 

Total comments 13 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A Support the proposals 6 

B 
Reduce Othello Avenue, between Portia Way and Banquo Approach, to 
single lane with priority to south-bound traffic. 

1 

C Request that double yellow lines are installed opposite T-junctions 1 

D Request ‘No Hospital Parking’ along Othello Avenue 1 

E 
Double yellow lines will only move the problem into the surrounding 
streets 

1 

F Request double yellow lines in Costard Avenue 1 

G Request double yellow lines further along Othello Avenue 6 

H Residents permit parking would work better to solve the issue 1 

I Request a 20mph speed limit 1 

J Double yellow lines will not solve the issue 2 

K Object to the proposals 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B 
This suggestion is outside the scope of works for parking issues and would require a 
feasibility study to be done with the likely outcome being that the benefit would be 
negligible compared to the cost of reducing the road width. 

C/E/F/ 
G/H/J 

It is acknowledged that these restrictions could put additional pressure on the parking 
situation around Othello Avenue, however these proposals were created as a balance 
between the needs of the residents and the needs of other road users. 

D 
‘No Hospital Parking’ is not a legally enforceable restriction and as such cannot be 
introduced or enforced by Warwickshire County Council. 

I This suggestion is outside the scope of works for parking issues. 

K No comment necessary 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 31

Page 21 of 34



 

 

19. Southam Road, Radford Semele – No Waiting at any Time 

 
19.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the north and south sides of 

the Southam Road junctions with Church Lane and School Lane. Thereby avoiding danger to 

persons or traffic, and ensuring free flow of traffic 

19.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 1 

Total comments 0 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A 
Object to the proposals as it would prevent reversing onto the drive by 
not allowing a vehicle to wait for a gap in traffic 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A 
These proposals will not prevent a vehicle from waiting for a gap in traffic to access a 
driveway 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 32

Page 22 of 34



 

 

20. Reeve Drive, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

 
20.1. It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction on the south side of 

Reeve Drive and introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the northern side, in a 

southward’s direction. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of 

traffic.  

20.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Total comments 3 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A Would reduce the amount of parking available to residents 1 

B 
Parked cars do not adversely affect the free flow of traffic due to the 
traffic calming feature further along the road 

1 

C Double yellow lines would not be an improvement to safety 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A/B/C 

It is acknowledged that these restrictions could put additional pressure on the parking 
situation around Reeve Drive, however these proposals were created as a balance 
between the needs of the residents and the needs of other road users. By preventing 
cars from parking in this location it would allow a better view of the road from the 
junction to the traffic calming feature meaning that there will be fewer confrontations 
between vehicles from opposite directions. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 33

Page 23 of 34



 

 

21. Rugby Road, Leamington Spa – No Waiting at any Time 

 
21.1. It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction along the south side of 

Rugby Road in a westward direction. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and 

ensuring free flow of traffic.  

21.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 10 

Total comments 1 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total 
number of 
responses 
containing 
the 
comment  

A Removing parked cars would increase traffic speeds 1 

B There are already major parking problems for residents in the area 3 

C The proposals will push the problem to less suitable areas 2 

D There are no advantages to these proposals 3 

E Will increase the parking pressure on the local area 3 

F Support the proposals 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A 
These proposals will not significantly increase vehicle speeds because the total number 
of parked cars that will be removed is only one. 

B/C/E 
It is acknowledged that these restrictions could put minimal additional pressure on  
parking on Rugby Road, however these proposals were created as a balance between 
the needs of the residents and the needs of other road users. 

D 
These restrictions would have the advantage of giving the residents on the south side of 
Rugby Road a clearer view of the traffic travelling out of Leamington. 

F No comment necessary 

 

Recommendations 

Due to the lack of support, it is recommended that these proposals are withdrawn. 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 34

Page 24 of 34



 

 

22. Spring Pool – Double Yellow Lines/Limited Waiting and Residents Permit Exemptions 

 
22.1. It is proposed to introduce a residents parking scheme on Spring Pool, sections of no waiting at 

any time restrictions along the length of Spring Pool, and limited waiting bays with W2 permit 

exemptions along sections of Spring Pool. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic, and 

ensuring the free flow of traffic  

22.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Total comments 6 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Fully support 6 

B 
The proposals significantly reduce the amount of the road 
available for parking 

1 

C The proposals don’t cover the private off-street parking 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B 

It is acknowledged that these restrictions would reduce the availability of on street 
parking along Spring Pool, however these proposals were created as a balance 
between creating parking spaces and providing a clear path for vehicles, in particular 
refuse vehicles. 

C 

These proposals are for the sections of the public highway only, Warwickshire County 
Council cannot govern parking on private areas. If vehicles were to park across the off-
street parking areas, then they would be causing an obstruction and can be considered 
to be causing an obstruction which is enforceable by the police.  

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised but the implementation is 
delayed until the parking situation returns to a regime similar to that before COVID-19 
restrictions. 

 

 
 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

Page 35

Page 25 of 34



 

 

23. St Michael`s Road-Double Yellow Lines 

 
23.1. It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restrictions on St Michael`s Road in a 

westerly direction up to the disabled bays. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and 

ensuring free flow of traffic. 

23.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 0 

Total comments 4 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Support the proposals 4 

B Request traffic calming features 1 

C Request a residents parking scheme 1 

D Request regular enforcement 1 

E Request that the informal bay remains unchanged 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B This type of work is outside the scope of parking restrictions 

C 

A residents parking scheme would not be appropriate for St Michaels Road as the 
majority of properties have access to off street parking. Additionally, any residents 
parking scheme that is proposed would require double yellow lines to be installed along 
one side of the road in order to maintain a suitable road width whilst still providing 
spaces for residents.  

D 
All parking restrictions within Warwickshire are enforced proportionally to their location 
and the observed compliance with the restrictions. 

E The disabled bay will remain unchanged by these proposals. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 36

Page 26 of 34



 

 

24. Stratford Road, Stratford Road Service Road, Shakespeare Avenue, Alders Grove, Foxes 

Way, Fishers Court-No Waiting at any time 

 
24.1. It is proposed to introduce double yellow lines on the junctions of Stratford Road, Stratford Road 

Service Road, Shakespeare Avenue, Alders Grove, Foxes Way and Fishers Court. Thereby 

avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

24.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 2 

Total comments 4 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Object to the proposals 1 

B Request a speed camera 1 

C Request double yellow lines along the whole of Stratford Road 1 

D Support the proposals 2 

E Request double yellow lines on both sides of Alders Grove 2 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B This type of work is outside the scope of parking restrictions 

C/E 

These proposals were created to balance the parking needs of the local area with the 
safety implications associated with parked cars. If parking was to be prevented in its 
entirety in this location then the parked cars, along with the safety implications, could 
potentially be moved to less suitable areas. 

D No comment necessary 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 37

Page 27 of 34



 

 

25. Trinity Street-No Waiting at anytime 

 
25.1.  It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restrictions on the south side, thereby 

avoiding danger to persons or traffic, and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

25.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 2 

Total comments 4 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Support the proposals 2 

B Objection 2 

C Will increase the parking pressure on the local area 2 

D Request residents parking along Trinity Street 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B No comment necessary 

C 

It is acknowledged that these proposals could increase the pressure on the available of 
on street parking however these proposals were created as a balance between the 
needs of the residents and the needs of other road users. As a consequence, the 
overall capacity of the road will be reduced to prevent dangerous parking. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 38

Page 28 of 34



 

 

26. Wedgnock Green, Oken Road, Cape Road, Deerpark Drive, Newburgh Crescent-No Waiting at 

any Time, and Wedgnock Road -Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemptions. 

 
26.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions for the extents of the junction of 

Wedgnock Green and introduce limited waiting bays with W7 exemptions for sections of 

Wedgnock Green. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the 

road runs and thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

26.2. An informal consultation was undertaken in 2019 where a majority of residents asked were in 

favour of a residents parking scheme in the area 

26.3. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 5 

Total comments 23 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A 
Concerned that the proposals will increase vehicle speeds along 
Newburgh Crescent. 

4 

B Request traffic calming features along Newburgh Crescent 3 

C 
Request permit parking along Newburgh Crescent similar to 
Deerpark Drive 

2 

D Request visitors permits 1 

E 
The number of controlled bays along Wedgnock Green does not 
seem sufficient and request more 

2 

F Request No Waiting at any Time along Cape Road 1 

G Introduction of parking restrictions will move the problems 1 

H Residents are being penalised for issues caused by other drivers 4 

I The proposals limit the number of available parking spaces 1 

J 
These proposals will prohibit the loading of vehicles from the 
house 

1 

K 
These proposals will prohibit elderly people from accessing their 
cars 

1 

L Support the proposals 14 

M Object to the proposals 5 

N Allow permit parking along the footway of Cape Road 1 

O 
Request that the double yellow lines are single yellow lines along 
Newburgh Crescent 

1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A/B 

It is acknowledged that vehicle speeds could increase as a result of parked vehicles 
being removed from the road, however due to the narrow nature of the road, this 
effect is expected to be low and as such traffic calming features would not be 
considered appropriate in this location. 

C/E/N/O 

These proposals were created to maximise the amount of parking available to the 
residents whilst also balancing the needs of the wider area together with the safety 
aspects that are associated with parked cars. As such permit parking has only been 
permitted where it is safe and reasonable to do so. 

D 
As part of the residents parking schemes within Warwickshire, residents are also 
permitted to register visitors’ vehicles on their permit system which would allow them 
to park within the required zone 

F The No Waiting at any Time restrictions extend along Cape Road as far as was 
Page 39

Page 29 of 34



 

 

considered necessary for this scheme. To introduce further restrictions along Cape 
Road would require re-consultation. 

G 
It is acknowledged that these proposals could move the parking issues to other areas, 
however the majority of the surrounding area already has parking controls therefore 
the detrimental effect would be minimal. 

H/I 

It is acknowledged that these proposals could increase the pressure on the availability 
of on street parking, particularly for the residents, however these proposals were 
created as a balance between the needs of the residents, the needs of other road 
users and the safety implications associated with parked cars. As a consequence, the 
overall capacity of the road will be reduced to prevent dangerous parking. 

J/K 
Double yellow lines will not prohibit the loading and unloading of goods or the setting 
down and picking up of passengers. 

L/M No comment necessary 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised but the implementation is 
delayed until the parking situation returns to a regime similar to that before COVID-19 
restrictions. 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 40

Page 30 of 34



 

 

27. Wharf Street- No Waiting at any Time 

 
27.1. It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the east and west sides of Wharf 

Street thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic, and ensuring free flow of traffic  

27.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 5 

Total comments 10 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Support the proposals 3 

B Request that the double yellow lines extend further 4 

C Request that the double yellow lines are single yellow lines 1 

D 
The restrictions will move the parking issues further down Wharf 
Street 

7 

E Object to the proposals 6 

F Request a residents parking scheme 2 

G Removal of cars would increase vehicle speeds 2 

H Allowing parking opposite driveways would cause access issues 2 

I Restrictions will be useless unless they are enforced 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B/D 

These proposals were created to balance the parking needs of the local area with the 
safety implications associated with parked cars. If parking was to be prevented in its 
entirety in this location then the parked cars, along with the safety implications, could 
potentially be moved to less suitable areas. 

C 
A single yellow line would not be appropriate at this location because the parking would 
not be considered appropriate at any time of the day. 

E No comment necessary 

F 
A residents parking scheme would not be appropriate for this location as a majority of 
houses in the area have access to off street parking. 

G 
It is acknowledged that removal of parked cars could potentially increase the vehicle 
speeds along Wharf Street, it is anticipated that this effect will be low due to the 
narrowing of the road at the railway bridge. 

H 

The proposals for Wharf Street prevent parking on both sides of the road for their 
extents. Whilst it is acknowledged that these proposals could potentially move parking 
further along the road, outside the extents the responsibility lies with the driver of the 
vehicle to park in a safe and reasonable manner.  

I 
All restrictions in Warwickshire are enforced proportionally to their location and the 
compliance observed. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 41

Page 31 of 34



 

 

28. William Street – Limited Waiting and Resident Permit Exemption 

 
28.1. It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with L4 exemption on the unrestricted sections of 

William Street. This will preserve and improve the amenities of the local area through which the 

road runs.  

28.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with the officer 

recommendations. 

Emails/letters 

Total objections 1 

Total comments 6 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 

Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Support the proposals 4 

B Request extending the L4 zone and providing more bays 3 

C Object to the proposals 1 

D Parking is already difficult for businesses 1 

E Request business permits 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 

A No comment necessary 

B/D 
These proposals were created as a balance between the needs of the residents and the 
needs of nearby businesses. Whilst they will primarily be for the benefit of the local 
residents, they will also promote a regular turnover of parking for the nearby residents. 

C No comment necessary 

E 
Business permits are not considered appropriate as they would be used for long-term 
parking where short-term parking would be more beneficial. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that these proposals are approved as advertised 

 

Members Comments 

No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received, they 
will be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 

 

Page 42

Page 32 of 34



 

 

 

Background information 

 Proposals for waiting restrictions at various locations were advertised and consulted upon 
in accordance with statutory procedure on the 5th March 2020, with consultation open until 
the 30th June 2020. 

 The statutory criteria for decisions on making Traffic Regulation Orders are included as 
Appendix A. 

 Drawings showing published proposals for waiting restrictions are found in Appendix B. 

 A copy of the published Statement of Reasons for each scheme are found in Appendix C. 

 Copies of objections and comments received are available as background information in 
Appendix D. 

 
 

Financial implications 
 
All work will be carried out within the existing 2021/22 CPE budget allocations. 
 

 
 

Environmental implications 
 
It is anticipated that the presence of waiting restrictions would not have a significant adverse 
effect on air quality, with no predicted increase in traffic volumes or noise levels as a result of the 
schemes. 
 

 
 

Report Author Graham Stanley 
grahamstanley@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Assistant Director Scot Tompkins, Assistant Director for Communities 

Lead Director Mark Ryder, Strategic Director for Communities 

Lead Member Jeff Clarke, Portfolio Holder for Transport and 
Planning 

 
 

Urgent matter? Yes 

Confidential or exempt? No 

Is the decision contrary to the 
budget and policy 
framework? 

No 

 
 

List of background papers 
 
Letters and email objections along with large scale plans that can be produced if required. 
 

 
 

Members and officers consulted and informed 

Portfolio Holder – Councillor Jeff Clarke 
 
Corporate Board – Mark Ryder 

Page 43

Page 33 of 34



 

 

 
Legal – Ian Marriott 
 
Finance – Andrew Felton 
 
Equality – 
 
Democratic Services – Helen Barnsley 
 
Councillors – 
 
Local Member(s): 

 
 

Page 44

Page 34 of 34



 A1 of 2  
 

Appendix A  
 

Statutory Criteria for Decisions on Making Traffic  
Regulation Orders and Parking Orders 

 

The Warwickshire County Council (District of Warwick) 
(Permitted Parking Area and Special Parking Area) (Waiting 

Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places and Residents’ 
Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation 6) Order 2021. 

 
1. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 enables the Council to implement Traffic 

Regulation Orders (TROs) for one or more of the following purposes:- 
 

(i) avoiding danger to persons or traffic; 
(ii) preventing damage to the road or to buildings nearby; 
(iii) facilitating the passage of traffic; 
(iv) preventing use by unsuitable traffic; 
(v) preserving the character of a road especially suitable for walking and 

horse riding; 
(vi) preserving or improving amenities of the area through which the road 

runs; 
(vii) for any of the purposes specified in Section 87(1)(a) to (c) of the 

Environment Act 1995 in relation to air quality. 
 
2. TROs are designed to regulate, restrict or prohibit the use of a road or any part 

of the width of a road by vehicular traffic or pedestrians.  Permanent TROs 
remain in force until superseded or revoked.  

 
3. TROs must not have the effect of preventing pedestrian access at any time, or 

preventing vehicular access for more than 8 hours in 24, to premises on or 
adjacent to the road.  This restriction does not apply if the Council states in the 
order that it requires vehicular access to be limited for more than 8 hours in 24.  

 
4. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 also enables the Council to make orders 

authorising the use of part of a road as a parking place without charge, for the 
purpose of preventing or relieving congestion, and enables the Council to make 
orders designating parking places on highways with a charge.  In determining 
what parking places are to be designated, the Council shall consider both the 
interests of traffic, and those of the owners/occupiers of adjoining property and 
in particular:- 

 
(I) The need for maintaining the free movement of traffic; 
(ii) The need for maintaining reasonable access to premises; and 
(iii) The extent to which off-street parking is available in the neighbourhood.   

 
5. In deciding whether or not to make any order, the Council is required to have 

regard to the matters set out in section 122 of the 1984 Act.  Section 122(1) 
requires the Council to exercise the functions conferred on it by the 1984 Act as 
(so far as practicable, having regard to the matters specified in Section 122(2)) 

Page 45

Page 1 of 2Page 1 of 2



 A2 of 2  
 

to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other 
traffic (including pedestrians), and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway.   

 
6. The matters to which the Council must have regard are:- 
 

(i) The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to 
premises; 

(ii) The effect on the amenities of any locality affected, and the importance of 
regulating and restricting the use of roads by heavy commercial vehicles 
so as to preserve or improve the amenities of the areas through which the 
roads run; 

(iii) The national air quality strategy prepared under Section 80 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1995; 

(iv) The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and 
of securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to 
use such vehicles; 

(v) Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant 
 

7. Therefore, whilst the overall objective of the Council must be to secure the 
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular traffic, this will 
sometimes need to give way to the objectives in Section 122(2), and a balance 
has to be achieved between the overall objective and the matters set out in 
Section 122(2). 

 

Page 46

Page 2 of 2



7

6

2

3

2

1

1

2

5

6
2

.
2

m

1
3

2
6

3
8

3

1
4

1

 
t
o

 
1

6

N
e

w
b

o
l
d

 
C

o
u

r
t

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

B
I
N

S
W

O
O

D
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

P
A

R
K

I
N

G
 
B

A
Y

 
M

A
R

K
I
N

G

R
O

'
C

J
R

7
 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

1

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
B
i
n
s
w

o
o
d
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
\
B
i
n
s
w

o
o
d
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
 
R
P
S
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 47

Page 1 of 42Page 1 of 42



1
6
0

1
5
0

1
6
3

1
5
7

1
7
3

1
7
5

12

32

6
1
.
6
m

1
6
4

7

4

22

10

6

1
9

16

8

B
IN

S
W

O
O

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

2

14

18 2
0

1
6
7

C
R

6

3

2

1

1
4

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

B
I
N

S
W

O
O

D
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
I
S

A
B

L
E

D
 
B

A
Y

 
R

E
M

O
V

A
L

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

2

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
B
i
n
s
w

o
o
d
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
B
i
n
s
w

o
o
d
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
D

i
s
a
b
l
e
d
 
B
a
y
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 48

Page 2 of 42



1

0

1

S
t
a

b
l
e

s

M
P

M
P

C
o
t
t
a
g
e

ROAD

T
o

w
 
P

a
t
h

C
h

a
p

e
l

1

0

7

B
i
r
m

i
n

g
h

a
m

R
o

a
d

 
B

r
i
d

g
e

R
o
s
e

S
p
r
i
n
g

S
a

l
t
i
s
f
o

r
d

 
C

o
m

m
o

n

M
P

5
8

.
5

m

5
8

.
5

m

C
a

r
 
P

a
r
k

C
h

a
p

e
l

S
a
l
t
i
s
f
o
r
d
 
A

r
m

M
P

M
P

W

E

D

G

N

O

C

K

 

L

A

N

E

C
o
t
t
a
g
e
s

L
B

M
P

3

8

1

2

C

C

1

1

6

0

1

0

9

1

2

9

18

6

2

0

1

1
2

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

4

6

5

7

9

6

0

.

4

m

1

0

7

a

2

5

L
o

d
g

e

5

8

1

4

7

1

4

1

W
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
G

R
O

V
E

1

9

1
0

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

1

3

9

6

7

1

5

1

1

7

1
4

1
9

1

0

9

a

E

A

S

T

L

E

Y

2

1

1

6

4

1

7

1

2

5

5

1

1
9

1

2

1

24

1

4

5

1

5

5

Wedgnock Lane

A

4

2

5

A

4

2

5

B

i

r

m

i

n

g

h

a

m

 

R

o

a

d

H

a

y

w

o

o

d

 

R

o

a

d

H

a

y

w

o

o

d

 
R

o

a

d

B

i

r

m

i

n

g

h

a

m

 

R

o

a

d

A

4

2

5

1

4

7

1

4

1

2

1

5

5

A

4

2

5

A

4

2

5

H

a

y

w

o

o

d

 

R

o

a

d

B

i

r

m

i

n

g

h

a

m

 

R

o

a

d

TS
-639

R
em

arks

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

W
idth

H
eight

A
rea

"x" height

FA
C

E
 &

 P
O

S
T D

E
TA

ILS

B
ackground

B
order

Lettering

S
ym

bol

B
acking B

oard

C
olours

P
ost type and length

M
ounting height

P
lanting depth

Foundation details

Illum
ination/R

eflectorisation

2100m
m

750m
m

300m
m

 Ø
 x 600m

m
 (exc. 150m

m
 cover)

1N
o. (60.3m

m
 Ø

 x3.0m
m

 C
H

S
)

3025m
m

 overall length

-

4 N
o. D

iag. 639
4 N

o. P
osts

- -- ---- ---

639

0.04m
2

yellow

black

black

red/blue

-

260m
m

175m
m

20m
m

--- - ---

N
ot illum

inated/
B

S
 E

N
 12899-1 C

lass 2 reflectorised (H
igh Intensity)

- --

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a

w
n

 
b

y

D
a

t
e

S
c
a

l
e

 
(
I
n

s
e

t
)

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 
b

y

D
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
R
o
a
d
\
B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
R
o
a
d
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

1
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k

s
h

i
r
e

.
g

o
v

.
u

k

m
a

i
l
t
o

:
c

o
m

m
u

n
i
t
i
e

s
@

w
a

r
w

i
c

k
s

h
i
r
e

.
g

o
v

.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

N

N

S
c
a

l
e

 
-
 
1

:
2

0
0

0

S
u

p
p

l
y
 
a

n
d

 
e

r
e

c
t
 
n

e
w

 
s
i
g

n
s
 
r
e

f
.
 
T

S
-
6

3
9

@
2

1
0

0
m

m
 
o

n
 
n

e
w

 
p

o
s
t
s
 
i
n

 
v
e

r
g

e

M
a

i
n

t
a

i
n

 
4

5
0

m
m

 
m

i
n

i
m

u
m

 
c
l
e

a
r
a

n
c
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
C

W
 
e

d
g

e

S
u

p
p

l
y
 
a

n
d

 
e

r
e

c
t
 
n

e
w

 
s
i
g

n
s
 
r
e

f
.
 
T

S
-
6

3
9

@
2

1
0

0
m

m
 
o

n
 
n

e
w

 
p

o
s
t
s
,
 
b

a
c
k
 
o

f
 
F

W

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s
t
r
i
c
t
i
o

n
s

A
4
2
5
 
B

i
r
m

i
n

g
h

a
m

 
R

o
a
d

S
i
g

n
i
n

g
 
I
n

s
t
r
u

c
t
i
o

n
s

W
a
r
w

i
c
k

P
M

J
R

2
8

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
1
0
0
0
 
@

 
A

3
_
L

T
R

\
1
1
1
2
4
 
-
 
0
4

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

Page 49

Page 3 of 42



1

0

1

M
P

R
O

A
D

T
o
w

 
P

a
t
h

C
h
a
p
e
l

1

0

7

B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

R
o
a
d
 
B

r
i
d
g
e

S
p
r
i
n
g

5
8
.
5
m

C
h
a
p
e
l

M
P

C
o
t
t
a
g
e
s

L
B

B

U

D

B

R

O

O

K

E

G
P

1

1

6

0

1

0

9

1

2

9

L
Y

S
T

E
R

 
C

L
O

S
E

18

7

6

2

0

1

4

4

1
2

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

4

6

5

7

9

6

0

.

4

m

1

0

7

a

2

5

L
o
d
g
e

5

8

1

4

7

3

6

1

2

1

4

1

W
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
G

R
O

V
E

1

9

1
0

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

1

3

9

6

7

1

5

5

6

1

1

7

1
4

1
9

1

0

9

a

E

A

S

T

L

E

Y

2

1

1

6

4

1

7

1

2

5

5

1

1
9

1

2

1

2
4

1

4

1

5

1

5

5

A

4

2

5

B

i

r

m

i

n

g

h

a

m

 

R

o

a

d

H

a

y

w

o

o

d

 

R

o

a

d

B

i

r

m

i

n

g

h

a

m

 

R

o

a

d

A

4

2

5

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

A
4

2
5

 
B

i
r
m

i
n

g
h

a
m

 
r
o

a
d

W
a

r
w

i
c

k

P
M

J
R

2
8

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
1

0
0

0
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

3

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
R
o
a
d
\
B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
R
o
a
d
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

P
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
S

t
a
n
k
s
 
C

o
r
r
i
d
o
r
 
i
m

p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n
t
 
s
c
h
e
m

e

P
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
S

t
a
n
k
s
 
C

o
r
r
i
d
o
r
 
i
m

p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n
t
 
s
c
h
e
m

e

P
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
S

t
a
n
k
s
 
C

o
r
r
i
d
o
r
 
i
m

p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n
t
 
s
c
h
e
m

e

P
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
S

t
a
n
k
s
 
C

o
r
r
i
d
o
r
 
i
m

p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n
t
 
s
c
h
e
m

e

P
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
S

t
a
n
k
s
 
C

o
r
r
i
d
o
r
 
i
m

p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n
t
 
s
c
h
e
m

e

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

e
x
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
5
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

S
i
n
g
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
M

o
n
 
-
 
F

r
i
,
 
1
1
a
m

 
-
 
2
p
m

)

e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

Page 50

Page 4 of 42



5
8
.
8
m

W
e
d
g
n
o
c
k

P
a
r
k

B
r
i
d
g
e

2

7

B

R

O

X

E

L

L

 

C

L

O

S

E

6
1
.
9
m

W

E

D

G

N

O

C

K

 
L

A

N

E

C
A

P
E

 
R

O
A

D

1
5
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

B
r
o

x
e

l
l
 
c

l
o

s
e

W
a

r
w

i
c

k

P
M

J
R

2
9

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
5

0
0

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

4

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
B
r
o
x
e
l
l
 
C
l
o
s
e
\
B
r
o
x
e
l
l
 
C
l
o
s
e
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

Page 51

Page 5 of 42



7

5

8

1

6

4

2

5

2

4

3

3

7

7

2

3

2

1

1

9

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

8

2

C

A

S

T

L

E

 

L

A

N

E

C

A

S

T

L

E

 

C

L

O

S

E

3

4

4

1

1

1

3

6

2

9

1

6

5

6

2

8

9

4

7

1

8

P
r
e

s
b

y

(

P

H

)

4

5

1

3

7

2

2

5

6

4

4

6

3

1

4

3

6

1

 

t

o

 

4

1

6

I
m

m
a

c
u

l
a

t
e

5

5

W

h

e

a

t

s

h

e

a

f

1

6

a

3

0

 

t

o

 

3

4

H

o

t

e

l

7

3

1

a

2

2

t

o

C
h

u
r
c
h

 
o

f

T
h

e
 
C

a
t
h

o
l
i
c

S
t
 
M

a
r
y

2

2

W

E

S

T

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

S
o

c
i
a

l

W

e

s

t

 

E

n

d

 

C

o

u

r

t

C
e

n
t
r
e

2

8

5
4

.
3

m

L

a

m

b

e

r

t

 

C

o

u

r

t

1

2

7

1

3

3

5

4

5

0

1

1

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

C
A

S
T

L
E

 
C

L
O

S
E

W
A

R
W

I
C

K

D
Y

L
 
M

A
R

K
I
N

G

R
O

'
C

J
R

6
 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

5

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
C
a
s
t
l
e
 
C
l
o
s
e
\
C
a
s
t
l
e
 
C
l
o
s
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 52

Page 6 of 42



1
a

3

4

G

E

O

R

G

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

C
a

r
 
P

a
r
k

1

9

4

9

1
1

2
6

1
6

2
0

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
TR

E
E

T

2

4

P

A

C

K

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
P

L

A

C

E

P
W

2

2

1
5

1
6

S

T

R

E

E

T

2

9

 

t

o

 

3

3

E
l
 
S

u
b
 
S

t
a

3
2

8

3
0

C
H

A
P

E
L

1

 
t
o

 
5

6

 
t
o

 
1

1

1

4

 
t
o

 
2

0

1

2

2

1

 
t
o

 
2

4

2

5

R
E

G
E

N
T

 
P

L
A

C
E

5
1

.
8

m

5
0

.
3

m

1
0

1
4

2
4

1

1
8

1

1

7

a

1

7

2

3

3

6
a

1
2

2

7

2
2

2
8

C
h

a
p

e
l
 
C

r
o

s
s

1
 
t
o

 
1

1

H
a

l
l

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

C
H

A
P

E
L

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

P
A

R
K

I
N

G
 
B

A
Y

 
E

X
T

E
N

S
I
O

N

R
O

'
C

J
R

6
 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

6

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
C
h
a
p
e
l
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
C
h
a
p
e
l
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
B
a
y
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 53

Page 7 of 42



W

E

S

T

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

V
i
n

e
 
I
n

n

2

3

1

4

1

7

6

6

1

0

5

7

6

a

1

6

(
P

H
)

C

H

A

R

T

E

R

 

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

6

4

S

T

U

A

R

T

 

C

L

O

S

E

2

6

3

8

H
o

t
e

l

G
a

r
a

g
e

7

5

L

o

w

e

r

 

F

r

i

a

r

s

2

3

9

0

1

4

1

8

5

7

0

8

1

6

4

9

1

7

6

2

6

2

4

7

8

5

1

2

4

2

8

7

7

4

9

7

1

0

9

1

1

1

Q

U

E

E

N

'

S

 

S

Q

U

A

R

E

1

0

3

9

4

2

1

9

2

1

6

6

7

4

T

a

n

n

e

r

s

 

C

o

u

r

t

y

a

r

d

9

3

8

2

1

2

1

0

3

8

9

7

7

9

2

1

7

2

7

6

2

(

P

H

)

1

C

H

A

R

T

E

R

 

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

2

9

2

8

1

1

1

b

9

3

7

5

6

6

3

3
7

Q

U

E

E

N

'

S

 

S

Q

U

A

R

E

3

2

5

5

5

W

h

e

a

t

s

h

e

a

f

H

o

t

e

l

7

3

1

a

7

1

5

4

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

C
H

A
R

T
E

R
 
A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H

W
A

R
W

I
C

K

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
6

 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

7

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
C
h
a
r
t
e
r
 
A
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
\
C
h
a
r
t
e
r
 
A
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 54

Page 8 of 42



5

9

C

L

I
N

T

O

N

 
L

A

N

E

2

1

0

1

8

0

1

6

5

I
s
s
u

e
s

C
h
a
s
e
f
i
e
l
d

1

5

5

8
2

.
6

m

1
7
7

8
2

.
6

m

1

9

1

2
0
3

1
9
8

1

5

9

8
2

.
9

m

1
8
8

1

5

1

135

1

6

6

1

3

7

1

3

9

1

5

1

a

L
B

8
2

.
0

m

1

5

3

1

6

8

1

5

5

8
2

.
6

m

1

5

9

8

4

1
0
8

10

4

16

120

132

CLINTON LANE

8
2

.
9

m

125

1 17

9

7

43

1

0

9

8
2

.
3

m

1
2
a

7

9

6

1

0

7

4
1

9

3

8

9

15

1
9

2
1

2
1
a

2
3

2
0

1
2

2

1
9

1
4

1
3

9

8

7

6

L
B

T
C

B

2
5

1

C
a

s
t
l
e

 
G

r
e

e
n

8
7

.
8

m

8
7

.
8

m

2
a

2

a

3

3
4

5

8
6

.
0

m

1

3

7

6

0

t
o

 
5

3

5

0

4

5

7
0

3

2
4

C

L

I
N

T

O

N

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

5
2

6
1

4

7

7

2

5

5

1

T
h

e
 
O

l
d

W
o
r
k
s
h
o

p

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

C
L

I
N

T
O

N
 
L

A
N

E

K
E

N
I
L

W
O

R
T

H

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
4

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

8

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
C
l
i
n
t
o
n
 
L
a
n
e
\
C
l
i
n
t
o
n
 
L
a
n
e
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 55

Page 9 of 42



1

2

2

4

4

1

a

C

R

O

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

2

3

8

6

2

1

L
B

9

1

8

T

h

e

 

C

e

d

a

r

s

6
3

.
7

m

6

4

2

3

6

O

S

W

A

L

D

 

R

O

A

D

P

e

n

d

i

n

e

 

C

o

u

r

t

1

1

9

T
h

e

t

o

4

6

1

5

1

4

2

a

7

M
e

w
s

t

o

3

5

4

C
e

d
a

r
s

6

T
h
e

C
o

a
c
h

H
o

u
s
e

E
m

s
c
o

t
e

H
o

u
s
e

S
c
h

o
o

l

3

4

5

1

8

6

C

O

R

N

W

A

L

L

 

P

L

A

C

E

7

2

L
B

9

6
5

.
5

m

3

1

8

3

3

1

9

1

6

1

3

G

U

N

N

E

R

Y

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

R

U

G

B

Y

 

R

O

A

D

1

2

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

i

a

l

 

C

e

n

t

r

e

2

1

7

3

C

L

I

F

F

E

 

R

O

A

D

9

1

8

1

1

1

7

6

1

1

P

y

p

e

r

'
s

3

a

C

R

O

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

G

u

n

n

e

r

y

 

H

o

u

s

e

2

1

4

1

0

G

U

Y

'

S

1

3

1

9

9

C

r

o

s

s

 

R

o

a

d

4

8

6

1

7

5

2

7

4

1

7

4

6
1

.
1

m

4

T
C

B

3

1

8

5

4

8

1

7

2

8

P

E

R

C

Y

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

1

4

1

2

1

5

T

u

s

c

a

n

y

 

H

o

u

s

e

9

a

1

a

1

5

1

 

t

o

 

9

2
7

2
5

3
1

1

1

3

0

2

1

7

1

7

2

1

O

S

W

A

L

D

 

R

O

A

D

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

C
R

O
S

S
 
R

O
A

D

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
0

9

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
C
r
o
s
s
 
R
o
a
d
\
C
r
o
s
s
 
R
o
a
d
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 56

Page 10 of 42



5
6

1

8

C
o
u
r
t

5
0

C
u
l
w

o
r
t
h

C
u
lw

o
r
th

57

1

9

H
o
u
s
e

6

4
4

3

2

2

22

1
1

2

209

4
6

1

1
6

6
8
.
0
m

1
0

1
2

2

39

1

5

1
5

B

R

A

K

E

S

M

E

A

D

W
I
N

D
M

I
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

1

3

2
6

B
O

N
N

I
K

S
E

N
 
C

L
O

S
E

2

2

C
U

L
W

O
R

T
H

 
C

L
O

S
E

1

0

8

1
4

L

O

C

K

H

E

E

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

4
8

31

1

11

4
5

32

1
5

1
1

1
7

1

40

1
4

1

8

2

3

3
8

C

U

L

W

O

R

T

H

 

C

L

O

S

E

199

6

6
7
.
7
m

1
7

1

W
ard Bdy

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

C
U

L
W

O
R

T
H

 
C

L
O

S
E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

S
I
G

N
 
R

E
M

O
V

A
L

E
B

J
R

3
 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

0

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
C
u
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
C
l
o
s
e
\
C
U

L
W

O
R
T
H

 
P
A
R
K
I
N

G
 
B
A
Y
 
A
N

D
 
S
I
G

N
S
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 57

Page 11 of 42



L
B

7

9

8

4

0

B

A

S

A

N

T

 

C

L

O

S

E

2
1

a

2

1

2

1

W

H

A

R

F

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

6

6

5

1

0

1

1

2

0

4

5

1

6

4

a

1

4

 

t

o

 

2

0

1
9

1

4

E

M

S

C

O

T

E

 
R

O

A

D

I
L

E

X

 
C

O

U

R

T

8
1

1

4

a

4

3

4

4

1

7

M

E

A

D

O

W

 

R

O

A

D

3

G
a

r
a
g

e

2

0

a

2

0

b

2

a

2

2

1

4

2

0

1

1

7

1

5

0

b

4

8

3

0

2

1

 

t

o

 

3

Existing unrestricted parking bays
to be restricted to 2 hour lim

ited
w

aiting bays w
ith W

3 residents
perm

it exem
ptions

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

E
M

S
C

O
T

E
 
R

O
A

D

W
A

R
W

I
C

K

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
S

 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
S

C
H

E
M

E

R
O

'
C

J
R

3
0

 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

1

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
E
m

s
c
o
t
e
 
R
o
a
d
\
E
m

s
c
o
t
e
 
R
o
a
d
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 58

Page 12 of 42



1

6

5

1

4

2

2
0

I
s
s
u

e
s

4
4

5

2

5
3

6
0

4

3

N

E

W

B

O

L

D

6

1

2

3

2
5

T
E

R

R

A
C

E
 E

A
S

T

N

E

W

B

O

L

D

 
T

E

R

R

A

C

E

 
E

A

S

T

4

9

9
4

4
5

1
0

2

2

1

F

E

R

N

H

I

L

L

 

D

R

I

V

E

2

1

1

5

1

1

6
2

.
2

m

1

0

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

L
e

a
m

i
n

g
t
o

n
 
S

p
a

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

F
E

R
N

H
I
L

L
 
D

R
I
V

E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
7

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

2

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
F
e
r
n
h
i
l
l
 
D

r
i
v
e
\
F
e
r
n
h
i
l
l
 
D

r
i
v
e
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 59

Page 13 of 42



F

R

A

N

C

E

S

1

0

4

1

4

8

6

9

t

o

7

0

7

1

1

7

8

5

8

6

4
5

8

1

3

4

3

4

1

3

7

T

o

w

i

n

g

 

P

a

t

h

W
o

r
k
s

2

1

4

7

1

1

1

2

T

A

C

H

B

R

O

O

K

 
R

O

A

D

1

7

6

1

8

 

t

o

 

3

5

4

8

2

1

4

3

t

o

F

L

A

V

E

L

9

2

1

4

1

5
3

.
9

m

1

 

t

o

 

3

0

L
B

t

o

1

E
l
 
S

u
b

 
S

t
a

G
a

s

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

G

A

S

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

1

9

P

R

I
O

R

Y

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

2

1

2

3

1

 

t

o

 

4

2

5
3

.
9

m

1
9

B
r
i
d

g
e

M

a

x

s

t

o

k

e

 

G

a

r

d

e

n

s

7

3

6

5

8

6

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

O
p

t
i
o

n
 
4

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

G
a

s
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
/
 
P

r
i
o

r
y

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

L
e

a
m

i
n

g
t
o

n
 
S

p
a

P
M

P
T

3
0

 
N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r
 
2

0
1

8

1
:
6

2
5

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

3

G
a

s
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
/
 
P

r
i
o

r
y

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
G

a
s
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
r
i
o
r
y
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
G

a
s
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
r
i
o
r
y
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
L
7
 
R

e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
'
 
P

a
r
k
i
n
g
 
Z

o
n
e

N
e
w

 
s
h
a
r
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
b
a
y
 
(
a
p
p
r
o
x
.
 
5
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
)

L
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
8
a
m

 
-
 
8
p
m

 
(
2
 
h
o
u
r
s
,
 
n
o
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
i
n
 
4
 
h
o
u
r
s
)

/
 
L
7
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d
e
r
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
w

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m

e
)

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
L
7
 
R

e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
'
 
P

a
r
k
i
n
g
 
Z

o
n
e

N
e
w

 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
w

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m

e
)

N
e
w

 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
w

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m

e
)

N
e
w

 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
w

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m

e
)

N
e
w

 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
w

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m

e
)

N
e
w

 
s
h
a
r
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
b
a
y
s
 
(
2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
)

L
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
8
a
m

 
-
 
8
p
m

 
(
2
 
h
o
u
r
s
,
 
n
o
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
i
n
 
4
 
h
o
u
r
s
)

/
 
L
7
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d
e
r
s

N
e
w

 
s
h
a
r
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
b
a
y
 
(
a
p
p
r
o
x
.
 
4
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
)

L
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
8
a
m

 
-
 
8
p
m

 
(
2
 
h
o
u
r
s
,
 
n
o
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
i
n
 
4
 
h
o
u
r
s
)

/
 
L
7
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d
e
r
s

N
e
w

 
s
h
a
r
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
b
a
y
 
(
a
p
p
r
o
x
.
 
4
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
)

L
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
8
a
m

 
-
 
8
p
m

 
(
2
 
h
o
u
r
s
,
 
n
o
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
i
n
 
4
 
h
o
u
r
s
)

/
 
L
7
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d
e
r
s

P
r
o
p
e
r
t
i
e
s
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

a
d
e
 
e
l
i
g
i
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
L
7
 
R

e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
'
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
s

N

U
n
r
e
s
t
r
i
c
t
e
d
 
p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
r
e
m

a
i
n

(
a
p
p
r
o
x
.
 
1
1
-
1
2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
)

Page 60

Page 14 of 42



1

0

1

7

4

1

0

4

9

4

5

2

1

0

7

D

I

C

K

I

N

S

 

R

O

A

D

1

0

3

1

0

3

a

1
1

6

7

8

4

9

9

4

7

6

4

5

7

E
l
 
S

u
b

S
t
a

6

0

G

R

E

V

I

L

L

E

 

R

O

A

D

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

G
r
e

v
i
l
l
e

 
R

o
a

d

W
a

r
w

i
c

k

P
M

J
R

2
9

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
5

0
0

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

4

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
G

r
e
v
i
l
l
e
 
R
o
a
d
\
G

r
e
v
i
l
l
e
 
R
o
a
d
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

D
i
s
a
b
l
e
d
 
b
a
y
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

Page 61

Page 15 of 42



1

9

2

6

3

S
h

e
l
t
e

r

7
1

.
6

m

7
2

.
2

m

4

4

7

2

1

R

O

A

D

5

3

0

4

2

1

4

8

G
l
e

b
e

7
1

.
9

m

7
2

.
5

m

3

1

W
H

I
T

N
A

S
H

1

 
t
o

 
9

1

1

9

2

C
o

u
r
t

H

E

A

T

H

C

O

T

E

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

H
E

A
T

H
C

O
T

E
 
R

O
A

D

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
4

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

5

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
H

e
a
t
h
c
o
t
e
 
R
o
a
d
\
H

e
a
t
h
c
o
t
e
 
R
o
a
d
 
D

Y
L
s
_
r
e
c
o
v
e
r
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 62

Page 16 of 42



1

6

K

I

N

G

S

W

A

Y

7

5

6

7

7

3

G
a
s
 
G

o
v

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
 
G

A
R

D
E

N
S

K
I
N

G
S

W
A

Y

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

6

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
M

o
n
a
r
c
h
 
G

a
r
d
e
n
s
\
M

o
n
a
r
c
h
 
G

a
r
d
e
n
s
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 63

Page 17 of 42



3
6
7

3
5
9

3
5
5

2

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

M
O

N
T

G
O

M
E

R
Y

 
R

O
A

D

T
A

C
H

B
R

O
O

K
 
R

O
A

D

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

7

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
M

o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
R
o
a
d
\
M

o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
R
o
a
d
 
+

 
T
a
c
h
b
r
o
o
o
k
 
R
o
a
d
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 64

Page 18 of 42



1

2

6

1

5

4

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

M
y

t
o

n
 
G

a
r
d

e
n

s

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s

h
i
r
e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
S

i
n

g
l
e

 
Y

e
l
l
o

w
 
L

i
n

e
s

&
 
H

 
B

a
r
s

M
A

L
J

R

0
3

 
J

u
l
y

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

8

I
n

f
o

r
m

a
l
 
C

o
n

s
u

l
t
a

t
i
o

n

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
M

y
t
o
n
 
G

a
r
d
e
n
s
\
M

y
t
o
n
 
G

a
r
d
e
n
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

1
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

S
i
n
g
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
 
r
e
s
t
r
i
c
t
i
o
n

M
o
n
 
-
 
F
r
i
 
9
a
m

 
-
 
5
p
m

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

Page 65

Page 19 of 42



4

5

5
a

1

2

66

4
5

22

27

98

DALE STREET

(
P

H
)

E
l

9

72

2

92

GROVE STREET

F
i
r
e

 
S

t
a

t
i
o

n

46

2

3

84

3

90

82

94

34

15

9

S
t
a

G
a

r
a

g
e

51

2

1

78

1

5

96

20

86

1
2

27

12

1
a

80

76

88

NEW BROOK STREET

W
o

o
d

b
i
n

e

5

C
o

t
t
a

g
e

s

1

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

39

100

68

2

2

70
74

7

T
a

v
e

r
n

S
u

b

Normandy House

2

7

W

O

O

D

B

I
N

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

2

5

2
2

12

4

8

2

10

2

4

L
B

2

2

7

D
e

l
l
 
H

o
u

s
e

8

6a

1

7

4

1

W

O

O

D

B

I
N

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

16

1
6

2
0

1

14

to

7
a

1

64

P
H

H
o

u
s
e

1
t
o

7

C
l
a

r
e

n
c
e

6

3

1

4

5

2

H
o

t
e

l

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

N
E

W
 
B

R
O

O
K

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
S

 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
S

C
H

E
M

E

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
4

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
1

9

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
N

e
w

 
B
r
o
o
k
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
N

e
w

 
B
r
o
o
k
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 66

Page 20 of 42



7

4

4

 
t
o

 
8

6
1
.
9
m

N

E

W

B

O

L

D

 
T

E

R

R

A

C

E

 
E

A

S

T

1

4

1

9

P
u
r
c
e
l
l
 
C

l
o
s
e

5

N

e

w

b

o

l
d

 
L

a

w

n

1

2

3

8

2

5

6
1
.
3
m

1

5
8
.
5
m

5
6
.
4
m

1

1

6

1

5

6

2

5
7
.
9
m

1

6

1

5

3

1

4

2

1

0

8

2

4

9

E

A

S

T

F

I
E

L

D

 
R

O

A

D

7

6

6
0
.
4
m

1

1

3

8

7

1

2

7

1

0

1

H
o
t
e
l

3

a

6

1

5

2

1

1

8

1

7

1

2

3

4

1

1

1

5

b

9

3

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 
M

e
w

s

3

3

3

1

a

W

i

l

l

o

w

H

o

u

s

e

W

a

l

n

u

t

H

o

u

s

e

P

a

t

h

5

1

4

2

4
4

4

2

a

5

2

4

1

5
3

2

7

3

6

4

3

6
2
.
5
m

N

E

W

B

O

L

D

T
E

R

R

A
C

E
 E

A
S

T

4

9

4
5

1

2

2

6

1

5

1

4

6
1
.
0
m

t
o

H
a
n
o
v
e
r

2

1

t
o

U

P

P

E

R

 
H

O

L

L

Y

 
W

A

L

K

7

4

2

6

8

L
B

1

1

0

1

4

G
a
r
d
e
n
s

1

5
t
o

C
o
u
r
t

4

W
h
i
t
t
l
e

6

4

1
 
t
o
 
4
1

1

2

0

6

8

t
o

7

1

1

9

5

3

7

0

1

6

9

1

7

C

a

m

b

r
i
d

g

e

 
G

a

r
d

e

n

s

1
0
0
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

2
0
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

1
0
0
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

2
0
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

N
e

w
b

o
l
d

 
T

e
r
r
a

c
e

 
E

a
s

t

L
e

a
m

i
n

g
t
o

n
 
S

p
a

P
M

J
R

3
0

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
1

0
0

0
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

1

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
N

e
w

b
o
l
d
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
 
E
a
s
t
\
N

e
w

b
o
l
d
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
 
E
a
s
t
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
p
a
s
s
i
n
g
 
p
l
a
c
e
s

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
p
a
s
s
i
n
g
 
p
l
a
c
e
s

Page 67

Page 21 of 42



J
e
p
h
s
o
n
 
G

a
r
d
e
n
s

P
o
s
t
s

R
o
y
a
l
 
S

p
a

1

3

N

E

W

B

O

L

D

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

R
O

Y
A

L

5
3
.
0
m

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

C
l
o
c
k
 
T

o
w

e
r

C
e
n
t
r
e

L
B

S
u
b
w

a
y

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

N
E

W
B

O
L

D
 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
4

 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

0

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
N

e
w

b
o
l
d
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
\
N

e
w

b
o
l
d
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
 
D

Y
L
 
C
o
a
c
h
 
B
a
y
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 68

Page 22 of 42



56.7m

2

5

1

El Sub Sta

SP

2

1

5

8

62.2m

1

4

8

5

2

1

4

 

t

o

 

2

9

4

5

G

O

O

D

F

E

L

L

O

W

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

3

0

5

5

1

 

t

o

 

1

2

W

I
N

S

L

O

W

 
C

L

O

S

E

6

1

7

6

LB

5

7

S

T

R

E

E

T

3

3

6

3

1

7

7

6

2

6

1

3

2

G

O

O

D

F

E

L

L

O

W

2
8
3

3

2

2

7

3

2

5

3

1

2

1

4

2

O

L

D

 

M

I

L

V

E

R

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

3

9

2

7

60.4m

1

3

2

2

53.6m

Q

U

A

R

R

Y

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

Garage

2

58.2m

2

6

3

57.9m

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Waiting / Loading Restrictions

Rugby Road / Old Milverton Road

Leamington Spa

Warwick District

PM AP

8 JANUARY 2020

1:1000 @ A4P

TR\11124 - 22

Rugby Road / Old Milverton Road

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\Traffic\A_Parking Management\AA_Warwick District\CPE Variations\V6\Warwick V6\Old Milverton Road\Rugby Rd - Old Milverton Rd.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

No Waiting At Any Time /

No Loading At Any Time

Extents as shown

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting At Any Time

Page 69

Page 23 of 42



2

4

3

0

6

1

4

3

1

8

1

1

C

O

R

I
O

L

A

N

U

S

 
S

Q

U

A

R

E

6

4

1

6

3

2

J

U

L

I

E

T

 

D

R

I

V

E

1

2

1

0

3

4

1

1

9

1

2

3

1

2

2

5

6

7

1

5

6

9

7

6

5

7

0

2

2

2

2

8

8

4

3

6

2

0

6

6

9

1
5

1

9

1

1

2

6

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

O
T

H
E

L
L

O
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
6

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

3

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 70

Page 24 of 42



D
O

N
A

L
B

A
IN

 C
L
O

S
E

1

8

1

0

4

5

3

5

4

2

5

6

1

2

1

5

2

9

3
8

3

1

1

P
l
a
y
 
A

r
e
a

P
p
g
 
S

t
a

3
6

2

8

3

0

3
4

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

O
T

H
E

L
L

O
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
6

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

4

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 71

Page 25 of 42



2

7

7

0

3

4

3

8

2

9

1

5

9

1

9

7

2

1

1

1

7

P
o

n
d

E

D

 

&

 

W

a

r

d

B

d

y

2

3

7

6

4

3

9

5

0

3

1

6

3

0

3

5

B

O

L

I

N

G

B

R

O

K

E

 

D

R

3

1

1

3

3

4

6

E

G

L

A

M

O

U

R

 

W

A

Y

2

1

1

4

3

0

2

8

2

4

2

2

1

2

4

8

1

5

6

2

4

2

a

3

6

1

7

4

2

6

4

1

9

5

4

4

8

1

3

2

1

4
4

4

0

3

2

O

T

H

E

L

L

O

 

A

V

E

4

1

1

4

E

D

 

&

 

W

a

r

d

 

B

d

y

E

D

 

&

 

W

a

r

d

1

4

1

1

8

1
0

8

1

9

1

6

2
0

1

7

2

1

C

A

L

I
B

A

N

 
M

E

W

S

1

5

5

7

1

8

1

4

9

1

2

5
7

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

O
T

H
E

L
L

O
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
6

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

5

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 72

Page 26 of 42



2

7

2

3

4

2

2

P
E

T
O

 
G

R
O

V
E

1

4

6

3

8

1

9

2

6

9

3

3

L

A

U

N

C

E

 

G

R

O

V

E

2

0

5

3

4

5

5

5

5

D

O

G

B

E

R

R

Y

 

W

A

Y

7

4

1

1

5

9

T

O

U

C

H

S

T

O

N

E

 

R

D

3

6

3

2

7

B

A

N

Q

U

O

 

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

5

1

3

2

2

6

1

1

3

1

2

8

2

5

2

3

S
u

b

O

T

H

E

L

L

O

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

8

5

1

7

2

6

3

8

7

2

2

4

6

5

5

9

2

8

2

0

E
l

2

0

a

1

1

4

7

4

0

S
t
a

8

4

1

0

2

9

L

A

E

R

T

E

S

 

G

R

O

V

E

7

8

3

7

3

9

7

2

2

1

3

0

3

5

7

2

1

5

R

E

I

G

N

I

E

R

 

P

L

1

8

2

6

7

E

D

 
&

 
W

a

r
d

 
B

d

y

E

D

 

&

 

W

a

r

d

 

B

d

y

E

D

 

&

W

a

r

d

 

B

d

y

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

O
T

H
E

L
L

O
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
6

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

6

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
\
O

t
h
e
l
l
o
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 73

Page 27 of 42



1

8

6

C

O

R

N

W

A

L

L

 

P

L

A

C

E

2

L
B

6
5

.
5

m

1

8

3

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

i

a

l

 

C

e

n

t

r

e

2

1

7

3

1

1

1

9

9

C

r

o

s

s

 

R

o

a

d

1

7

5

T
C

B

1

8

5

P

E

R

C

Y

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

1

4

1

5

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
E

R
C

Y
 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
E

M
O

V
A

L

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

7

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
P
e
r
c
y
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
\
P
e
r
c
y
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
 
D

Y
L
 
R
e
m

o
v
a
l
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 74

Page 28 of 42



F

A

R

L

E

Y

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

1

2

0

1

7

1

0

8

1

2

1

1

6

8

5

a

5

5

7

R

O

T
H

E

R

F
I
E

L
D

 
C

L
O

S

E

5
2
.
1
m

6

1

S

o

u

t
h

l
a

n

d

s

1

A
n
f
i
e
l
d
 
C

o
u
r
t

E
l
 
S

u
b

S
t
a

O
r
c
h
a
r
d

H
o
u
s
e

8
3

C

o

p

p

e

r
f
i
e

l
d

s

5

3

C

o

a

c

h

H

o

u

s

e

6

2

4

9

1

0

4

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
L

Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
P

L
A

C
E

F
A

R
L

E
Y

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

8

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
P
l
y
m

o
u
t
h
 
P
l
a
c
e
\
P
l
y
m

o
u
t
h
 
P
l
a
c
e
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 75

Page 29 of 42



1

5

a

1

5

2

8

1

 

t

o

 

1

9

7

3

7

6

R

E

E

V

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

3

3

9

9

1

1

1

W

H

A

T

E

L

E

Y

'

S

 

D

R

I

V

E

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

2

1

5

10

6

9

5

5

1

2

5

0

1

1

4

2

5

7

1

2
0

1

7

7

5

3

T
h
e

B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e

N
e
t
w

o
r
k

7
 
m

e
t
r
e
s

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

R
e

e
v

e
 
D

r
i
v

e

K
e

n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h

P
M

J
R

2
8

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
5

0
0

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

9

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
R
e
e
v
e
 
D

r
i
v
e
\
R
e
e
v
e
 
D

r
i
v
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

G
i
v
e
 
W

a
y
 
l
i
n
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
b
r
o
u
g
h
t
 
f
o
r
w

a
r
d

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
G

i
v
e
 
W

a
y
 
l
i
n
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

Page 76

Page 30 of 42



2

0

7

C

R

O

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

2

2

6
3
.
7
m

6

2

0

5

2

0

5

a

1

2

a

3

T
h
e

C
o
a
c
h

H
o
u
s
e

1

8

6

2

1

9

8

6
5
.
5
m

2

0

0

2

0

3

1

8

3

T

h

e

 

H

o

l

l

i

e

s

1

1

2

3

3

F

A

I

R

L

A

W

N

 

C

L

O

S

E

1

2

0

1

2

 

t

o

 

4

E
l
 
S

u
b
 
S

t
a

5

 

t

o

 

7

1

0

1

9

9

2

1

2

4

1

8

5

P

E

R

C

Y

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

1

a

1

b

R

U

G

B

Y

 

R

O

A

D

O

S

W

A

L

D

 

R

O

A

D

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

R
u

g
b

y
 
R

o
a

d

L
e

a
m

i
n

g
t
o

n
 
S

p
a

P
M

J
R

2
8

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
5

0
0

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

0

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
R
u
g
b
y
 
R
o
a
d
\
R
u
g
b
y
 
R
o
a
d
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

e
x
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

Page 77

Page 31 of 42



S

C

H

O

O

L

 

L

A

N

E

W

h

i

t

e

 

L

i

o

n

1

O

l

d

e

2

6

0

5

8

5

6

6

6

a

S

O

U

T

H

A

M

 

R

O

A

D

1

0

m

1

0

m

1

2

m

1

0

m

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

S
o

u
t
h

a
m

 
R

d
 
/
 
S

c
h

o
o

l
 
L

a
n

e

R
a

d
f
o

r
d

 
S

e
m

e
l
e

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
D

i
s

t
r
i
c

t

P
M

J
R

1
7

 
S

e
p

t
.
 
2

0
1

9

1
:
5

0
0

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
2

9

R
a

d
f
o

r
d

 
S

e
m

e
l
e

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
R
a
d
f
o
r
d
 
S
e
m

e
l
e
\
R
a
d
f
o
r
d
 
S
e
m

e
l
e
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o

u
n

t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 78

Page 32 of 42



4

7

3

1

E

l
 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

129

123

1
2

1
4

14

109

8

8

1
5

2

12

4
8

3

7

5
2

119

121

1

3
6

26

28

SPRING

2
9

E

l

3
0

24

R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e

1
4

6

95

97

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

4

105

2

7

25

2

9

4
3

2
0

1

4
7
 
t
o
 
6
9

2
8

21

26

111

7
3

5

3

P

O

O

L

2
7

22

23

9
3

9
1

7
1

17

3
4

22

99

1
8

2

C
e
n
t
r
e

3
2

4
5

1
6

9

24

107

CAPE

R
O

A
D

V

I

C

T

O

R

I

A

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

0
1

1
5
/
7
/
1
9

R
O

'
C

J
R

A
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
i
n
f
o
r
m

a
l
 
c
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

R
e

s
i
d

e
n

t
s

 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g
 
S

c
h

e
m

e

P
M

J
R

1
5

 
J

u
l
y

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

1

S
p

r
i
n

g
 
P

o
o

l
 
R

e
s

i
d

e
n

t
s

 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
S
p
r
i
n
g
 
P
o
o
l
\
S
p
r
i
n
g
 
P
o
o
l
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

R
e

s
i
d

e
n

t
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d

e
r
s

 
(
W

2
)

P
e

r
m

i
t
 
e

l
i
g

i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
f
o

r
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
I
E

S
 
O

N
L

Y

U
p

 
t
o

 
3

 
p

e
r
m

i
t
s
 
p

e
r
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y

a
l
l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
t
o

 
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
c
 
v
e

h
i
c
l
e

s

&

1
 
v
i
s
i
t
o

r
 
p

e
r
m

i
t

8
a

m
-
8

p
m

R
e

s
i
d

e
n

t
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d

e
r
s
 
(
W

2
)

o
r

2
 
h

o
u

r
s
,
 
n

o
 
r
e

t
u

r
n

 
i
n

 
4

 
h

o
u

r
s

8
a

m
-
8

p
m

R
e

s
i
d

e
n

t
 
P

e
r
m

i
t
 
H

o
l
d

e
r
s
 
(
W

2
)

o
r

2
 
h

o
u

r
s
,
 
n

o
 
r
e

t
u

r
n

 
i
n

 
4

 
h

o
u

r
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
a

l
l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
p

r
i
v
a

t
e

 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
t
o

r
e

m
a

i
n

 
u

n
c
h

a
n

g
e

d

Page 79

Page 33 of 42



R
O

A
D

2

2

4

5

2

1

3

1

S

T

9

M

I

C

H

A

E

L

'
S

2

1

2

5

5

3

3

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

S
T

 
M

I
C

H
A

E
L

'
S

 
R

O
A

D

W
A

R
W

I
C

K

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
7

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

2

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
S
t
 
M

i
c
h
a
e
l
s
 
R
o
a
d
\
S
t
 
M

i
c
h
a
e
l
s
 
R
o
a
d
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 80

Page 34 of 42



1

1

9

1

7

1

1

6

6

6

4

2

1

7

9

7

8

6

8

4

9

.

4

m

1

5

48.8m

1

49.1m

1

4

1

1

3

1

1

5

8

2

6

7

5

4

2

2

9

1

0

6

1

0

0

3

4

3

5

1

0

3

LB

LODGE

Bridge

7

7

2

0

G

R

O

V

E

5

9

4

5

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

6

7

Fisher's

2

1

0

4

F

O

X

E

S

 
W

A

Y

A

L

D

E

R

S

3

0

4

0

4

0

8

9

9

1

4

3

8

1

F

I
S

H

E

R

'
S

 
C

O

U

R

T

4

S

T

R

A

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

5

7

4

4

2

1

8

8

1

2

8

2

3

3

4

2

8

5

7

1

3

49.1m

7

S

H

A

K

E

S

P

E

A

R

E

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

1

3

8

8

1

6

7

1

2

9

E

D

 
B

d

y

C

R

3

5

3

0

2

2

6

1

3

4

0

2

Brook

9

6

a

2

5

1

3

7

8

a

2

4

Willowcroft

5

5

49.7m

1

8

L

O

N

G

F

E

L

L

O

W

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

Fishers

2

2

2

4

5

8

1

2

1

1

1

8

Sub

El

Sta

1

8

6

9

a

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Proposed Waiting Restrictions

Stratford Road & Surrounding Streets

Warwick

PM JR

28 January 2020

1:1250 @ A3_P

TR\11124 - 33

Warwick CPE Variation 6

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\Traffic\A_Parking Management\AA_Warwick District\CPE Variations\V6\Warwick V6\Stratford Road\Stratford road Consultation.dwg

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities,

Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

Double yellow lines

(No Waiting At Any Time)

to extents as shown

Double yellow lines

(No Waiting At Any Time)

to extents as shown

Double yellow lines

(No Waiting At Any Time)

to extents as shown

Double yellow lines

(No Waiting At Any Time)

to extents as shown

Double yellow lines

(No Waiting At Any Time)

to extents as shown

Double yellow lines

(No Waiting At Any Time)

to extents as shown

Page 81

Page 35 of 42



C
l
u
b

3

4

5
3
.
3
m

6

W
E

S
T

9

C
e
n
t
r
e

W
a
t
e
r
s
i
d
e

M
e
d
i
c
a
l

1

6

3

9

T

o

w

i
n

g

 
P

a

t
h

N

E

I
L

S

T

O

N

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

P
s

1

4

S

t
o

n

e

l
e

i
g

h

 
A

r

m

s

3

7

3

6

1

1

 
t
o

 
8

1

1

1
0

(

P

H

)

1

2

2

5

b

C

U

M

M

I

N

G

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

2

6

6

 
t
o

 
7

0

4

3

6

2

1

5

2

9

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

T

O

W

E

R

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

2

5

M
i
l
v
e
r
t
o
n
 
H

o
u
s
e

C

L

E

M

E

N

S

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

3

2

a

3

7

a

A

L

T

H

O

R

P

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

3

5

5

8

5
3
.
9
m

2

7

6

0

3

3

T
C

B

1

1

T
h
e
 
G

u
i
l
d

1
 
t
o
 
3

7

1

 

t

o

 

5

 

(

b

e

l

o

w

)

1

3

1

0

1

4

E

D

 

&

 

W

a

r

d

 

B

d

y

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

T
o

w
e

r
s

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

L
e

a
m

i
n

g
t
o

n
 
s

p
a

P
M

J
R

2
9

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
5

0
0

 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

4

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
T
o
w

e
r
s
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
T
o
w

e
r
s
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
y
e
l
l
o
w

 
l
i
n
e
s

(
N

o
 
W

a
i
t
i
n
g
 
A

t
 
A

n
y
 
T

i
m

e
)

t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n

Page 82

Page 36 of 42



1
1

B
e
a
u
c
h
a
m

p

4

3

1
5

6

1
6

8

7

1

3
1

1
0

7

1

1
6
0

1
5
0

S
t
a

9

S
u
b

2

1
3

E
l

2
8

1
6
3

5

1
4

1
2

1
5
7

1
0
4

1
7
3

1
7
5

2
5

G
r
o

o
m

s
 
H

o
u

s
e

6
1
.
6
m

1
6
4

7

2
6

1
9

B
IN

S
W

O
O

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

1
6
7

C
R

6

3

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

T
R

I
N

I
T

Y
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

3
0

 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

5

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
T
r
i
n
i
t
y
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
T
r
i
n
i
t
y
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
D

Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 83

Page 37 of 42



C
o
t
t
a
g
e

T
h
e

1
1

C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

T
h
e
 
C

o
a
c
h
 
H

o
u
s
e

12

8

10

2

6

12

S
u

b

1

1
1

N
u
r
s
e
r
y

1

4

L
B

UPPER GROVE STREET

2

2

Hall

T
C

B

7

Stuart Court

4

S

T

R

A

T

H

E

A

R

N

 

R

O

A

D

E
l

H
o

m
e

CLARENDON PLACE

5
8

.
2

m

The Dell

4

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

1

9

6

B
e

t
h

a
n

y

15 to 26

6
5

.
5

m

2

5

2

1

4

1
6

S
t
a

2

C
h

r
i
s
t
a

d
e

l
p

h
i
a

n

6
3

.
7

m

2

2
0

1 to 14

1

B
e
a
u
c
h
a
m

p

5
6

1
9

14

B
E

A
U

C
H

A
M

P
 
H

I
L
L

1

4

H
o
u
s
e

3

2

P
H

G
a

r
a

g
e

1

WARWICK TERRACE

1

3

C
a

r
 
P

a
r
k

W

a

r
d

 
B

d

y

7

6

3

5

2

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

U
P

P
E

R
 
G

R
O

V
E

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
S

 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
S

C
H

E
M

E

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

6

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
U

p
p
e
r
 
G

r
o
v
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
U

p
p
e
r
 
G

r
o
v
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
R
P
S
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 84

Page 38 of 42



S

P

6

4

.
3

m

2

2

 

t

o

 

2

7

7

 

t

o

 

1

5

A

n

s

e

l
l
 
C

o

u

r

t

2

3

1

6

 

t

o

4

0

 

t

o

 

5

2

3

2

 

t

o

 

3

9

2

4

 

t

o

 

3

1

2

8

2

9

3

7

C

A
T

T
E

L
L
 R

O

A
D

5

1

 
t
o

 
2

4

6

A

l
l
o

t
m

e

n

t
 
G

a

r

d

e

n

s

G

R

O

V

E

3

7

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

3

1

2

9

5

2

6

2

5

3

3

4
3

A

l
l
o

t
m

e

n

t
 
G

a

r

d

e

n

s

4

8

D
E

E
R

P
A

R
K

7

4

58

9

3

4

T
A

T
N

A
L
L

1
5

3
8

3

4

2
0

1

9

1

I
s

s

u

e

s

1

4

D

R

I

V

E

6
7

2

1

N

E

W

B

U

R

G

H

6
5

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

A

l
l
o

t
m

e

n

t
 
G

a

r

d

e

n

s

1

6

D
R

I
V

E

S

i
n

k

s

5

3

.
0

m

D

E

E

R

P

A

R

K

1

3

2

6
5
a

2
9

1

9

5

2

8
3

1
9

5

4

.
3

m

6

4

1
1

8

6

7

6

5

1

6

1

.
3

m

1
8

1

4

5

9

.
1

m

2

8

Path (um)

1

1

2

S

u

b

 
S

t
a

2

6

54

G

R

E

E

N

6

1

5
0

6

3

a

4

2

4

3

W

E

D

G

N

O

C

K

 

G

R

E

E

N

3

5

1

1

R

O

A

D

6

3

3

5

M

I

L

L

E

R

S

6

2

5

A

l
l
o

t
m

e

n

t
 
G

a

r
d

e

n

s

7

3

2

5

5

9

.
4

m

1

1

0

9

7

4

O

K

E

N

 

R

O

A

D

W

E

D

G

N

O

C

K

 

G

R

E

E

N

4

2

T

C

B

5

9

.
7

m

1

1

3

7

5

9

.
1

m

L

B

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

2

8

E

l

1

0

2

W

E

D

G

N

O

C

K

4

0

2

5

1

1

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

1
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
i
t
i
n

g
 
R

e
s

t
r
i
c

t
i
o

n
s

 
/

R
e

s
i
d

e
n

t
s

'
 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g
 
S

c
h

e
m

e

W
e

d
g

n
o

c
k

 
G

r
e

e
n

 
a

n
d

S
u

r
r
o

u
n

d
i
n

g
 
A

r
e

a
,
 
W

a
r
w

i
c

k

P
M

A
P

3
0

 
J

a
n

u
a

r
y

 
2

0
2

0

1
:
1

2
5

0
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

7

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
 
C

P
E

 
V

a
r
i
a

t
i
o

n
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
W

e
d
g
n
o
c
k
 
G

r
e
e
n
\
W

e
d
g
e
n
o
c
k
 
G

r
e
e
n
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

K
E

Y
:
-

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
N

O
 
W

A
I
T

I
N

G
 
A

T
 
A

N
Y

 
T

I
M

E

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
L

I
M

I
T

E
D

 
W

A
I
T

I
N

G
 
-
 
3

0
 
M

I
N

S

N
O

 
R

E
T

U
R

N
 
1

 
H

O
U

R
 
E

X
C

E
P

T
 
P

E
R

M
I
T

 

H
O

L
D

E
R

S
 
(
W

7
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
L

I
M

I
T

E
D

 
W

A
I
T

I
N

G
 
-
 
3

0
 
M

I
N

S
 

N
O

 
R

E
T

U
R

N
 
1

 
H

O
U

R
 
E

X
C

E
P

T
 
P

E
R

M
I
T

 

H
O

L
D

E
R

S
 
(
W

7
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
N

O
 
W

A
I
T

I
N

G
 
A

T
 
A

N
Y

 
T

M
E

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
I
C

T
E

D
 
(
M

A
R

K
E

D
)

P
A

R
K

I
N

G
 
B

A
Y

S

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
(
W

7
)
 
E

L
I
G

I
B

I
L

I
T

Y
:
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
(
W

7
)
 
E

L
I
G

I
B

I
L

I
T

Y

Page 85

Page 39 of 42



B

A

S

A

N

T

 

C

L

O

S

E

S
P

W

H

A

R

F

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

0

4

5

1

6

1

1
9

I
L

E

X

 
C

O

U

R

T

Q
u

a
r
r
y

(
d

i
s
u

s
e

d
)

1

7

G
a

r
a

g
e

9

1

1

1

M
P

 
1

0
7

.
7

5

1

 

t

o

 

3

2

0

6
7

8
7

7
7

7
5

7
1

6
9

85

7
3

1

6

81

7
9

6
1

6
5

2

5

1

1

C

L

O

S

E

1

2

H

I
G

H

L

A

N

D

S

1

7

9
1

1

0

7

2

8

9
7

2

2

9
3

9

9

4
8

4
2

4

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

W
H

A
R

F
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

R
W

I
C

K

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
Y

E
L

L
O

W
 
L

I
N

E
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
5

 
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
2

0
2

0

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

8

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
W

h
a
r
f
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
W

h
a
r
f
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
V
3
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 86

Page 40 of 42



5
6
.
4
m

M

e

w

s

B
r
a
n
d
o
n

5
7
.
9
m

5
5
.
2
m

3

W

O

O

D

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

4

S
u
b
 
S

t
a

6

5

6

1

4

2

0

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

1

5

C
l
i
n
i
c

C
o
u
r
t

2

2

5
6
.
7
m

2

0

2

2

a

5
4
.
9
m

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

8
0

W

I
L

L

I
A

M

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

R
o
s
e
f
i
e
l
d

6

0

B

R

A

N

D

O

N

 
P

A

R

A

D

E

5

0

5

6

1

 

t

o

 

4

2

0

a

R

O

S

E

F

I

E

L

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

8

1

 

t

o

 

6

1

4

6

3

3

T
h

e
 
M

a
l
t
h

o
u

s
e

5
7

R

o

s

e

f

i

e

l

d

5

1

2

3

H
o
u
s
e

O
f
f
i
c
e
s

R

E

G

E

N

T

 

G

R

O

V

E

H

O

L

L

Y

 

W

A

L

K

2

2

3

9

5
5
.
5
m

E

d

g

e

v

i

l

l

e

R

e

g

e

n

c

y

 

H

o

u

s

e

E
l

3

1

3

1

0

2

7

1

3

7

4

4

0

C
h
a
p
e
l
 
C

o
u
r
t

8

t
o

1

6

3

3

2

9

P
e

r
s
e

u
s

H
o

u
s
e

R
e
g
e
n
t

H
o
u
s
e

M
a
r
l
b
o
r
o
u
g
h

H
o
u
s
e

2

1

4

4

6

2

W

i

l

l

o

w

H

o

u

s

e

H

o

u

s

e

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

W
I
L

L
I
A

M
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
S

 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
S

C
H

E
M

E

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
8

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
3

9

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
W

i
l
l
i
a
m

 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
W

i
l
l
i
a
m

 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
R
P
S
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 87

Page 41 of 42



P
H

4

8

5
1
.
2
m

6

1

1

1

3

W
o
r
k
s

6

1

 
t
o

 
6

1

0

C

R

O

W

N

 
T

E

R

R

A

C

E

1

7

2

1

5
4
.
9
m

P
H

1
0

1

9

4

1
6

5
3
.
9
m

7

6

G
a
s

1

6

 
t
o

 
2

0

C
l
u
b

4

5

2

W

o

r
k

s

1

W

IS
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

W

I
S

E

 
T

E

R

R

A

C

E

5
7
.
0
m

B
r
i
d
g
e

T
h

e
 
F

l
a

t

8

1
4

7

 
t
o

 
1

5

9

F
la

ts
 1

 to
 9

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
B

Y
C

H
K

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
i
t
l
e

D
r
a
w

n
 
b
y

D
a
t
e

S
c
a
l
e

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 
b
y

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
u
m

b
e
r

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e

N
O

T
E

S

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
/
-
-
/
-
-

-
-

-

W
I
S

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

W
I
S

E
 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

L
E

A
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

P
A

W
A

I
T

I
N

G
 
R

E
S

T
R

I
C

T
I
O

N
S

R
O

'
C

J
R

1
7

 
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

 
2

0
1

9

N
T

S
 
@

 
A

3
_

L

T
R

\
1

1
1

2
4

 
-
 
4

0

W
A

R
W

I
C

K
 
V

A
R

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
6

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
6
\
W

a
r
w

i
c
k
 
V
6
\
W

i
s
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
\
W

i
s
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
D

+
S
Y
L
s
.
d
w

g

B
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
m

a
p

p
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
p

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
C

o
n

t
r
o

l
l
e

r
 
o

f
 
H

M
S

O

©
 
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
 
2

0
1

8
.
 
O

r
d

n
a

n
c
e

 
S

u
r
v
e

y
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
5

2
0

.

A
l
l
 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
r
e

s
e

r
v
e

d
.

U
n

a
u

t
h

o
r
i
s
e

d
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

f
r
i
n

g
e

s
 
c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
l
e

a
d

 
t
o

 
p

r
o

s
e

c
u

t
i
o

n
 
o

r
 
c
i
v
i
l
 
p

r
o

c
e

e
d

i
n

g
s
.

W
a

r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

o
u

n
t
y
 
C

o
u

n
c
i
l
.

w
w

w
.
w

a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

m
a
i
l
t
o

:
c
o

m
m

u
n

i
t
i
e
s
@

w
a
r
w

i
c
k
s
h

i
r
e
.
g

o
v
.
u

k

W
a

r
w

i
c

k
s
h

i
r
e

C
o
u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l

T
R

A
N

S
P
O

R
T

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
&

 
R

o
a
d
 
S

a
f
e
t
y

C
o
m

m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,

S
h
i
r
e
 
H

a
l
l
 
P

o
s
t
 
R

o
o
m

W
a
r
w

i
c
k
,
 
C

V
3
4
 
4
S

P

T
e
l
 
:
 
0
1
9
2
6
 
4
1
0
4
1
0

Page 88

Page 42 of 42



Responses to Consultation 

Binswood Avenue: 

1 You invite comments, support or objections so here are two.  
 

• Binswood Avenue is regularly used to provide FREE parking 
for people working in Leamington Town Centre or just 
visiting to shop or avail themselves of the excellent 
restaurants and cafes in town. In the four years that we 
have lived here, this street has become increasingly popular 
to  the extent that visitors to the properties along this street 
often struggle to find parking slots. At school pick-up time, 
we sometimes have problems accessing our private road 
which runs alongside and is part of Binswood Avenue. Your 
proposed changes do nothing to address the increased 
pressure on this street.  

 

• You give no explanation for the proposed extended bays. 
So, why are these necessary? Are they to provide parking 
for coaches or for the numerous school busses used by The 
Kingsley school. And if that is the case, what safety 
measures will be introduced for the many children using 
these busses? In addition, extended bays would narrow the 
street and it is used for two-way traffic wishing to access 
the Kenilworth Road which would make it more dangerous 
for daily school use.  I would appreciate an explanation for 
these extended bays please.  

As relative newcomers to Leamington, we have observed 
increased traffic in the town yet at the same time, a reduction in 
the number of parking places for families and individuals wishing 
to enjoy all that Leamington has to offer. This is the BIG problem 
that you need to address. Finally, I sincerely hope that you do 
indeed take notice of our comments because my experience has 
led me to think that this is merely a formality.  
 

2 We live at XX Newbold Court and will obviously be affected by these changes and look 
forward to your confirmation that we will be issued with a residents parking permit 
 

3 No problem with additional parking bays being marked on the north side of Binswood 
Avenue.  It will probably help avoid confusion which would-be parkers suffer from at the 
moment as the parking regulations are different on each side of the road. 
 
In conjunction with other neighbours we feel that it would be better to leave the yellow 
lines at the end of the cul de sac so that people who have driven to the end of the road,  

Page 89

Page 1 of 153Page 1 of 153



expecting a way through, are able to turn round safely and easily.  There is already very 
little space for them to do so. 
 

4 The purpose of this email is to object to the implementation of Warwick District CPE 
Variation 6 (Binswood Avenue) which is procedurally flawed 
 
When we purchased our property in 1999 there were no parking restrictions. Over time, 
more people parked during the day whilst at work in town. Restrictions were then applied 
to the South side which have been sufficient to allow residents the amenity to park 
outside their homes. The only time that an issue arrises is at Christmas with shoppers 
which should be considered as an exception. As such this measure is not proportionate 
and the proposals should not go ahead. 
 
No objective evidence has been provided to justify why the proposed changes are 
required. As such there would be sufficient grounds for a Judicial Review based on: 

• procedural unfairness 
• the process leading up to a decision was improper 
• the decision maker who is supposed to be impartial is biased 

The Council must provide objective evidence that all local designated car parks are full to 
capacity at the times when parking its deemed to be an issue on Binswood Avenue. If this 
is not the case, the cost of parking in designated car parks should be lowered such that 
the existing provision is utilised more effectively rather than displacing vehicles into 
adjacent street parking facilities which should be for residents. 
 
A study should be commissioned over a suitable period of time, lowering the cost of 
parking until car parks are full to capacity at peak times. A survey should then be 
commissioned to understand whether there is in fact an issue with parking provision on 
Binswood Avenue. Until such study is carried out the proposal remains a hypothesis which 
has been untested and is therefore biased. 
 
Given that when we purchased our property we enjoyed unrestricted parking, it would be 
logical to claim that this amenity should be protected and residents issued free parking 
permits which would be funded by their already high Council Tax. 
 

5 I object to the implementation of Warwick District CPE Variation 6 (Binswood Avenue) as 
no evidence has been provided to support it. 
 
We moved into X Binswood Avenue in 2001 and have always been able to park outside 
our home with ease, other than the festive holidays. The current measures where 
unnecessary and made no additional improvement, as such it is inappropriate to extend 
them. 
 
The occasional parking congestion we suffer is caused by unfairly high charges in the 
designated car parks, evident from the fact they function below capacity.  
 
The proposal may have been valid if the council had gathered and provided the evidence 
to support it. That said, in its absence, should the proposal be approved, it is my intention 
to challenge it in court. 
 

Page 90

Page 2 of 153



6 This correspondance is to formally object to the implementation of the above. 
 
I have looked through all the benchmarking and other reports and there is nothing in 
there that justifies the proposed levels of change. 
 
If you compare the costs this would result in the costs to the households with 3 cars being 
the 11th most expense of the 13 areas benchmarked. 
 
In the current environment and together with the likely economic distress that will 
continue post COVID-19 then it is much more likely the younger children of age to drive 
will also remain in the family home longer thus pushing more people into the 3 car 
category. 
Also the impact of COVID-19 is also likely to drive people away from public transport - 
both through the implications of social distancing which will drive bus and train capacity 
down to less than 20% plus the concern of people to be safer. This impact is already being 
seen in China. Thus use of vehicle's and requirement to park them is likely to increase at a 
time when residents will be more economically challenged. 
 
If you also benchmark the council tax charges for the same 13 areas - Warwickshire is 
already at the top (most expensive) of those comparator areas. 
 
In addition i have not seen evidence that all local car parks are at full capacity at the time 
its deemed an issue on Binswood Avenue. 
 
So in summary this should be rejected. 
If the grounds for proposing these changes is parking fees are too low then this analysis 
must also factor in the other funding streams the councils get so must include council tax 
charges etc - if you factor these in then charges are already highest of the areas 
benchmarked. 
 

7 We would like to officially submit our objection to the implementation of 
Warwick District CPE Variation 6 (Binswood Avenue) on the grounds that: 

  

1.    Proper procedures have not been followed. 

1. Full reviews and reports have not been carried out regarding:  

1.1.1 The assessment of whether the car parks are at capacity. 
If not, what impact would reducing car park charges make. 

1.1.2 We have not had the opportunity to have our questions 
answered due to the lockdown as no one at the council has 
been available. We need to understand the implications of: 

1.1.2.1 Dispensation and Suspension Charges – will this 
significantly increase costs of building works and repairs 
needed due to additional and excessive parking costs for 
contractors? 

Page 91

Page 3 of 153



1.1.2.2 The suggested possibility of the introduction of 
Business Permits. Would this potentially exacerbate the 
parking problem by issuing permits to businesses that 
previously were not entitled to them? Thus, residents 
paying more and the parking problem could be worse. 

1.1.2.3 Are all roads in the area having the same charges? 
There appear to be similar roads that are not on the list. 

                 2.  The charges for Visitors parking are exorbitant and will restrict 
family staying with residents 

 
                        2.1 Our family come to stay with us from long distances, often 

between 2 to 3 weeks. This would mean that potentially we could use nearly 
half of our permits in one visit. 

  
We hope you will reconsider your proposals. 
 

8 Clearly there is a conflict between residents and members of the public, when it comes to 
parking within urban areas, this is only exacerbated when local councils introduce car 
parking charges in town centres and urban areas with the intention of raising additional 
revenue to supplement their  annual income. Clearly there are other problems caused by 
this, such as the impact on the UK’s High Streets and the retailers where their customers 
are being charged for parking, whilst the customers of out of town retailers are offered 
free parking.  
 
Notwithstanding this, the problem must vary between residential areas where the size 
and nature of the residential properties directly impacts on the demand for parking, for 
example in streets with a high density of small terraced housing to allow up to 3 cars per 
house would seem excessive and only lead to more car parking problems, whilst large 
Victorian and Regency  terraced and semi-detached properties such as the houses in 
Binswood Avenue,  could be used as large family homes where more than 3 cars per 
house wouldn’t be enough. This also causes anomalies where two identical properties 
could be offered a different number of car permits, if one is a family home it would only 
be allowed 3 whilst the other with 3 flats would be allow 9 permits.  
 
It seems that the approach being taken by WCC is too simplistic and fails to ascertain the 
facts and only seems to be a means of recovering the cost of £80 per permit, which I must 
question as this seems excessive and without a full break down on how this figure is 
arrived at, it is difficult to separate the costs directly related to the implementation of the 
parking permit scheme as opposed to the other statutory obligations of WCC as the 
highway authority. From my own experience of running a carpark the penalty charges 
more than cover the cost of running the enforcement so it can’t surely cost £80 to issue a 
permit and have that information entered into a data base? Furthermore, as this problem 
is a direct result of the district councils introducing parking charges and restrictions on the 
public roads in town centres in order to raise revenue,  surely the district councils should 
be required to make a contribution towards these costs as it benefits financially from 
these new restrictions ?  
 
I would have thought that WCC should have first established the demand for residents’ 
car parking permits for the various Zones and areas and then once it has this information 

Page 92

Page 4 of 153



it can then workwith the district councils to produce a   detailed proposal for the 
individual areas which allocates the correct number of spaces per property, whilst 
producing a detailed cost of how much this will cost, taking into account the fact that the 
problem has been created by the district council introducing their car parking charges. I 
would surmise there would be only a very few areas in our towns that would require 
parking permits if the current charges and restrictions in town centres were removed. 
Clearly in normal circumstances Warwick and Stratford town centres may be on par with 
Oxford due to their added tourist attraction so it could be argued that they require the 
highest level of parking protection, however why should residents in areas less affected be 
asked to pay the same costs ?  
 
In respect to the two options I would suggest option 2 as it’s the cheapest, however  I am 
strongly against the abolishment of the visitors permit as our household has more than 
one classic car, all of which are usually parked off street, however when in use they will be 
parked outside the property which means the visitors permit is very useful. Unless of 
course the new permits allow any car registered  to the permit holders address to be 
listed on the permits.  Then a resident visitors permit should still be available but at the 
cost of one of the other permits ie 3 permits or 2 permits and 1 visitors per household.   
 
There is a degree on nonsense in the Benchmarking Report in particular in the 3.1.2 “This 
could encourage the use of few vehicles by residents which in turn could reduce 
congestion and promote a cleaner environment”  it might come as a surprise that it 
doesn’t matter how many cars one individual owns as he can only ever drive one at a time 
so there is no difference from a resident with only one car. Car owners already pay a very 
high level of direct and indirect tax for owning their vehicles and without good alternative 
public transport they shouldn’t  be used by central or local governments as cash cows. 
 
In  3.3 Dispensations and Suspensions, why should households be charged for having work 
carried out on their properties this is incongruous and is contrary to all of the efforts being 
made by government and Local authorities to deduce the effect of greenhouse gases etc 
surely  owners of properties in these town centres will be living in housing that is old and 
in urgent need of improvement and repair so surely every effort should be made to 
encourage this and not penalised  by introducing a further cost/tax on carrying out work 
on their properties? Where is the joined up government? Further evidence to 
suggest  these changes are driven by revenue demands and not based on environmental 
and housing improvement needs. 
 
In conclusion: 
 

• there needs to be a more flexible approach to the implementation  of any new 
car parking restrictions on households to reflect the individual needs of the 
residential areas and not as proposed a  blanket approach which is entirely driven 
by the local authorities wish to increase their revenue. So; no to tiered system 
and no to the new visitor parking. 

 
• There should be flexibility so that each parking permit can have more than one 

registration number registered to it, giving households flexibility to park one car 
on the street at any one time whilst  allowing them to change which car they park 
on a daily basis,  to suit their needs and travel commitments.  
 
 

Page 93

Page 5 of 153



Finally with the impact of the coronavirus which will devastate our High Streets it must be 
time for local authorities across the UK to finally abolish all car parking charges both on 
and off street.   
 

 

Page 94

Page 6 of 153



Castle Close: 

 

1 I have received a letter CPE Variation 6 with regard to parking in Castle Close and the 
proposal to introduce double yellow lines to one side of the road. I am very much in favour of 
this proposal as the current status is both inconvenient and down right dangerous to 
residents. Currently 2 cars parking opposite restrict access up or down the road. It would be 
impossible for an emergency vehicle to access when this occurs. We have on numerous 
occasions had to call police officers out as a result and occasionally vehicles have been 
removed . The current state of affairs is not acceptable and must be changed before a serious 
incident occurs. 
 

2 I just wish to state that I fully support these proposals and hope they can be implemented 
and enforced as soon as possible, which will go a long way to solving the problems being 
experienced by residents. 

Clearly you are aware of the need for such restrictions in this road so there is no need for me 
to repeat them other than to state that the problem in this narrow road has become worse in 
recent months. There are mix of elderly and young people in this road and the double parking 
and /or parking on the pavement by inconsiderate motorists has caused much danger, 
inconvenience and nuisance to residents. (There is at least one person in the road registered 
blind to whom such obstructions cause considerable danger and inconvenience)  

Several times over the last 18 months police have had to attend to remove vehicles blocking 
access, delivery drivers has been unable to gain access, refuse vehicles have been unable 
make collections and the width of the road has been so constricted that emergency vehicles 
would have been unable to gain access. (given the age and health issues of some residents it 
is not unusual for ambulances to have to attend incidents in the road) 

Whilst the double yellow lines are on the opposite side of the road to my home I would still 
support the implementation of these regulations should they have been outside my house. 

I hope this is helpful for your consultation process. 

 
3 I would confirm that I am in favour of your suggested proposal for the following 

reasons; 

As you are no doubt aware the problem in this narrow road has become worse in 
recent months with inconsiderate motorists causing  danger, inconvenience and 
nuisance to residents. 

Several times over the last 18 months police have had to attend to remove vehicles 
blocking access, delivery drivers have been unable to gain access, refuse vehicles 
have been unable to make collections and the width of the road has been so 
constricted that emergency vehicles would have been unable to gain access.  The 
latter is very important given the age and health issues of some residents it is not 
unusual for ambulances to have to attend incidents in the road. 

That said there is a mix of different age groups amongst the residents from young 
children to those who are elderly, some with disabilities. There is at least one person 

Page 95

Page 7 of 153



in the road who is registered blind to whom obstructions such as vehicles parking on 
the footway cause considerable danger and inconvenience. 

I would however wish to suggest an addition to your proposals for double yellow lines 
on the West side of the road in that you consider placing a single yellow line for 
limited waiting (for example 2 hours with no return in 4) through the working day (e.g. 
8-0am – 6-0pm) on the east Side of the road. 

Being a public road, motorists who comply with traffic regulations, are entitled to park. 
However, most of those who park during the day do so for many hours, sometimes for 
days. This means that the available free parking for visitors to the town using local 
shops and amenities for short periods are prevented from parking. This leads to a 
very inefficient use of the parking space. My suggestion would mean that more people 
could park during the day. Similar restrictions are already in place in many nearby 
roads in the town, for example Cock Sparrow Street, which is comparable to Castle 
Close in that all residents have drives at their homes. 

I hope this is helpful for your consultation process. 

 
4 Dear Ben -Thank you for keeping us informed and I have now navigated my way through all 

the paperwork and would support the double yellow lines as way forward. Whilst it will 
help prevent double parking, chicane driving, benefit the siting nurses and service vehicles 
it will not prevent parking all day, overnight and for up to three weeks. As a member at 
Castle Hill Baptist Church not keen on the trees and  the absence of a facility for disabled 
visitors. 
Thanks again  XXXXXXX 
  
Alan Skillicorn 
  
From: Civil Enforcement 
Sent: 12 February 2020 10:29 
To:XXXXXXXX  
Subject: Re: Parking Castle Close Warwick 
  
Dear XXXXXXXXX 
  
I don't know who would have removed the cones from the road. Police may have if 
they received reports, or a contractor working in the local area if they thought that 
they were theirs. 
  
I can confirm that the necessary documents have been sent off to our legal services 
department and they have begun the process of organising the advert in the local 
paper. We will be writing to all the residents in Castle Close when the consultation 
has begun. 
  
Kind Regards 
  
Ben Davenport 
Parking Management 
Traffic and Road Safety Group 

Page 96

Page 8 of 153

mailto:civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk


Communities 
Warwickshire County Council 
Telephone: 01926 410410 
Email: civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Web: www.warwickshire.gov.uk 
Like us on Facebook: www.facebook.com/WarwickshireCountyCouncil 
Follow us on Twitter: twitter.com/warwickshire_cc 
  
  

 
From: XXXXXXXXXX 
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 10:15 AM 
To: Civil Enforcement <civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Parking Castle Close Warwick  
  
For the attention of Ben Davenport 
  
To respect the information given last year that there would be an opportunity for the 
residents to consulted we have held off writing about the continuing inconsiderate all day 
and occasionally many days and nights parking by non residents to allow a breathing space 
for this consultation. However to help a new resident move in over the past two days we 
have been using cones to ask for no parking whilst the vans arrive/depart and return to move 
household goods in. Fantastic neighbourly care. Not so for someone, cones were removed. 
No knock on the door no warning it was an offence, no indication there was a complaint they 
were just removed. Any ideas who might have authorised? 
Look forward to your update on the consultation. 
 

5 We wish to express our support for your proposal to install double yellow 
lines in Castle Close. This will eliminate the nuisance and risk to access 
caused by vehicles parking opposite each other in this narrow road. 
 
Castle Close is also used extensively for all-day parking by people working 
in Warwick town centre or visiting Warwick Castle, although plentiful off-
road parking is available for these motorists. This causes great inconvenience 
to legitimate short-term visitors, parcel deliveries etc.  
 
We therefore urge the County Council also to impose a parking limit (we 
suggest 2 hours) on those parts of Castle Close not marked with double 
yellow lines. 
 

6 Re your letter referencing the above, you have suggested double yellow lines to the 
west side of Castle Close. 
I have no objection and would support this 
 

Page 97

Page 9 of 153

mailto:civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.warwickshire.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7Cb2f48c6d85b24e42dc1e08d7c50961b6%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637194516393869019&sdata=RdRl%2F37qblqxDA4MOWYYBBcSxv4IC4%2FbPHYowNaEaE0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.warwickshire.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7Cb2f48c6d85b24e42dc1e08d7c50961b6%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637194516393869019&sdata=RdRl%2F37qblqxDA4MOWYYBBcSxv4IC4%2FbPHYowNaEaE0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FWarwickshireCountyCouncil&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7Cb2f48c6d85b24e42dc1e08d7c50961b6%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637194516393869019&sdata=3vu1HSCNgWAFZeN%2FCvcVFjHw9P%2FFe9tBD17Wn9Y2Xho%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FWarwickshireCountyCouncil&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7Cb2f48c6d85b24e42dc1e08d7c50961b6%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637194516393869019&sdata=3vu1HSCNgWAFZeN%2FCvcVFjHw9P%2FFe9tBD17Wn9Y2Xho%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fwarwickshire_cc&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7Cb2f48c6d85b24e42dc1e08d7c50961b6%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637194516393879010&sdata=%2BiKiD%2FglRK9ReZOx0UgFZRPE%2BghxUf%2FjbWywyuIDbXY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fwarwickshire_cc&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7Cb2f48c6d85b24e42dc1e08d7c50961b6%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637194516393879010&sdata=%2BiKiD%2FglRK9ReZOx0UgFZRPE%2BghxUf%2FjbWywyuIDbXY%3D&reserved=0
mailto:civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:civilenforcement@warwickshire.gov.uk


7 

 

Page 98

Page 10 of 153



8 

 

Page 99

Page 11 of 153



 
9 

 
1
0 

 
1
1 

I have just received a letter regarding proposals for a variation in parking rules for Castle 
Close and I have concerns about the impact that the plan will have,so I have to offer my 
formal objection to the proposal that has been offered. 
My mother has visiting carers 4 times a day from 8am until 8pm and they travel to our home 
in 2 cars,I do have a drive to offer parking to one of those carers but the other car wont be 

Page 100

Page 12 of 153



able to park behind the first car at the mouth of our drive as double yellows are proposed to 
be in place along our side of the road,although the other side of the road will have no parking 
restrictions for most of it's length I can assure you those spaces will be used for the whole 
day from early in the morning by people that work for local businesses trying to escape 
having to pay for parking in metred streets or avoiding  those that require permits,for 
instance a pub In Warwick often has several cars parking all day on this road,with the location 
of Castle Close being so close to the town centre and also it's proximity to the Castle that 
charge for parking it is the go to place for parking,there will never be an available spot for a 
visiting carer or relative or even a tradesman 
The carers have an important job working under pressures of time and have to arrive 
together it would be completely impractical for one of those cars to have to spend each visit 
trying to find a parking spot in Warwick and possibly having to walk for 20 minutes to get to 
our home,and they may not even find a space. 
I feel that the council should be doing all that they can to help carers in their important role 
in society and help reduce stress,making visits easier and make appointment times easier to 
keep. I have read that some councils have provided an exemption for carers to park on 
double yellows and hope this could be arranged,as the residents parking permits that they 
already have wont be any use, as I said the parking on the other side of the road will be filled 
from early in the morning. 
I look forward to your thoughts on this matter and hope that we can come to a workable 
outcome that will make us feel secure as life is difficult enough without the worry of a care 
package being put in jeopardy 
 

1
2 

I would like to confirm my support for these proposals as per the notice and drawing ref: 
TR\11124-05 
 
As a resident of Castle Close, I have experienced many problems due to inconsiderate 
parking. As the road is not wide enough for double parking I would not expect an overall 
reduction in availability of safe car parking spaces on the road. 
 
The current experience of double parking in the road is that it causes traffic obstructions and 
hazards. Additionally, as the road is a cul-de-sac, just one obstruction at top of road can 
impact a significant number of residents: 

• Preventing resident access to their homes  (3 different example pics 
attached, number 1,2,3) 

• Preventing care workers and nurses accessing patients in the road or 
progressing to their next patient appointment (e.g. police attended 
incident on 5th Dec 2019 and nurse carers waiting over 2 hours, 
missing their next appointments – see pic 4 attached) 

• Preventing emergency vehicles accessing properties 
and residents (highlighted in media by many 
emergency services as a problem) and the 
consequent Health and Safety risks faced by 
residents 

• Preventing refuse collectors collecting rubbish and recycled materials 
(e.g. missed collection 14th February 2020 – see pics 5&6 attached) 

• Preventing Road sweeper and drains/gulley clearance (see pic 7). 

Page 101

Page 13 of 153



• Preventing delivery drivers accessing residents properties, causing 
missed deliveries. 

 

An additional issue is parked vehicles, completely blocking 
pavements in effort to double park (see example pic 8), 
causing hazards and danger to pedestrians, by forcing them 
to step into the road or just an obstruction hazard, most 
notably to a blind resident of Castle Close. 

 

As the purpose of these restrictions is to avoid danger to 
persons or traffic, the implementation of this proposal will 
achieve that aim, in reducing the issue and hazards outlined. 

 
The primary intent must be to prevent double parking on road as the road is not wide 
enough, however I believe the majority of residents would also welcome the addition of a 
residents parking scheme with 2 hour limit on the non-restricted part of the road. As this is 
the closest road to the town centre and Warwick Castle without any parking restrictions, 
many people arrive early in the morning (from 7am on weekdays) and park all day. At 
weekends these are then replaced by castle visitors who park all day. A residents parking 
scheme with a non-resident waiting time limit (as implemented a few metres further up the 
adjoining Castle Street) would stop people parking all day and encourage turnover of short 
term visitors, supporting the local Warwick economy 
  
 I confirm again my support of the proposals and look forward to their implementation as 
soon as practically possible 
 

1
3 

On behalf of the Trustees of Castle Hill Baptist Church I am writing to register an objection to 
part of the proposed scheme.  
Our objection involves the proposed changes to Eastgate outside the church site on Castle 
Hill. 
In our view whilst the widening of the pavement may prove to be more aesthetically 
acceptable nevertheless the provision of trees does obscure our advertising of community 
facilities offered. But more importantly appears to prohibit the currently enjoyed parking for 
the disabled facility. We regularly have up to seven motor cars arriving on a Sunday and 
indeed some weekday evenings jockeying for about five places on double yellow lines for up 
to two hours. and the proposals will provide none due to the width of the carriageway. We 
would appreciate the reconsideration of this proposal shown on the map. By providing 
designated parking facilities for the disabled. 
Could you confirm that the carriageway for down Castle Hill is single for vehicular traffic as no 
direction sign is shown on the published map. In contrast to Northgate Methodist church, 
Castle Hill Baptist Church has adequate provision for a hearse or wedding car as occasions 
arise.  
Thank you. 
 

1
4 

I agree that something needs to be done to improve the parking situation in Castle Close, as it 
is becoming intolerable. Putting double yellow lines down one side of the road will go some 
way to helping the situation and stop double parking. But this will not improve the overall 
parking situation for the residents, and will mean that workers in town will just arrive earlier 
& earlier in the morning to get a space. We would prefer to have residents permit parking on 

Page 102

Page 14 of 153



this road, like ALL the surrounding roads in our area (Castle Lane, Castle Street, Back Lane, 
West Street, St Lawrence Ave, Crompton Street etc).  
We are the nearest road to the town centre and castle (with nearly one million visitors a 
year), with no restricted parking.  
We regularly get castle visitors being instructed to use our road to park, if their disabled car 
park is full. It’s not fair that our road is being used as an overspill car park for the castle. It’s 
even being advertised on a number of social media sites and internet sites (Trip Advisor, Top 
Dog Days), as a free parking place for people to use who don’t want to pay the £7 parking 
charge at the castle.  
We want parking permits, not just double yellow lines!  
 

  
 

Page 103

Page 15 of 153



This is in response to the ongoing consultation about conversion of the double yellow lines into 
additional parking capacity on Chapel Street. 

The Warwick County Council (District of Warwick) CPE Variation 6 Permitted Parking Area and 
Special Parking Area (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984) Waiting restrictions, On-street Parking 

Places and Residents’ Parking (Consolidation) (Variation No. 6) Order 2020 

After a lot of thought and analysis, my wife and I herein formally object to the proposal with 
supporting rationale below: 

1. Aesthetics- The Regent Mews development has exchanged commercial land (AC Lloyd) for 
residential purposes (Regent Mews). This is an attempt to aesthetically improve Leamington Spa and 
parking so close to the houses would detract from this theme. 

a. I believe it would be beneficial for the area to continue the residential theme with a green verge in 
front of the houses, with planting, just extending into the road. This would resemble the street 
further down the road (Russell Terrace) and help improve the area by making it look even more 
residential, family friendly and in keeping with the Regency theme. 

b. When we purchased this property, we recognized and understood the commitment we had to 
take in keeping with the Regency feel, like having wooden sash windows and doors, even though it 
required additional cost and maintenance. 

c. The Regent Mews houses are family homes and as such are owner occupied all year round. The 
student accommodation opposite is only occupied partially throughout the year. Therefore, the 
owner/occupiers of the houses who do pay council tax, will be much more disadvantaged and 
disturbed by parked cars directly outside their homes. 

d. I purchased the house with existing yellow lines out the front, less than 12 months ago. My views 
would have been different had there been car parking permitted outside the front of properties, 
which demonstrates a lower appeal and therefore demand. It is unfair to let us know of this now 
when we have already purchased the house. It should have been conveyed to us when we came for 
a viewing. 

2. Health and Safety 

a. Many of the Regent Mews residents have young families and / or young families visiting. As 
residents (children included) exit their homes, there is currently good visibility for both road users 
and residents to assess risks. With approved parking outside of the homes, this would be hampered, 
dramatically increasing the level of risk and potentially resulting in an increased number of road 
accidents involving pedestrians. 

b. We bought this house as we would like to start a family soon but having cars parked in front of 
our house makes us nervous. We don’t want to be paranoid when our child comes back from school. 
There is no gate/ barrier between our front door and where the cars will be parked. 

3. Noise 

a. We already experience a considerable amount of activity and noise from a variety of sources - 
Salvation Army, drug users, drunks and students (not that I would for one moment put them all in 
one group) - whose behaviour outside our properties is at times deplorable prompting calls to the 
police (shouting, knocking doors, beeping horns and revving engines). Providing more reason for 

Page 104

Page 16 of 153



comings/goings at night is not something I would like to encourage in what is a family residential 
development. 

b. As noted in 1b above, residents were limited to wooden sash windows as part of the planning 
conditions. Compared to UPVC lookalikes, the wooden windows noise insulation is very poor. The 
proposal for additional activity/parking will only compound this discomfort for residents and 
families, all of which have street facing bedrooms. 

c. The plan shown does not reflect the current location of buildings: The new residential houses are 
much closer to the road than the original commercial building was (as depicted on the plan) and this 
would contribute to a greater level of noise in the houses and more specifically, bedrooms which are 
road facing. 

4. Parking demand 

a. Regent Mews residents do not need additional car parking on the road as we have a car park 
constructed at the rear of our properties and thus there is no demand for it. 

b. There have been no neighbouring developments resulting in additional parking demands. 

c. A car park for short period parking exists across the road from the Regent Mews properties and 
often caries a parking space surplus during the day. 

d. The fact that people not using the car park opposite us will leave drink and drug users undisturbed 
and will only exacerbate this problem 

e. If the driver for the parking spaces is demand then evidence should be provided to support there 
is demand in our area, and is not just a wider Leamington issue. 

5. Parking Request by Developers not Residents 

a. The residents of the 9 houses at Regent Mews on Chapel Street haven’t requested additional 
parking as we’ve purchased 2 parking spaces each along with the house. This request was most likely 
made by the developers (Crucian & Co.) and we vehemently disagree to the need for converting the 
double yellow lines into additional parking. 

I feel quite let down by the council; when I looked at the show home, EhB assured me that the 
council was putting money into this area to make it more family friendly. Conversely however, it 
appears now that families are not very welcome as less family friendly measures are being 
introduced. We bought this home thinking it would be a great place to start a family and are now 
having second thoughts about this purchase. Please take into account our views and concerns. 
Thank you. 

This is in response to the ongoing consultation about conversion of the double yellow lines into 
additional parking capacity on Chapel Street. 

The Warwick County Council (District of Warwick) CPE Variation 6 Permitted Parking Area and 
Special Parking Area (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984) Waiting restrictions, On-street Parking 

Places and Residents’ Parking (Consolidation) (Variation No. 6) Order 2020 

After a lot of thought and analysis, my husband and I herein formally object to the proposal with 
supporting rationale below: 

Page 105

Page 17 of 153



1. Aesthetics- The Regent Mews development has exchanged commercial land (AC Lloyd) for 
residential purposes (Regent Mews). This is an attempt to aesthetically improve Leamington Spa and 
parking so close to the houses would detract from this theme. 

a. I believe it would be beneficial for the area to continue the residential theme with a green verge in 
front of the houses, with planting, just extending into the road. This would resemble the street 
further down the road (Russell Terrace) and help improve the area by making it look even more 
residential, family friendly and in keeping with the Regency theme. 

b. When we purchased this property, we recognized and understood the commitment we had to 
take in keeping with the Regency feel, like having wooden sash windows and doors, even though it 
required additional cost and maintenance. 

c. The Regent Mews houses are family homes and as such are owner occupied all year round. The 
student accommodation opposite is only occupied partially throughout the year. Therefore, the 
owner/occupiers of the houses who do pay council tax, will be much more disadvantaged and 
disturbed by parked cars directly outside their homes. 

d. I purchased the house with existing yellow lines out the front. My views would have been 
different had there been car parking permitted outside the front of properties, which demonstrates 
a lower appeal and therefore demand. It is unfair to let us know of this now when we have already 
purchased the house. It should have been conveyed to us when we came for a viewing. 

2. Health and Safety 

a. Many of the Regent Mews residents have young families and / or young families visiting. As 
residents (children included) exit their homes, there is currently good visibility for both road users 
and residents to assess risks. With approved parking outside of the homes, this would be hampered, 
dramatically increasing the level of risk and potentially resulting in an increased number of road 
accidents involving pedestrians. 

b. We bought this house as we would like to start a family soon but having cars parked in front of 
our house makes us nervous. We don’t want to be paranoid when our child comes back from school. 
There is no gate/ barrier between our front door and where the cars will be parked. 

3. Noise 

a. We already experience a considerable amount of activity and noise from a variety of sources - 
Salvation Army, drug users, drunks and students (not that I would for one moment put them all in 
one group) - whose behaviour outside our properties is at times deplorable prompting calls to the 
police (shouting, knocking doors, beeping horns and revving engines). Providing more reason for 
comings/goings at night is not something I would like to encourage in what is a family residential 
development. 

b. As noted in 1b above, residents were limited to wooden sash windows as part of the planning 
conditions. Compared to UPVC lookalikes, the wooden windows noise insulation is very poor. The 
proposal for additional activity/parking will only compound this discomfort for residents and 
families, all of which have street facing bedrooms. 

c. The plan shown does not reflect the current location of buildings: The new residential houses are 
much closer to the road than the original commercial building was (as depicted on the plan) and this 
would contribute to a greater level of noise in the houses and more specifically, bedrooms which are 
road facing. 

Page 106

Page 18 of 153



4. Parking demand 

a. Regent Mews residents do not need additional car parking on the road as we have a car park 
constructed at the rear of our properties and thus there is no demand for it. 

b. There have been no neighbouring developments resulting in additional parking demands. 

c. A car park for short period parking exists across the road from the Regent Mews properties and 
often caries a parking space surplus during the day. 

d. The fact that people not using the car park opposite us will leave drink and drug users undisturbed 
and will only exacerbate this problem 

e. If the driver for the parking spaces is in relation to a demand then evidence should be provided to 
support that there is demand in our area, and is not just a wider Leamington issue. 

5. Parking Request by Developers not Residents 

a. The residents of the 9 houses at Regent Mews on Chapel Street haven’t requested additional 
parking as we’ve purchased 2 parking spaces each along with the house. This request was most likely 
made by the developers (Crucian & Co.) and we vehemently disagree to the need for converting the 
double yellow lines into additional parking. 

I feel quite let down by the council; when I looked at the show home, EhB assured me that the 
council was putting money into this area to make it more family friendly. Conversely however, it 
appears now that families are not very welcome as less family friendly measures are being 
introduced. We bought this home thinking it would be a great place to start a family and are now 
having second thoughts about this purchase. Please take into account our views and concerns. 
Thank you. 

Following the notice letter that we received dated 28th February 2020 we hereby submit our 
objection to the proposed changes to the parking layout that is currently under consultation for 
Chapel Street, Leamington Spa. 

The Warwick County Council (District of Warwick) (Permitted Parking Area and Special Parking 
Area) (Waiting restrictions, On-street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) 

(Variation No 6) Order 2019 

Our objections to this proposal and notice are many, which we will detail below. 

These changes were also proposed back in the summer of July 2016 but not proceeded with at that 
time. We do not feel circumstances have changed since then that now justify the proposal being 
resuggested for implementation, and the majority of the objections raised then remain applicable 
today. 

We fundamentally disagree with the generic reason provided in the “Statement of Reasons” that the 
proposed changes will “preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road 
runs” given the reasons we stated in 2016 – and reiterated below. 

When the Regent Mews houses were built in 2014 / 2015 there were many objections raised 
regarding the planning consent of the conversion of the AC Lloyd commercial property and land to 
residential houses. The main concerns were that it would mean additional cars needing to be parked 
on the roads around Chapel Street, Church Street and George Street. For this reason, parking was an 
essential requirement of the development and has been provided. 

Page 107

Page 19 of 153



For clarity; 

- Regent Mews residents do not need additional car parking on the road as we have had a car park 
constructed at the rear of our properties 

- There have been no new neighbouring developments resulting in additional parking demands in 
this area since 

- A car park for short period parking exists across the road from the Regent Mews properties and 
often carries a parking space surplus during the day, and also during the evening and overnight. 

In addition, the developer’s initial proposal of creating parking spaces in front of the properties was 
actually rejected by your Conversation Officer as part of the planning process. Instead it was advised 
that resident’s vehicles would need to be located at the back – which, as we have advised earlier in 
this objection, has been done in a private car park behind our homes. We are not convinced of any 
grounds why the Conservation Officer would or could now change his/her mind. 

The conversation office also mandated that the new properties be built closer to the road than 
where the AC Lloyd building was located, to improve the Regency feel of the development. This 
being the case our front elevation doors and windows are now closer to the road than would have 
been the case. This means that the potential noise generated by the parking and moving of vehicles 
will be felt more due to the wooden windows and doors (which was another mandate of the 
conversation office, that subsequently was reversed after construction) than would have been the 
case had either of the above measures not been mandated. 

On buying our home, we recognised the conservation area in which we were purchasing and the 
commitments this would entail. Given the limitations and expectations of living in a home in a 
Conservation Area, we would not anticipate the Council creating additional reasons for noise, traffic 
and visitors immediately at our front doors and windows (when we can often already experience a 
considerable amount of activity and noise from a variety of sources as you’re no doubt aware, 
including the anti-social issues relating to the usage in and around the Packington Place carpark) 
when the impact of noise is greater in the type of door and window furniture we have been required 
to have installed. 

We were advised at the point of purchase that the double yellow lines that had been outside AC 
Lloyd for many years would be retained. Our views on the purchase would have been different had 
there been car parking permitted outside the front of our homes. 

We would also challenge how additional parking outside Regent Mews is in keeping with the 
Regency feel, especially when the proposed parking places would not be for resident’s use? Many 
residents of traditional streets of regency houses in Leamington Spa have no choice but to park on 
the street given when their homes were built. We do not suffer from this issue. 

The Regent Mews development was marketed as the kickstart to regeneration and aesthetic 
improvements to this end of Leamington Spa. We were sold our home as an ideal family home, and 
indeed now have a 2 year old daughter’s welfare to think of. There are no gates on the front access 
of the Regent Mews properties, and whilst current road / traffic visibility is good but this would 
change overnight if the double yellow lines were to be removed. In conclusion we feel that the 
Council is again making this more difficult to achieve for genuine professionals looking to build our 
family home and life in this part of town. 

Page 108

Page 20 of 153



We understand that the consultation period will be ending 1st May 2020 and would appreciate your 
reply indicating next steps having now received a formal objection. 

Page 109

Page 21 of 153



Charter Approach: 

 

1 Since the bollards were installed at Charter Approach the parking has improved at the 
entrance and as far as the bollards extend. The problem has now been moved further 
into Charter Approach with cars parking either side of the road just beyond the bollards 
starting outside of number 4 & 5 Charter Approach. Cars parked either side of the road 
makes access very difficult for waste collection, emergencies services or for any vehicles 
of any size needing access into the end of the close. 
 
Additional Bollards. 
In addition to the yellow lines I strongly suggest that additional bollards are installed 
outside 4 & 5 Charter Approach to prevent cars parking there straddling the pavement 
and road. This will then help ensure that cars only park on one side of the road at this 
choke point allowing better access for vehicles that need to reach the end of Charter 
Approach. 
 
This action I suggest would be the least cost/restrictive action to take that would 
improve the overall parking situation for all concerned 

 

Page 110

Page 22 of 153



Cross Road: 

1 In respect of Cross Street/ Oswald Road Junction 
 
It is your intention to restrict parking for 8 meters south of the junctions. 
Currently road markings north of the junction restricts parking for 4 meters which is 
perfectly adequate and should be mirrored in a southerly direction.Parking  can be 
difficult for residents (I am not suggesting permit parking) so that little bit of extra space 
is useful as a number of residents have very small cars.. 
I therefore object to the current proposal and request modification. 
While discussing Oswald Road we still get cars turning from Cross Road and Conway 
Road up Oswald Road contrary to the one way system because of inadequate signage. 
There have been a number near accidents involving cars and pedestrians.Further signs 
are required. 
 

2 The plans outlined look like the double yellow lines stretch further into the streets (in 
places) than I would deem necessary and would limit parking spaces that again I 
wouldn’t deem dangerous, looking online as an example at the exit of Cross Road onto 
Guyscliffe Avenue the yellow lines would stretch to the door of number 9 Cross Road 
where you would not have any visual benefit turning onto Guyscliffe Avenue and vice 
versa turning into Cross Road (as you cannot see far enough into the road from that 
location due to the terraced housing blocking it). However, I can see where the concern 
lies as some drivers are into the road, or within 2 feet of it. 
 
The area suffers with over parking, sometimes I personally have to drive around for 15 
minutes before I get a space when returning from work in the evening. This is already 
unacceptable and especially when arriving back with shopping / luggage / anything 
heavy to lift or having anything delivered to the property, the plans outlined would only 
make this worse. 
 
The area is only a short walk from town yet has none of the restrictions to parking that 
you would have 400 metres closer to the town centre. Hence an easy and cheap place to 
park for work or a social visit into the town….. We also have a local tennis club- without 
parking and 2 pubs within a minute walk again without parking. Over the last few years 
applications have been granted for houses to be turned into apartments / flats- without 
parking. 
 
Personally I think if the area was either pay / display or permitted this would solve most 
of the parking issues and also any road traffic safety concerns. It has been mentioned 
previously that this would impact on the levels of parking specifically down Cross Road 
as many of the cars have to park on both sides of the street as the road is narrow, this 
doesn’t seem to be a problem for other councils whereby parking bays are painted onto 
the pathways, eg Brighton. 
 
And with specific regards to traffic safety, I believe the some of the spaces that are 
currently being parked on are less dangerous than the drivers who drive through the 
area over the speed limit for a 40mph limit let alone a built up residential area. This to 
me would be a more pressing issue with a reasonably high volume of pedestrians using 
the area. 
 
In Summary 

Page 111

Page 23 of 153



We would support the application on the condition that parking could be guaranteed for 
the residents of the area and the yellow lines are limited to an area where they would 
have true benefit to road users. 
 

3 Further to your recent notification of proposals regarding to the addition of 
yellow lines in parts of both Gunnery Terrace and Cross Road 
 
Whilst we welcome these measures we feel you have missed out the most 
important part of the “chicane”. 
 
The corner on the north east side of the junction between Gunnery 
Terrace and Cross Road to the front of number 13 should have double 
yellow lines 
 
This is where parking causes most problems both to residents and to 
delivery vehicles (especial the poor refuse collectors) 
 
Surely this simple addition of double yellow lines to this corner as part of 
the scheme  will solve these problems for once and all 
 

4 Thank you for your letter informing of the proposed changes to parking in Guy's 
Cliffe Road, Cross Street, Rugby Road and other roads intersecting with Guy's 
Cliffe Road. 
 
I support these proposed parking restrictions. They will add considerably to the 
safety of pedestrians using Guy's Cliffe Road, including the many children who 
walk from the two schools located on Guy's Cliffe Avenue. 
 
They will of course, have a deleterious effect on the parking available to the 
residents of Guy's Cliffe Road, but I think they are for they greater good! I hope 
that your discussions will take into account the very heavy parking demands 
made on Guy's Cliffe and other adjacent roads, by users of the commercial 
properties on Guy's Cliffe Road.  
 
Guy's Cliffe Road is also used as a through-route between Warwick Street, New 
Warwick Road and Rugby Road. I think there is a case for speed restrictions on 
Guy's Cliffe Road, again, for pedestrian safety, and would be interested to hear 
your views on this question. 
 

5 I have seen the proposal regarding parking and 'Cross Road and surrounding roads’ and 
would like to make a request. 
 
I have marked the attached map and drawn a blue line on it. The request is the double 
yellow line is extended along Cross Road (on the side shown) as cars park next to the 
entrance between 8 Cross Road and Pyper’s Cottage making it very difficult to come out 
of the entrance to the back of the properties and car parking. The cars park illegally and 
make it dangerous to exit as visibility and the turning circle is significantly reduced. 
 

Page 112

Page 24 of 153



Please can you come back to me if this could be possible? 
 
 

 
 
 
Kind regards, 
 

6 We all have more pressing things to consider, but I still wanted to write about the 
proposed changes to parking restrictions at the junctions with Cross Road (Gunnery 
Terrace, Percy Terrace, Oswald Road).  
I am writing to ask that the Council try first with single yellow lines for the Percy Terrace/ 
Cross Road junction. 
 
The current situation is dangerous and commuter parking on Cross Road means that 
often the bin lorries can’t get through.  However, there is no alternative parking, and I 
hope that starting with single lines on this particular junction - Percy Terrace is the 
widest of the roads - will enable us to get used to the restrictions which I agree are 
necessary, particularly in the working week.  Fighting over parking spaces is never good 
for neighbours. 
 
So the main reasons for this request to start with single yellow are : 
- No alternative parking places 
- Abrupt transition to double yellow at all junctions leading to radical reduction of 
residents’ parking particularly at weekends 
- Need for transitional period to maintain neighbourly good relations. 
 
I do hope you consider this suggestion. 
 

7 In response to the road traffic regulation act notice on Cross Road, as a local resident I 
do not have objections. However I would like to raise a concern regarding access from 
Cross Road into private car parks.  
 
Currently myself and other residents already face challenges entering and exiting the 
property due to the close proximity of parked cars. I am concerned that with restrictions 
on parking space on the road that this may increase.  
 
Please see below images illustrating the current situation. You can see from the tyre 
marks on the road the path cars sometimes I have to take, extending beyond the white 
line. When a car is parked up to the white line and with cars also parked on the opposite 
side of the road it becomes incredibly challenging to manoeuvre.  
 

Page 113

Page 25 of 153



I would therefore strongly request that a solution is found to alleviate this, rather than 
add to the problem, to ensure we have clear access to the drive way e.g the white line is 
extended further (especially to the left when facing it) or double yellow lines are 
extended across this entrance way / opposite.  
 

 

Page 114

Page 26 of 153



1.  
Hi Rory 

Emscote Road – Limited Waiting 2 hours, No return 4 hours, 8am-8pm, W3 Exemption 

I’ll like to object to this extension of the parking restrictions. 

I am in favour of improving the parking on Emscote Road and specifically, the provision of 
parking restriction with resident’s permits. However, the proposed restrictions only apply to 
the North side of Emscote Road. This will push more parking onto the South side making 
parking more difficult for residents. 

Note also that the published plan TR\11124 – 11 is incorrect, in that it fails to show two bays 
on the South side of the road, opposite to the bays where the proposed restrictions would 
apply. 

Any new scheme should apply to both sides of the road. 

Thank you. 

Best regards 

 

XXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXX 

XX Emscote Road Warwick CV34 4PP 

 

2.  
Thanks. Appreciate the difficulty. Will make a note to check again before deadline. As 
there doesn’t appear to be much info on the web, it’s helpful to have some 
background! 

               XXXXXXX 

 
 

On 27 Mar 2020, at 15:50, PMC WCC <pmc@warwickshire.gov.uk> wrote: 

Hi XXXXXXXX, 

 

I'll have to check (still getting used to working entirely from home without access to 
all the files and notes we keep!) but as I recall the intention was for both sides of the 
road to be eligible for permits, but only one side to have permit bays.  The idea is not 
to remove all parking for non-residents but to provide enough spaces to cope with 
the limited resident demand during the day, plus the majority of even numbered 
houses have off-street parking so take-up of permits would be expected to be quite 
low. 

 

Page 115

Page 27 of 153

mailto:pmc@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:pmc@warwickshire.gov.uk


Regards, 

PMC 

Hello again 

I should have asked: 

All of 1-17 eligible or odd numbers only? 

The bays outside the even numbers don’t appear to be included. 

Thanks 

XXXXXXXXX 

 
 

Dear Ms XXXXXX,  

 

Thanks for your e-mail.  I can confirm that numbers 1-17 would become eligible to 
apply for W3 permits if the scheme progresses. 

 

I hope this helps, 

 

Regards, 

PMC 

  

Dear Madam/Sir  

Thank you for consulting us on these proposals. We note that the consultation period has 
now been extended. 

 

To help with considering this, please would you advise: as the proposals would make the 
road outside numbers 1-17 (odd numbers) restricted, apart from W3 permit-holders, is it 
proposed to extend W3 permit area to include those of us living at these addresses? 

 

I could find no mention of this in the documents, but I may be mistaken.  

Please advise 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XX Emscote Road 

3.  

Page 116

Page 28 of 153



XXXXXXXXXX 
XX Emscote Road, Warwick CV34 4PP 

Telephone XXXXXXXXXXX 
e-mail XXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 
Rory O’Connor,  
Traffic and Road Safety 
PO Box 43 shire Hall 
Warwick 
CV34 4SX 
 

3 February, 2021 
 
Dear Mr O’Connor 

Warwick district CPE Variation 6 

We have been notified of this consultation by our neighbours. 
We wish to object to the scheme as presented to us. 
I was delegated by our local Neighbourhood Watch group to request a residents’ 
parking scheme, writing to you last year, but also in 2016. In my letters I said that as 
we are the first unrestricted parking on this approach to town we are plagued by 
people commuting – whether by car in order further to commute by train or to walk to 
a place of work in Warwick. If someone leaves a space before around 9:30 it is 
rapidly taken by a car which then does not move until the end of the day. This means 
that a resident who has to leave before 9 am usually finds it very difficult to return in 
the course of the day and the chances of a visitor finding a space are remote.  
You show only one layby on the south side of the road. There are in fact 3. If 
occupied by considerate neighbours, these can hold 3, 2 and 2 cars. If occupied by 
thoughtless or selfish outsiders, these laybys frequently only hold 2, 1 and 1 cars. 
Leaving these laybys uncontrolled would put them under even more pressure from 
commuters and therefore the laybys on the north of the road would still be under 
great competition.  
The scheme also does not mention the east side of Ilex Court, which is generally 
occupied by four cars attached to the south side of Emscote Road. Those spaces 
need to be part of the scheme in order to maintain anything approaching an 
equilibrium between supply and demand. 
In the advertised paperwork I can find no explanation on how the residents’ parking 
zone would be operated. If you only intend to offer parking passes to the residents 
on the north side, the situation for us residents on the south side would actually be 
worse than now, as we would not be able to use a space across the road without 
having to try and move every 2 hours. 
If you do propose offering us parking permits, the scheme would still not provide 
enough spaces for residents, visitors, park visitors and school parents. 
May I also complain that we did not receive a consultation letter from you and would 
not have known about it were it not for our neighbours across the road. This is 
particularly ironic given that the initial communications to you were from me. It seems 
that WCC has adopted the same policy as it did over the Warwick 20mph zone: don’t 

Page 117

Page 29 of 153



consult the people who are likely to complain that the scheme is not extensive 
enough. 
Yours sincerely, 

XXXXXXXXXX 

 

4.  
I support the proposed limited waiting on north side of Emscote Road from a point 10 
metres west of the junction with Ilex Court for 70 metres westward. 

 

I look forward to the implementation allowing users for the park and leisure centre 
space to park, rather than the all day parking that often occuds currently. 

 

XXXXXXXXXXX 

 

XX Emscote Road, CV34 4PP 

 

5.  
Dear Rory O' Conner , 

 

 I'm sending this email to you in your capacity as a Traffic & Road Safety Officer with 
Warwickshire County Council . 

 I am a resident of Ilex Court ( No XX ) off Emscote Road . Responding to the letter I 
received vis a vis consultation 

 period appertaining to changes to parking restriction , westward on the north side . - Starting 
after 10 metres - immediately from the turn / junction into Ilex Court , for a distance of 70 
metres . 2 hrs. parking no return for 4 hrs. 

 I wish to register a strong objection on the grounds that the proposals will severely 
exacerbate the problems in 

  Ilex Court , unless similar proposals are implemented within the actual Court . Its not hard 
to understand that between the given hours , 8am to 8pm the close proximity of Ilex Court 
will be used to circumvent the new restrictions . Emscote 

  Road Guest Houses and residents along with other motorists , identify the convenience . 
The police have been contacted from time to time during my 30 plus years living in the Court 
. With the often dangerous problems, emanating from various vehicles parked over ones 
dropped crossing . I hope it will be recognised that residents of Ilex Court cannot be left out 
of the consideration . The Emscote Road changes treated in isolation to near neighbours 
and the impact on them , will not 

Page 118

Page 30 of 153



   be conducive to a harmonious , resolved road traffic and parking situation ! 

 

   Yours Faithfully , 

 

    XXXXXXXXXX 

   & 

    XXXXXXXXXX 

     

 

6.  
Hello, 

 

My name: XXXXXXXXXXXX 

Address: XX Ilex court, Warwick, CV344PJ 

 

Regarding the proposal (Emscote Road - " Existing unrestricted parking bays to be restricted 
to 2 hour limited waiting bays with W3 residents permit exemptions ") 

This will highly likely generate an increase of "wild" parking in Ilex court. The people not able 
to park the full day on the Emscote road will move to the streets nearby.. 

We are already experiencing bad parking habits in Ilex Court. In addition during school pick 
up or drop off time we get cars stopped in proximity of our driveways. 

 

Would it be possible to have street marking and something like the current proposal also for 
Ilex Court please? 

 

Thanks  

Regards 

XX 

 

 

7.  
Good Afternoon Rory O'Connor 

 

Page 119

Page 31 of 153



Regarding the restricted parking along the Emscote Road in the waiting bays indicated on 
your map on the left-hand side of Emscote Road going from Warwick to Leamington Spa is 
great - but I do not see the 2 smaller parking bays on the other side of the road on your 
map!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!  There is a bay which holds 3 vehicles  outside No's 10, 12 Emscote Road 
and another one holding 1 vehicle outside No 8 Emscote Road - are they also to be included 
in the restricted 2 hour limit?  I feel they all should be included and your map updated. 

 

Yours sincely 

 

XXXXXXXXXX XX Ilex Court 

Page 120

Page 32 of 153



1.  
I fully support DOUBLE YELLOW LINES as planned for Fernhill Drive. 
Many thanks 
XXXXX XXXXXX. 
Number XX. 
 
Sent from my iPad 

 

2.  

Although we at no XX would welcome the double lines suggested especially on the blind corners we 
fear that we will have cars permanently parked outside our house. We would suggest double lines 
right down the street. Cars are already parked on the pavement blocking transit by pushchairs and 
mobility scooters forcing them into the road. Residents have ample car parking on their properties. 
So double lines up both sides of the length of the street shouldn’t cause a serious problem. Bring on 
the lines. 

XXXXX & XXXXXX XXXXXXXXX 

Sent from my iPad 

 

3.  

Firstly, many thanks for the letter received today regarding proposals for changes to parking 
arrangements, in particular, relating to Fernhill Drive, Leamington, where I reside. I also have 
comments regarding Newbold Terrace East which is in our vicinity and has an effect on the parking 
load on Fernhill Drive. 

 

Firstly, regarding Fernhill Drive, we live at number XX, your proposal identifies double yellow lines 
extending from 21 A, across the Western Power Distribution sub-station frontage and across our 
driveway ending beyond our driveway dropped crossing. At the moment, we have marked white 
lines in this area, frequently, we have cars parked outside our property (not on the white lined area) 
this is virtually all the normal working day, every day, but increasingly at the weekends typically for 
people using the Newbold Leisure Centre. We normally get the same cars during the week left by 
people who park their cars there and walk into the town for work.  At the moment, whilst this is 
frustrating for us residents, there is nothing to stop this. The problem arises when we either have to 
move our vehicles around, have visitors or workmen arriving at our property, at the moment, we can 
use the white lined area, if you put double yellow lines all the way across our dropped crossing, this 
will cause problems for us. Please could you consider not putting the double yellow lines over our 
dropped crossing. 

 

The double yellow lines around the corner at our end of the road are totally supported subject to the 
caveat in the paragraph above. 

 

Page 121

Page 33 of 153



Moving up the road, you are proposing double yellow lines on the right hand side only round the 
bend after No 7, the concern here is no double yellows on the left hand side, has this been 
considered because all that will happen is that cars will park on the left hand side of an already 
narrow road.  

 

Noting how the double yellow lines around the school at the junction of Fernhill Drive/Upper Holly 
Walk are treat with ignorance particularly by parents at school arrival and leaving times,  what actual 
enforcement of these new restrictions will be provided and by whom? 

 

Just a comment on the proposals on Newbold Terrace East, you are proposing double yellow sectors 
as ‘passing places’ on the left hand side as you drive up the road, whilst this will help, it doesn’t 
address the serious issue at the curve of the road which is on a slight incline, traffic travels too fast 
on this section and it would help if the yellow lined area could be extended a further 20 metres in 
the direction of the Leisure Centre and joined up with the other ‘passing place’ travelling towards 
the town. Also, has there been any consideration of a lowering of the speed limit on Newbold 
Terrace East.. 

 

I trust you will find my comments and observations useful and would welcome further discussion. 

 

Many Thanks 

 

XXXXX XXXXXXX 

 

XXXXX XXXXX 

 

XX Fernhill Drive 

Leamington 

CV32 4JX 

 

4.  

Ref; Warwick District CPE Variation 6 

 

As residents of Fernhill Drive, We are pleased to see the proposals to restrict parking, on the sharp 
corners at both ends of the street. Parking on the street has increased significantly over the last few 
years, as has through traffic, particularly since the re-opening of the now very popular leisure centre. 
Parking on the sharp corners is now common and there have been many 'near misses' resulting from 

Page 122

Page 34 of 153



the poor visibility caused by these parked cars. This is particularly concerning because Fernhill Drive 
is commonly used by children on their way to and from St Paul's School. 

 

We support the proposals to introduce double yellow lines on the sharp corners and suggest that, to 
further improve safety: 

 

- At the north end, the restrictions should be on both sides of the sharp bend. 

- At the south end, the restrictions should be continuous on both sides of the road from the junction 
with Newbold Terrace East until after the bend. 

 

XXXXX XXXXXX and XXXXXXX XXXXXX 

 

5.  

  

 

Dear Sirs,  

 

I live at number X Fernhill Drive.  My main interest is in the proposed changes to yellow lines at the 
north end of the road.   

 

Page 123

Page 35 of 153



Both ends of the road are made hazardous by vehicles cutting the corners -at the north end from 
vehicles turning right from Upper Holly Walk and at the south end from vehicles leaving Newbold 
Comyn Park and turning right into Fernhill Drive.  The current double yellow lines at the north end of 
Fernhill Drive are in my view too short and are roughly one car lengths.  With cars parking in daytime 
on the East side of the road  my normal process when trying to turn right  into Fernhill Drive from 
Upper Holly walk is to pause at the junction to check for northbound traffic on Fernhill Drive.  With 
the bend you can still get caught out and you still have the option if you have started to turn and a 
northbound vehicle appears around the north bend in Fernhill Drive to pause on the double yellow 
lines.  If partway down that north end and a vehicle appears around the bend in most cases the 
white lined areas at the drive entrances give an option to duck in to allow the northbound car to 
pass.  Due to the congestion at the Upper Holly Walk/Fernhill Drive junction, reversing is usually a 
very dangerous option for the southbound driver.  I have at one stage decided to drive into a 
neighbours drive at No 2 when inconsiderate parkers have parked over the white driveway areas 
(ruling out that option) and the oncoming driver is not prepared to reverse. 

 

Most of the parking issues in Fernhill Drive are in my view due to parents and school staff parking.  
Most regular daytime parkers park on the East side of Fernhill Drive.  Sometimes the parking 
situation is exacerbated when someone parks on the West side.  I attach a photo of a recent attempt 
of a TNT lorry being unable to weave between parked cars. He hooted his horn until one moved.  
Sometimes it is not the driver of the car who has parked on the west side of the road who is at fault 
having parked first, but inconsiderate parking of the driver who arrives later and parks on the east 
side and not allowing enough space for larger vehicles to zigzag between them. 

 

In my view extensive use of double yellow lines in Fernhill Drive without time restrictions is unduly 
harsh on residents where most of the issue is caused by the school.  Could they be limited to say 8-6 
for stretches that are beyond the minimum from the junction? 

 

Secondly I view the use of double yellow lines as proposed on the East side of the north end of 
Fernhill Drive would move parking to the West side on that stretch.  This resolves my current issue of 
turning right into Fernhill Drive from Upper Holly Walk and gives me priority travelling south but 
moves the problem to when I want to travel north up Fernhill drive with a view to turning left into 
Upper Holly Walk.  In fact it makes it harder as the only driveway space to duck into is outside no 2 
and that may, under the proposals be squeezed by parking either side of that driveway  Should 
consideration be given to yellow lines being put on the west side of Fernhill Drive to the North of the 
drive at no 2 to ensure that north bound traffic can see southbound traffic before deciding to 
overtake cars parked on the west side? I attach a photo showing the driveway white line outside No 
2 looking up towards the junction with Upper Holly Walk.  Some parking restriction in my view is 
needed between that driveway and the school sign to ensure that there is enough space for 
northbound cars to have a clear view of the junction without the view being obscured by parked 
cars.   

 

There may of course be increased aggravation over drivers who sweep right from Upper Holly Walk 
into Fernhill Drive without first checking to see if there is a northbound car as there will be no space 

Page 124

Page 36 of 153



to pass, thus forcing one car to reverse whilst currently we have a driveway or 2 to duck into. Maybe 
a warning sign is needed on the corner. 

 

One last point I have is that although most cars at present park on the East side of the road, I do 
have issues at present when vehicles park outside my property (even if parked partially on the 
pavement) close to my driveway entrance particularly because cars are frequently parked outside no 
7 as turning right into my garage becomes an issue. So if generally the changes move parkers to the 
west side I will be in trouble! The cars parked outside no 7 already make it a tight squeeze to reverse 
out of my drive when I want to go south down Fernhill Drive. 

 

XXXXXX XXXXXXXXX 

 

6.  

Dear Rory 

 

Thank you for your letter regarding the New Yellow lines to be placed at Fearnhill Drive . Please find 
attached a PDF. I have marked black lines where I feel the parking should be .As at the moment the 
parking that’s available in front of number 60 blocks off our drive a means we regularly have to do a 
3 point turn or more to enter and exit the drive . Which has left us at risk when cars are coming 
round the corner from Newbold Terrace East at speed . I feel it would be safer to move the proposed 
parking to just past number 61 on the right as this would not impede any one and would move the 
parked cars further away from the junction. Thank you for your time please feel free to call me if you 
feel there is anything that is un clear.  

 

Regards 

 

XXXXXXXX XXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX  

XX Newbold Terrace East  

Tel XXXXX XXX XXX  

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10 

Page 125

Page 37 of 153



 

 

7.  

Hi, 

 

I received a letter notifying me about the proposed double yellow lines to create passing places on 
Newbold Terrace East.  I don't think the plans go quite far enough and need further areas of double 
yellow lines further down the road to allow safer pedestrian crossing.   

 

There are two road crossing places close to the Fernhill Drive junction where the path on the comyn 
side has a formal crossing area to the other side and these are often completely blocked by parked 
cars. The crossing places are dangerous as visibility around the cars is poor, forcing you to get well 
into the road between the parked cars before you can see if the road is clear. The crossings are 
generally used by children making their way to St Pauls School, or to the sports centre or park, and 
they are often on bikes. I see so many close shaves here. The parked cars also make it very awkward 
for people with push chairs etc to cross the road.  

 

I would like to see double yellow lines in front of the pedestrian crossings to prevent cars blocking 
them thereby creating a safer road crossing.  

 

best regards, 

Page 126

Page 38 of 153



  

XX XXXXXXX 

XX Newbold Terrace East 

Leamington 

 

8.  

 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

I live at XX Fernhill Hill Drive and would like to make the following comments. 

 

I support the proposed double yellow lines from the junction of Newbold Terrace East round the 
corner of Fernhill Drive. Parking around this corner on high traffic parking demand days has been 
very dangerous for a while.  

 

I support the proposed double yellow lines for passing bays on Newbold Terrace East. 

 

I object to there being no proposed double yellow lines to protect the dropped kerb crossing points 
at the junction of Newbold Terrace East and Fernhill Drive. These are regularly blocked by 
inconsiderate parking and this makes it dangerous for families and children to cross the road. This 
route and crossing is used twice a week by children at St Paul's C of E School to walk to and from 
swimming. We also have neighbours with mobilty issues who frequently can not use the crossing 
point. The attached photo was taken yesterday morning. It is also very difficult to see traffic coming 
when crossing the road due to the proximity of the nearest parked car or van.This will only get worse 
as parking is restricted further. 

 

Page 127

Page 39 of 153



I object to the proposed double yellow line round the corner at the top of Fernhill drive at the end 
which joins Upper Holly Walk.  At school pick up and drop off times it is very difficult to drive round 
this corner as the available parking is full  and you cant see round the corner. At the moment the 
parking happens on the other side of the road and passing gaps are provided by the driveways. But 
the proposal will force parking to the other side with no passing opportunities, unless you go up 
onto the pavement or reverse at times when there are lots of children about. I feel this will be very 
dangerous and lead to grid lock, as at these times traffic volume is high in both directions and there 
will be no passing opportunity for about 50m. I think you need to take the double yellow lines round 
the corner on the other side of the road at least. 

 

Thank you for considering my comments. 

 

XXXXXX XXXX 

 

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 

 

9.  

I notice that you are advertising new restrictions along a section of Newbold Terrace East to 
facilitate passing places. 

 

Please could you also consider the following: 

 

There are two dropped kerbs on Newbold Terrace East opposite the junction with Fernhill Drive. 
They are often blocked by parked cars, making the dropped kerbs inaccessible. This makes the 
crossing points dangerous at best, as pedestrians are forced to cross between the parked cars, and 
impossible for anyone using a wheelchair or with a pushchair. 

 

Both the crossings are well used by local children and anyone visiting the leisure centre or the other 
facilities of Newbold Comyn. 

 

Double yellow lines across the two dropped kerbs would act as a further visual reminder to drivers 
not to park there.  

 

Many thanks, 

 

XXXXXX XXXXXXXX 

Page 128

Page 40 of 153



10.  

This email is from 11 residents of 6 properties in Newbold Terrace East, some of whom may also be 
responding separately. It has been copied to their email addresses above- 

 

XXXXX and XXXXX XXXXX no.XX 

XXXXX and XXXX XXXXXX no.XX 

XXXXX XXXX and XXXX XXXXXXX no.XX 

XXXXX and XXXXX XXXX no.XX 

XXXXX and XXXXXX XXXXXXXX no.XX 

XXX XXXXXX no.XX 

 

With regard to the proposals for 2 passing places on Newbold Terrace East, we submit the following 
comments with the objective of improving safety:- 

 

1. Newbold Terrace East is now a very busy street, with a significant increase in vehicles of all sorts, 
cyclists and pedestrians since the Leisure Centre was extended, its facilities more widely promoted, 
and more activity is taking place on the Comyn. This has increased the safety risks for all users of the 
street. We have witnessed on several occasions, large vehicles coming in opposite directions 
blocking the street for many minutes, sometimes for over half an hour, which could jeopardise lives 
if emergency vehicles cannot get through. 

 

2. Many vehicles do not slow down when other vehicles are approaching them from the opposite 
direction. And some vehicles exceed 30 mph particularly in the evenings. A speed restriction of 20 
mph should be imposed on the whole street to reinforce the message that the street is narrow and 
dangerous particularly where cars are parked on both sides and where the street bends. 

 

3. The two new passing places proposed for vehicles might improve safety, but the gap between 
them of 100m is too long to avoid vehicles moving in the opposite direction entering the areas 
where vehicles are parked on both sides. Reducing the gaps between the passing places would 
improve safety. This could be achieved by extending the double yellow lines on the south side of the 
street from the traffic lights by a further 20m, and putting in a third passing place so that gaps 
between them are about 60m. The extension of the double yellow lines on the south side of the 
street from the traffic lights is desirable anyway as this is the narrowest part of the street and would 
improve safety. 

 

Page 129

Page 41 of 153



4. During the day, vehicles are frequently parked across the pedestrian crossing points from the 
pathway in the green area opposite Fernhill Drive. These two crossing points should be protected by 
double yellow lines to avoid pedestrians having to cross the street between closely parked vehicles.  

There should be a similar additional protected crossing point further up the street opposite the cul 
de sac as this is where residents and other pedestrians frequently cross to enter or leave the safer 
pathway in the green area. 

 

11.  

To: Rory O’Connor 

From: XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX 

X, Fernhill Drive 

 

Dear Rory, 

 

Thank you for your letter on changes to parking restrictions in Fernhill Drive. I have looked at these 
but cannot see them on the website at the time of typing this email. 

 

Thank you also for your interest in Fernhill Drive - parking and road safety certainly needs attention. 
However, I do not support the proposed double yellow lines at either end of Fernhill Drive because 
they will push the parking problem further into Fernhill Drive and result in: 

 

• more difficulties driving up/down the Drive  

• more parking outside houses in the Drive which will bring more access problems for house 
owners 

• more parking on the pavement  

• increased risk of an accident  

 

My recommended options for dealing with the parking problem in Fernhill Drive are: 

 

Option 1  

A key problem for Fernhill Drive is all day parking by workers whom I assume are walking to offices 
and shops in town. As a result, residents can often find it difficult to move their cars on/off their own 
drives. In addition, because of the congestion, people park on the pavement making walking along 
the pavement difficult. This is a particular problem for people with pushchairs etc and disabilities.   

 

Page 130

Page 42 of 153



A good way forward would be to introduce a restricted parking scheme for Fernhill Drive to stop all 
day parking, for example, prohibit parking between 2 and 3pm. This would leave more space for  
residents to access their drives and school pick-ups. Residents could purchase passes to park during 
the restricted times if they wished. 

 

Option 2   

Restrict parking on Fernhill Drive to Residents Only.  

 

I look forward to hearing from you with new proposals, 

 

Best regards, 

XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX 

 

12.  

 

Good Afternoon 

 

Please forward this e-mail to: 

 

Rory O’Connor - Traffic and Road Safety 

 

With reference to the above consultation on parking restrictions at Fernhill Drive, please will you 
confirm that the consultation period has been extended to Friday 1st May? 

 

I had telephoned to confirm this and due to the Coronavirus note that your answer phone message 
states that your offices are closed and staff are working from home. 

 

Until I checked on the web site, I had intended to ask for an extension to the consultation period, 
due to the measures put in place by the Government to deal with the virus (one of the reasons we 
have been unable to meet up and discuss these proposals with our neighbours).  

 

Thank you 

 

Page 131

Page 43 of 153



XXXXX XXXXX 

X Fernhill Drive 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

Dear Ms XXXXX, 

 

I can confirm that the consultation period has been extended to May 1st.  Due to the extremely 
short-notice preparations which had to be made in order to shift to a remote working model, a 
number of notices were late being put up on street (and they now seem a bit redundant, given how 
few people can or should be out to see them!) hence we have pushed back the deadline for 
objections. 

 

We're still picking up the various comments and objections coming in - I appreciate that things are 
difficult at the moment with co-ordinating a response amongst neighbours and other interested 
parties, so we'll keep your correspondence on file as a "full response pending". 

 

Regards, 

 

Phil 

 

Thank you very much for your prompt response.   

 

You are quite correct.  Our road has not been this quiet, with no issues with parking and 
inappropriate traffic using our (residential) road for a very, very long time!  

 

Thanks again 

 

Best Regards 

 

XXXXX XXXXX 

Sent from my iPhone 

Page 132

Page 44 of 153



1.  

Good evening, 
 
I am writing to state my full support for the proposed parking restrictions in Gas Street.   
 
Between the pavement parking and fly tipping it is difficult to walk down the street at the best of 
times.  People have become very selfish in their parking, as a pedestrian, often I can barely squeeze 
through as cars are monopolising the pavement, you would not fit a push chair or wheel chair and 
certainly not a mobility scooter through these gaps 99% of days. 
 
Thank you for taking this action, 
 
XXXXX XXXXXX 
XX Gas Street 
 
 

2.  

 
 
I fully support Option 4 for Gas Street / Priory Street. 
 
As a long term resident of Priory Street I have suffered the commuter parking chaos and disturbance 
for far too long. The Proposed Waiting Restrictions should solve many problems. 
 
Access for emergency vehicles will be quicker once the often ridiculous parking in Gas Street is 
prevented. 
Access for service vehicles will be safer and easier. 
Exceptionally stupid parking in Priory Street will be prevented by double yellow lines (see attached 
image for an example, yes, both vehicles are parked, neither on double yellow lines) Disturbance 
prior to 06:00 will be hugely reduced by commuter vehicles having nowhere to park. 
Residents will be able to park near their homes. 

Page 133

Page 45 of 153



Delivery and contractor vehicles will be able to park. 
The grass margin in Gas Street will not act as a rubbish magnet after being churned up by parking. 
The footways will be usable by pedestrians who regularly have to walk in the carriageway because of 
bad parking. 
There will be no further occurences of 'parking rage' between residents and commuters. 
 
I also note that there is no possibility of unintended consequences in respect of health and safety 
because the proposed waiting restrictions effectively achieve by restriction the exact same parking 
that existed historically, prior to commuter parking. 
 
Finally I must thank the planning department for persevering in finding an optimal solution. Option 4 
really was far better than the 3 options we previously commented on. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
XXXXX XXXXXX 
X Priory Street 
 
 

Page 134

Page 46 of 153



XXXXXX XXXXXX, 

XXX Greville Road, 

Warwick  

CV34 5PL 

26th March 2020 

 

                                                              Dear Sir, 

                                                                         With regard to the proposals of changes to parking 
restrictions on Greville Road, I will be pleased to see the Disabled parking bay taken away, it has 
been redundant for years; in fact I reported the fact a few years ago.  

In regard to the Yellow lines, I would personally like to see them extended on the East side of 
Greville Road, (the even house number side) , down to the bottom of the road. 

I would also like to see the existing yellow lines removed outside nos. 92,94,96 and 98, as although 
residents can park at the rear, they have to carry shopping etc all the way up their long gardens, and 
up steps to their houses. Visitors to these houses are forced to find parking in nearby side streets, 
sometimes hundreds of yards away. For over 50 years, parking was permitted there, and there was 
never any issue of accidents or disabled people not being able to get past. 

I have written to your department before regarding this, (as have my neighbours), I was told there 
are safety issues because of visibility being obstructed, but do not believe this to be true. 

 

                                                      Yours Sincerely, 

 

                                                             XXX XXXXXX 

Page 135

Page 47 of 153



1.  

Dear Rory O'Connor, 

 

Many thanks for you letter regarding proposed parking restrictions that will involve the road outside 
our front door at X Avon Road in Whitnash. We recieved your letter dated 28/2/20 today. We have 
looked at the proposed plans and reasoning behind it. 

 

We absolutely understand the concern for road safety regarding keeping the end of the road 
towards the junction clear. Safety is always a number one priority. We have noticed over the past 
few months the builders that are working on a property on Heathcote road keep parking right on the 
junction to Heathcote Road. We have asked them to move on several occasions regarding these 
concerns as you cannot see clearly to get out of the street. We always try to park as near to our gate 
as possible and never obstruct the junction. 

 

Parking on Avon Road is very difficult at the best of times. You will see from your records that we 
discussed with the planning office last month about getting a dropped kerb to put a drive on our 
property to ease this problem. As the road is class D we do not require planning persmission but we 
are in the process of applying to the council for consent as we were advised. We are getting quotes 
for a drive but we fear it may not be possible because of the water drain access on our land, where 
we would endevour to place the drive.  

 

People from Heathcote road always park in our street, making it a challenge to park in the street, let 
alone outside our property. If there is an event at the social club, our street becomes impossible to 
park in also. At the moment many of the Avon Road residents are elderly and do not own a car. We 
think in the future more and more car owers will live in the street and thus this will compound the 
current problem. 

 

Of course we would prefer not to have the double yellow lines because we feel this will contribute to 
a worse overall parking situation in the street and people ultimately parking in more hazardous 
places. May I add that our main access to our property is from the gate directly leading onto Avon 
Road and people often block our entrance, which has made it very difficult when needing to get in 
and out the door. 

 

We definitely would support parking permits for the residents of Avon Road only to park on Avon 
Road and not Heathcote road. We are seriously worried people will block our property access if you 
do go ahead with this without permits. We do think there would need to be a solution for the 
residents of Heathcote road though. We will do our best to get a drive onto our property but should 
this not be possible because of the water hole we would suggest the council try and move it so we 
can put a drive in or contribute towards the cost of putting a drive in, to enable better parking in the 

Page 136

Page 48 of 153



street. If you do agree to go ahead with the double yellow lines, please could this be put into place 
after our drive has been completed. 

 

We would love not to have two cars and rely on public transport more but unfortunately given the 
nature of our jobs, this is not possible.  

 

We hope this makes sense in explaining that we do not believe just adding double yellow lines will 
solve this already difficult problem. Clearly we also appreciate your concerns and agree the parking 
situation needs to improve. We can understand it may seem like an quick solution for you but we 
feel it is certainly not a sustainable option for the future. We look forward to hearing back from you. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

Dr XXXXXX XXXX and Dr XXXXXX XXXXXXX (Owners of X Avon Road) 

 

2.  

Dear Rory O’Connor 

 

I have received a letter from yourself entitled Warwick District CPE Variation 6 which refers to 
‘parking restrictions which will affect your street’. However, when I visit the WCC webpage 
(www.warwickshire.gov.uk/trafficschemes), my street (Acre Close) is not listed on the webpage. 
Please could you therefore clarify which street you are referring to?  

Thank you 

XXXXXXXXX XXXXXX 

 

Dear XXXXXXXX XXXXXX, 

 

Thank you for your email, we are proposing restrictions for Heathcote Road, and due to your 
proximity to the proposed restrictions you have been included in the consultation process. 
Additionally we have extended the consultation process from the 1st of May 

 

Kind Regards, 

 

Rory O'Connor 

Page 137

Page 49 of 153



3.  

Dear Sir 

 

I wish to object the proposed scheme to add double yellow lines alone the section of Heathcote 
Road from the present line upto and around the corner in to Avon Road. 

 

As shown below. 

 

It is not the concept of the yellow line to which I object it is the consequences of the yellow lines. 

 

On any give day there will only be one or two cars parked in this area, normally the disabled person 
at 9 and their health worker and sometimes number 25 will park on the Road. 

So the normal value of the scheme is limited and the people effected are already at a disadvantage. 

 

The reason for my objection is the impact the scheme will have in Avon Road. We already have 
enough cars in Avon Road and do not need any more No.11 already park in Avon Road all the time 
and other visitors to Heathcote Road have been seen parking in Avon Road.  On a good day we have 
15 car park on our street but I have counted 35 on a bad day.  We have some residents with four 

Page 138

Page 50 of 153



cars in a single house with no off road parking and other housings with child between 16 and 19 who 
will shortly start driving.   

 

You cannot implement this planned scheme without , 

 

1 - Arrangement for those in Heathcote Road without off road parking to park. 

2 – A solution to the Avon Road parking which does not add a financial cost to the households of 
Avon Road. (We do not want to pay for parking permits to park for our own street). 

 

I would also question what safety issues have been identified to justify scheme. 

 

Your sincerely  

 

XXXXXX XXXXXX 

XX Avon Road 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10 

 

4.  

Dear Rory, 

 

Having received your letter dated 28th Feb, 2020 regarding the introduction of parking restrictions in 
our vicinity, I am writing to add my support at least in part to the proposed introduction of yellow 
lines. As a resident of Avon Road, parking is at a premium as things stand (and yes, we knew this 
when we moved in 20 years ago but it's become a lot worse since then) and it is not helped by 
residents from Heathcote Road parking on Avon Road, in particular right at the bottom of the road 
on the corner so that it becomes extremely difficult to see when trying to pull out onto Heathcote 
Road and narrows the entrance so that only one vehicle can turn in or out. Indeed on one occasion 
whilst trying to pull out of Avon Road another resident was turning in simultaneously and as we 
squeezed by one another I clipped the 'illegally' parked car which was slightly jutting out on to 
Heathcote Road (belonging to a non-resident) and ended up having to pay for damages. I appreciate 
it's difficult for those on Heathcote Road without a driveway to park (again, they knew this when 
they decided to move there) which is why I'd like to see yellow lines at the very bottom of Avon 
Road and running round onto Heathcote Road at least for a few metres but perhaps not all the way 
up to the shops as the map appears to suggest, they need to be able to park somewhere and the last 
thing we need is to have them trying to park in and further up Avon Road in an attempt to be nearer 
their houses, that would be chaos. In fact I would go a stage further and suggest Avon Road should 

Page 139

Page 51 of 153



allow parking for 'residents only' and their visiting friends and family, perhaps using a permit 
scheme. That said it should be incumbent upon all those with driveways on both Avon Road and 
Heathcote Road, to not park on the road and make sure their visitors follow suit in my humble 
opinion. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

XXXXX XXXXXX (resident at XX Avon Road) 

 

 

5.  

From: XXXX XXXXX, XX Avon Road, Whitnash, Leamington Spa, CV31 2NJ. 

XXXXX XXXXXX 

 

 

Dear Mr O'Connor 

 

I am writing to object to the proposal to introduce double yellow lines at the stretch of Heathcote 
Road in Whitnash, Leamington Spa, near to Glebe Court, and also into the entrance of Avon Road. 

There are severe parking problems already in Avon Road which is a cul-de-sac with very limited on-
street parking for the many terraced properties there that don't have off-road parking.  

The situation has been successfully self-policed and managed for decades by the residents, who 
ensure everyone can park and that access is always clear and safe for emergency and council 
vehicles and deliveries.  

However, the loss of even a couple of available on street parking spaces at the entrance to the cul-
de-sac will have a significant impact on people's ability to park and there are absolutely no 
alternatives anywhere else in the local area. Additionally, the people in the cul-de-sac are all aging as 
well as people rarely move from the road and are not able to walk miles with shopping. 

There are several houses on Heathcote Road at that junction with Avon Road that also do not have 
any available off-road parking alternative, so yellow lines there would force them into the only 
possible place - round the corner into Avon Road, causing a two-fold problem for which there is no 
viable or reasonable solution.  

Please consider creating residents parking spaces bays on Healthcote Road for the residents on 
Healthcote Road - both sides of the opening to Avon Road - for all the several properties that 
desperately need them. 

Additionally please do not put yellow lines anywhere on Avon Road at all further reducing parking in 
an area where there is literally nowhere else for local homeowners to park. 

Page 140

Page 52 of 153



 

Many thanks for your time and trouble. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of any further assistance. 

Kind regards 

XXXX 

 

6.  

 

Page 141

Page 53 of 153



1.  

Dear Sirs 

 

I wish to support and object to the plan for double yellow lines in Kingsway and Monarch Gardens. 

 

This is long overdue so I fully support this plan, however, I strongly recommend the lines go all along 
Kingsway up to the junction with Queensway.  

 

The proposal as it stands does not wholly alleviate the problem and emergancy vehicles would still 
not be able to access Monarch Gardens when traffic is queueing at the junction as they cannot pass 
the parked vans.  

 

Kingsway is now used as a cut through from Tachbrook Drive to Queensway and queuing traffic has 
become a big problem as large vans are parked and the traffic queue includes HGV vehicles from 
Travis Perkins and surrounding units. 

 

I hope you will take my concerns and comments seriously and extend the yellow lines. 

 

Kind Regards 

XXXXXX XXXXX  

XX Monarch Gardens  

 

 

 

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy S8 - powered by Three 

Page 142

Page 54 of 153



1.  

Hello Rory 

 

Just to keep you in the loop with Montgomery Road/Tachbrook Road, as you are aware, the straight 
stretch of road approaching the junction is an ideal place for people to park. However local people in 
Montgomery Road have been targeting these normally 5/6 cars and vandalising by scratching & 
damaging wing mirrors. I have contacted the Police several times and PC Sample has been out to the 
road of concern and i have shown him where people are parking and the damage the locals have 
caused. PC Sample said the car's are all legal and are parked here legally. However if car's were to 
park over the blocked paved area then he said he would be able to prosecute. Only the postman mid 
morning crosses this crossing. I have included many photographs of the regular vehicles that park 
there,the second photo with the dark blue car, the lady owner of this car has been harassed by some 
of the locals, had her car scratched & wing mirror damaged. She is parked legally every time.  One of 
the cars is my own, please zoom in and note the scratches along every panel. PC Sample has posted 
warning letters to the locals along that road basically highlighting the vandalism and those caught 
will be prosecuted. I am in favour of these cars being parked here, they cause NO obstruction or 
danger. As you can see in one of the photo's even the Police park there.The locals who have 
complained to you are just to lazy to negotiate normal driving conditions.  Please do not apply these 
lines to this road as there is a shortage for our family's.  

 

Many thanks  

XXXXXX 

XXX Tachbrook Road 

Whitnash 

CV31 3DE 

 

XXXXXXXXXXX  

 

Page 143

Page 55 of 153



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 144

Page 56 of 153



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 145

Page 57 of 153



 

 

 

Page 146

Page 58 of 153



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 147

Page 59 of 153



2.  
 

 

 

Page 148

Page 60 of 153



3.  

Hello Rory, 

I currently park my car on Montgomery Road, and if you put yellow lines there I will have no where 
to park as I’m am un able to park outside of my house. If I have no where to park then I would have 
to sell my car and then have no way of getting around to help my elderly family members or get to 
and from work. I have had my car scratched and the wing mirror broken although I park legally not 
on the path or over the edge. 

XXXXX XXXXXXX  

Sent from my iPhone 

Page 149

Page 61 of 153



Parking restriction proposals – TR\11124-18 - Myton Gardens, Warwick 

No Waiting Monday – Friday, 9am-5pm 

We agree with the proposed no waiting Monday to Friday 9am-5pm parking restriction for Myton 
Gardens.  The grounds for this are stated below.  However, I feel there should be some exemption 
for visiting trade persons whilst working on properties on Myton Gardens.  Generally trade persons 
are able to park on the existing driveways, but this may not always be the case, such as when the 
driveway is being replaced.  

Also, please consider extending the restriction to Saturday and Sunday daytime except for residents 
and their visitors (provide residents with permit to display on visitor’s car when they 
visit).  Weekends are particularly bad when the weather is good or when there are events in town 
centre or in the park, when families park their cars all day for free.  

Myton Gardens is a small narrow cul de sac situated between Warwick School (and now Kings School 
which recently moved to the Warwick School site) and Myton School.  Myton Gardens is also 
opposite the entrance to St Nicholas Park off Myton Road. 

Myton gardens is currently congested during the day with parked cars.  Many of these parked cars 
are from pupils at Warwick School (and Kings School) and Myton School and the cars are left parked 
all day.  The other parked cars are from people using St Nicholas park, including people walking their 
dogs or using the sports facilities and who are too lazy or too selfish to use the St Nicholas Park or 
Myton Fields car parks.  The cars are parked on both sides of the road creating a chicane which is 
hard to navigate especially for emergency services and delivery vans and lorries.  The cars are also 
parked opposite people’s drives making it difficult (and sometimes impossible) to get on and off the 
drive during the day time.  

I write on behalf of my wife and myself to wholeheartedly support the Parking proposals for Myton 
Gardens, For some time I have been very concerned about the difficulty larger vehicles have in 
accessing all properties and the potential inaccessability for emergency vehicles, in particular Fire 
Engines. 

I have also been aware of the difficulties faced by wheel chair and disability scooters when so many 
have parked on the pavements. 

There is a serious parking issue in Myton Gardens and the problem has been exacerbated in the past 
year as the result of the extensive building programme at Warwick School to accommodate Kings 
High School leading to a lack of parking spaces at the school. 

It is now extremely difficult for the residents to get in or out of the road sue to the parked cars on 
both sides including bends and the turning circle. Particular problems are experienced by 
Ambulances, Refuse and Delivery Vehicles. Fortunately there has bee no need for a fire engine since 
those vehicles would be unable to navigate the chicane bends created by the haphazard parking by 
Warwick School boys. 

For these reasons I fully support your proposal for single yellow lines on both sides the length of the 
road including the turning circle. 

There is a serious parking issue in Myton Gardens and the problem has been exacerbated in the past 
year as the result of the extensive building programme at Warwick School to accommodate Kings 
High School leading to a lack of parking spaces at the school. 

Page 150

Page 62 of 153



It is now extremely difficult for the residents to get in or out of the road sue to the parked cars on 
both sides including bends and the turning circle. Particular problems are experienced by 
Ambulances, Refuse and Delivery Vehicles. Fortunately there has bee no need for a fire engine since 
those vehicles would be unable to navigate the chicane bends created by the haphazard parking by 
Warwick School boys. 

For these reasons I fully support your proposal for single yellow lines on both sides the length of the 
road including the turning circle. 

Thank you for your letter dated 28th February 2020 concerning the above proposal and I fully 
support the proposal, we suffer from Warwick School Pupils parking all day, Fishermen Parking at 
Weekends and Families visiting the Park. We look forward to getting our Street back 

I refer to the consultation on proposed parking restrictions at Myton Gardens, Warwick as portrayed 
on plan TR\11124 - 18. 

We are residents at Myton Gardens and fully support the proposals. 

We agree entirely with the statement of reasons which gives rise to the justification for the parking 
restrictions. 

We look forward to early implementation of the scheme. 

I confirm that I support the proposals for parking restrictions to come into force at Myton 
Gardens Warwick CV34 6BH. 

As residents of Myton Gardens, Warwick, CV34 6BH I am writing to confirm WE ARE FULLY IN 
AGREEMENT with the parking proposals for Myton Gardens, as below: 

SINGLE YELLOW LINE RESTRICTION. MON-FRI  9.00AM - 5PM. 

Each property in Myton Gardens has plenty of driveway space for possible short-term parking for 
visiting tradesmen etc. 

 

I wish to express my strong support for these proposals. On many occasions recently I have had 
difficulty driving down the road because of parked vehicles, most of which have no connection with 
residents. As a diabetic living at the end of the street, I am concerned that should I need medical 
assistance and ambulance would find access difficult:; for the same reason I am concerned about the 
elderly resident (of the street). Parking in the turning area also causes large delivery 
lorries sometimes to reverse onto lawns in front of houses while attempting to turn in a very 
restricted space. 

I am a resident on Myton gardens living at number 5 and I received your letter regards the proposed 
parking restrictions. 

I am emailing to thankyou for looking at this proposal and am emailing in support. Having purchased 
our house in October last year I have seen the difficulties and dangerous parking first hand. 

The issues are: 

1. Sixth form students parking their cars all day and possibly local workers 

Page 151

Page 63 of 153



2. Badly parked cars doing this to the point were at times I couldn’t get to my own house or down 
the drive! 

Had an emergency larger vehicle wanted to pass this would have been impossible. 

3. Myton school parents parking at the entrance to the street on double yellow lines often on the 
pavement and restricting the footpath and it hard for other drivers to see accurately when turning 
out. 

4. Use of the street for parking by park goers/dog walkers who wish to avoid parking charges both 
on week days and weekends. This is denying the council of income. 

5. Use of the street again at the weekends for users of the Warwick pool next door. 

I absolutely agree with the proposal. I am unsure if there is a way of also being applicable at the 
weekends without restricting visitors to residents. 

I have seen signs at the entrance of streets in Warwick that are close to the hospital staying ‘no 
hospital parking here’. I wonder if something similar saying ‘no school parking here’ would be 
helpful. 
 
I also wonder if these would go manned? Often I’ve seen cars parked on the double yellow lines all 
day! 

It’s very frustrating having 2 young children trying to walk to places with a constant influx of traffic 
and pollution down our street. 

I am hopeful that the restrictions would be approved. We have met with the head master of 
Warwick school who is also in full support of parking restrictions being in place. 

 

Page 152

Page 64 of 153



As a resident of Newbold Terrace East I believe that this scheme will make parking even 
more difficult for residents on our road.  

As it stands there are rarely enough spaces on the road for residents during the day and it 
can be a struggle when arriving home from work in the evening to find a space near your 
house too.  

There is currently the residents permit zone outside some of the houses, but this is often full 
as well. I am not advocating extending the permit zone, but I do believe that adding in these 
double yellow line (no waiting zones) will make parking for residents all the more difficult, 
so I think the road should stay in its current format without these zones.  

The justification for adding these zones is to add somewhere for cars to pass, however as a 
resident of this road I have never had an issue with passing in the four years I have lived 
here. Two cars can easily pass each other in the width of the road with parked cars on either 
side. Lorries and cars already have places they can wait for oncoming traffic to pass before 
they proceed if they wish to do this. There does not need to be more of these passing points 
added at the expense of residents losing parking places near their houses. 

 

With regard to the proposals for 2 passing places on Newbold Terrace East, we submit the 
following comments with the objective of improving safety:- 

 

 

1. Newbold Terrace East is now a very busy street, with a significant increase in vehicles of 
all sorts, cyclists and pedestrians since the Leisure Centre was extended, its facilities more 
widely promoted, and more activity is taking place on the Comyn. This has increased the 
safety risks for all users of the street. We have witnessed on several occasions, large 
vehicles coming in opposite directions blocking the street for many minutes, sometimes for 
over half an hour, which could jeopardise lives if emergency vehicles cannot get through. 

2. Many vehicles do not slow down when other vehicles are approaching them from the 
opposite direction. And some vehicles exceed 30 mph particularly in the evenings. A speed 
restriction of 20 mph should be imposed on the whole street to reinforce the message that 
the street is narrow and dangerous particularly where cars are parked on both sides and 
where the street bends. 

3. The two new passing places proposed for vehicles might improve safety, but the gap 
between them of 100m is too long to avoid vehicles moving in the opposite direction 
entering the areas where vehicles are parked on both sides. Reducing the gaps between the 
passing places would improve safety. This could be achieved by extending the double yellow 
lines on the south side of the street from the traffic lights by a further 20m, and putting in a 
third passing place so that gaps between them are about 60m. The extension of the double 
yellow lines on the south side of the street from the traffic lights is desirable anyway as this 
is the narrowest part of the street and would improve safety. 

Page 153

Page 65 of 153



4. During the day, vehicles are frequently parked across the pedestrian crossing points from 
the pathway in the green area opposite Fernhill Drive. These two crossing points should be 
protected by double yellow lines to avoid pedestrians having to cross the street between 
closely parked vehicles. 

There should be a similar additional protected crossing point further up the street opposite 
the cul de sac as this is where residents and other pedestrians frequently cross to enter or 
leave the safer pathway in the green area. 

 

Thank you for your letter dated 28 February regarding the above. 

I wish to remind you of our previous correspondence on this matter when I first raised my 
concerns in October 2019. In particular the fact that it had taken me an hour to travel up 
from the traffic lights to my home. This delay could put lives at risk if emergency vehicles are 
similarly delayed. 

Currently the traffic lights only allow very few cars travelling down NTE to cross over 
especially if they are trying to turn right, thus causing further traffic jams. 

Your proposed "20 metre passing places" will help but the number should be increased  to 3 
or 4, or extended to 40 metres! 

 

Please would the team consider the extension of resident parking bays between numbers 9-
33 and 42a-42. The resident parking situation has progressively worsened as more people 
seek free parking while working or shopping in town making it difficult for residents to park. 
The Council has also issued an excessive number of permits on the street relative to the 
permit bay spaces available, for example number 39 would normally be entitled to 3 permits 
as a single dwelling but as it is split into 5 apartments the number that can be issued is 
significantly more than this and in fact greater than the entire provision outside the that and 
the adjacent properties. 

 

I notice that you are advertising new restrictions along a section of Newbold Terrace East to 
facilitate passing places. 

Please could you also consider the following: 

There are two dropped kerbs on Newbold Terrace East opposite the junction with Fernhill 
Drive. They are often blocked by parked cars, making the dropped kerbs inaccessible. This 
makes the crossing points dangerous at best, as pedestrians are forced to cross between the 
parked cars, and impossible for anyone using a wheelchair or with a pushchair. 

Both the crossings are well used by local children and anyone visiting the leisure centre or 
the other facilities of Newbold Comyn. 

Page 154

Page 66 of 153



Double yellow lines across the two dropped kerbs would act as a further visual reminder to 
drivers not to park there. 

 

I received a letter notifying me about the proposed double yellow lines to create passing 
places on Newbold Terrace East.  I don't think the plans go quite far enough and need 
further areas of double yellow lines further down the road to allow safer pedestrian 
crossing. 

There are two road crossing places close to the Fernhill Drive junction where the path on 
the comyn side has a formal crossing area to the other side and these are often completely 
blocked by parked cars. The crossing places are dangerous as visibility around the cars is 
poor, forcing you to get well into the road between the parked cars before you can see if 
the road is clear. The crossings are generally used by children making their way to St Pauls 
School, or to the sports centre or park, and they are often on bikes. I see so many close 
shaves here. The parked cars also make it very awkward for people with push chairs etc to 
cross the road. 

I would like to see double yellow lines in front of the pedestrian crossings to prevent cars 
blocking them thereby creating a safer road crossing. 

 

I support the proposal as it will improve traffic flow. 

I would have one request – the permit bays currently on Newbold Terrace East are not 
sufficient for the residents particularly at the eastern end – in front of 34-41.     If you could 
add extra bays on the same side extending east in front of 42 and west beyond 33 that 
would be a big improvement. 

Page 155

Page 67 of 153



1  It is disappointing to note that the Council is seeking to amend the legal restrictions because the 
Vauxhall Garage has not complied with the law….this is completely contrary to public policy.  
Members of the public are expected to comply with the law as it is – we had yet another traffic 
warden come up the road a few weeks ago, looking to enforce the parking restrictions against local 
residents who are unable to  park because of the Garage workers taking all of the local spaces.  The 
Warden did not make any exceptions…. 

2  I have personally telephoned the Council on numerous occasions over the years, to report the fact 
that the Garage have a transporter unloading, at peak traffic times, in direct contravention of the 
traffic order in place.  No action has  ever been taken. 

3  Queuing traffic waiting to drive down the road, from the Coventry direction, are likely to block the 
entrance/exit to Goodfellow street, which, in turn, will cause a back up of traffic leading back to 
Rugby road – this currently happens – I witness it regularly.  This is more likely to happen given the 
new position the Council is suggesting that the Transporter takes up. 

4  There are currently 7 Garage  worker cars which park every day, between the end of the yellow 
line around the mouth of Goodfellow street, and my property.   

5  The cars coming from the Coventry direction need space to be able  to drive around those 7 
parked cars (which arrive by about 7.30 am and just after) and pull in, safely, before the parked up 
Transporter in its new place…..this is a big leap to make in one movement – the length of several 
buses I suspect.  The traffic approaching from Rugby road end, rarely wants to give way, because, 
they have ‘right of way’ as there are no obstructions on their side.  The number of ‘near misses’ and 
screeching of brakes, blowing of horns, etc, from 8 am onwards, is too much to count.  It is a very 
dangerous spot. 

6  There are 3 garages on the opposite side of the road, at the back of the properties in Quarry st.  
The first one, often has as car parked outside.  The second  two, with white doors, are rented out 
and used for storage.  There is a clear space in front of them.  This gives some room for cars coming 
from the Rugby road end, to pull over a little.   

7  I would suggest that, to make some space for cars to pull around the 7 parked cars, before 
Goodfellow street, the Council looks to reduce the available on road parking space by extending the 
yellow lines around the mouth of Goodfellow street, by say, the length of 2 cars, which is directly 
opposite the white garages.  This would have the effect of widening the available width significantly 
and making it much safer to enable cars to pull around those 7 (or 5) parked cars.  Those cars are 
always there, so  this must be taken into account.  There is no point in assessing the road without 
taking into consideration the daily street scene. 

8  It would help traffic flow hugely, if the Council were to make use of some lined markings on the 
road, at the junction with Rugby road, to encourage those cars turning right, to move and wait 
towards the middle of the road, which is wide enough at the junction to take at least two cars in 
width, one to turn right and one to turn left, for at least two cars back.  The  problem is that many 
drivers selfishly sit in the middle of the road, frustrating those wishing to turn left, preventing good 
traffic flow.  White lines would indicate the need for right hand turners, to wait in the middle, 
leaving a clear flow to the left.  This would all help the flow of traffic in the road at peak times, 
something which is sorely needed. 

9  Please also bear in mind that once the driver from the Coventry direction has managed to pass   
the 7 parked cars, and pull in safely somewhere without blocking Goodfellow street, that driver then 

Page 156

Page 68 of 153



needs to make another movement, around the parked up transporter and needs good visibility  to 
do so.   The Council must keep traffic around the area flowing as well as can be, to ensure that these 
movements can be made safely.   This is the current problem.  The less parked cars in the road, the 
more chance of safe movements. 

10  Simple solutions are as follows –   

-  suggest that the Garage complies with the law and brings the transporter at times which 
comply with the legal restrictions,  

- Suggest that the Garage unload the transporter on their own site. 
- Suggest that the Garage workers park either on their site, or, a bit further down the road by 

the cemetery, away from the busy junction.  An increase of yellow lines would achieve this, 
and would enable a much safer and clearer flow of traffic for all. 

 

Page 157

Page 69 of 153



Thank you for inviting us to take part in the consultation on changes to parking restrictions in Othello 
Avenue. As residents of Banquo Approach we are in support of the proposal; however, we are 
concerned this proposal will not tackle the real issues that users of this road experience on a daily 
basis.  

Our concern is related to the image presented below between north of Banquo Approach and Portia 
Way. The issues in this area of Othello Avenue are: 

1.  Lack of visibility for vehicles travelling in both directions due to residential parking and narrow 
road, as marked with a blue line on the map. 

2. Lack of visibility for pedestrians approaching Othello Ave from the West and wishing to cross the 
road (marked as a yellow dotted line in the enclosed map). Pedestrias have very limited visibility of 
vehicles traveling SB (green arrow in the map). 

The above issues create a lot of tension between drivers, frequent dangerous driving and some 
drivers encroaching on the pedestrian area to drive along this section of Othello (This behaviour is 
observed in vehicles driving SB).  

We would like you to consider, in light of the above, and given that there is no right solution as there 
is a very narrow road that carries more traffic that was probably anticipated and bus services, that 
perhaps better signalisation could be introduced or switch this section of road to a single lane 
offering prioritisation to SB traffic so that the right of way is clear to all road users with the aim of 
minimising arguments. 

Also, just above the mini roundabout (close to the red arrow) there is a small dip on the road which 
also makes visibility difficult. Therefore, vehicles need to wait slightly before that dip or at the mini-
roundabout to have full visibility of incoming traffic SB.   

We trust this information is useful to inform your decision about the changes to parking restrictions 
in the area. 

Do not hesitate to get in touch, should you need clarification about the issues discussed above. 

 

I write with reference to your letter dated Friday 28 February 2020. Our house is number, opposite 
the Banquo Approach T junction. 

Drivers regularly park their vehicles opposite this T junction, often half on and half off the footpath 
outside our home. Because Othello Avenue is one of the main bus routes through Warwick Gates, 
vehicles parked there – which has included buses - can cause a significant nuisance, delaying traffic 
and frustrating other road users, which unfortunately, we have borne the brunt of. They also 
obstruct the footpath. And because this junction is immediately before/after a mini-roundabout, 
parked vehicles can cause mayhem. 

I welcome the proposals to install the new double yellow lines. However, can I request an extension 
to the proposed lines to include the area directly opposite this T junction.  Unfortunately, the 
current proposal would just encourage more illegal parking. 

I would be grateful if this could be accepted as an amendment to the original project. 

Page 158

Page 70 of 153



In addition, I can only speak for my own household, but we have suffered abuse and threatening 
language from other drivers attempting to use the road, who assume that the vehicles parked 
outside are ours. As you imagine, this has caused some very distressful situations for us as a family. 

As I have already said above, I fear that the current plans could make this situation worse. 

Finally, we have been assured that any responses to this proposal would be treated as confidential 
and that no named respondents would be published. I trust that this will be the case. 

 

Thank you for reviewing the parking on Othello Avenue, Warwick, CV34 6ED. 

I have lived at this address for more than three years. The parking, near misses and incidents of road 
rage outside our house are at an all time high. 

The excessive parking by hospital staff on both Othello Avenue and Portia Way exasperates the 
problem. 

Often vehicles, including both lorries and buses are having to dangerously mount the pavement 
between the park and the entrance to the shops and doctors surgery at Cressida Close. 

There are two bus stops on opposite sides of the road between the entrances to Portia Way and 
Coriolanus Square. Hospital staff begin parking their cars (mounting the pavement) from the first bus 
stop to the park. The congestion causes traffic to back up to both Heathcote Lane and past the 
entrance to Bolingbroke Drive during the rush hour and each time a bus waits at either bus stop. 

I would recommend making both Othello Avenue and Portia Way ‘No Hospital Parking’ similarly to 
Arundel Close, Pembroke Close and other streets surrounding Warwick Hospital. 

 

I live at Banquo Approach and am concerned about the proposal for double yellow lines on Othello 
Avenue. There is a significant issue here with the safety of road users and pedestrians with cars 
regularly parking and blocking access and visibility along the road. However double yellow lines will 
only move the problem elsewhere as the root cause of the issue is not being addressed. 

The local rehab hospital does not have enough parking for its staff, therefore the staff regularly park 
along Othello Avenue, Portia Way and surrounding roads. The issue has progressed so much that 
people are now starting to park on Banquo Approach by our house. My concern is that the double 
yellow lines on Othello will move the cars to our road and other surrounding roads across the estate. 

The safety issue along Othello does need to be addressed, as crossing to the park or driving down 
the road can be quite hazardous. However the full implications across the estate need to be 
assessed, with options to address the root cause of the issue prioritised. This is also something that 
we have mentioned to MP Matt Western as something which must be addressed to address safety 
in Warwick Gates. 

 

I am writing in relation to the current parking consultation on the estate. 

Although this has always been a problem, in the last year or so, parking changes at the nearby 
hospital have made the parking situation on our road significantly worse. 

Page 159

Page 71 of 153



My house faces directly onto the street, and we frequently have cars parked up the kerb, literally a 
foot from our front door. This happens on a near daily basis. 

Although we ourselves have two spaces on our drive, we opt to park one of our cars up the kerb 
outside our house purely because if we do not do it it, we will have an endless parade of people 
parking there, slamming doors inches from our front door. 

Our neighbour also does the same, with the result that parking on our street is dangerous. 
Pedestrians can not get by, and the road generally looks like a car park. 

I have seen the consultation for double yellows on Othello Avenue, but I fear this will just make the 
situation on Costard Avenue even worse as the parking gets pushed further out. 

My suggestion would be for double yellow lines on all those sections of Costard Avenue which are 
NOT clear parking areas. 

At the very least, there needs to be some interaction with the hospital around their parking rules - 
on Costard Avenue we see a near endless parade of hospital staff parking up kerbs and heading 
towards work (they're easily identifiable by uniform and lanyards). 

 

I live on Orsino Close within the Warwick Gates area. I have recently had sight of the proposed 
parking restrictions for the estate and would like to raise my concerns that whilst they are an 
improvement, this proposal as stands does not address the daily problems which occur on Othello 
Avenue with cars frequently parking on one side of the road causing obstructions and unnecessary 
delays and danger to other road users. 

I frequently walk this way with my young child in a pushchair and often see dangerous driving on this 
stretch of road due to aggressive driving and ‘stand offs’ with cars speeding through or waiting to 
pass this stretch as a result of congestion/ parked cars. This stretch of road is a main bus route and 
also in between a children’s play area, gp surgery and community centre. The frequent manner of 
Inconsiderate and aggressive driving poses a serious danger to vulnerable road users including 
children and the elderly walking and crossing this stretch of road. 

I would strongly urge you to amend your proposal to include double yellow lines and speed bumps 
along the stretch of Othello Avenue to address this matter. 

 

I fail to see how yellow lines around corners of side streets an on island where nobody parks anyway 
will solve anything. 

Problems along Othello Avenue are caused by parked vehicles between the playground and Juliet 
Drive.  Residents in Juliet Drive and roads off are also stuck with parked vehicles from residents of 
other streets. 

Parking permits for residents and restrictions on timings would be far more useful in controlling 
traffic in the area. 

These proposals will solve nothing and are a waste of taxpayers money. 

 

Page 160

Page 72 of 153



I live at Banquo Approach, and all days I face unsafety traffic situation to go through the Otello Ave 
close to Play Area in both directions with parked vehicles on West side. Due to parked vehicles and 
vans in west side, the driver faces a hidden situation that impact in late traffic and non-safety 
driving, even for children and elderly crossing the road. 

As there is plan to review the double Yellow Lines in this area, from my point of view the issue# XVI 
must be amend from “northwards for 30 metres.” to “northwards for 250 metres (at least).” To 
avoid parked vehicles till next north junction. Same as for issue# XV. 

 

 

In general a very positive step.  I am resident in Coriolanus square, and the north side extension to 
the double yellow lines is a very good idea.  Have witnessed many near misses here, and have had to 
leave notes on cars that have been badly parked here. 

I would note that the northbound run as drawn up Othello is a lottery of an evening.  After the traffic 
calming by the park there is normally an unbroken line of parked cars on the left of the road by early 
evening.  As a driver you are totally unsighted for a long stretch of road here as marked below and 
this is incredibly unsafe.  Drive this daily and see many incidents of cars having to mount the 
pavement on the right, road rage and gridlock 

 

I am entirely in agreement with your plans for yellow lines. 

I have concerns too that local drivers and ‘cut through- rat run’ drivers seem not to observe the 30 
mph limit. 

The play ground, which has been much improved in the last twelve months is proving popular. 

Could we have a 20 mph in the play ground and adjacent road. 

Page 161

Page 73 of 153



For my part I would like even stronger traffic calming measures, so that the Othello Avenue ‘rat run’ 
is no longer viable for drivers that don’t live on the estate. The cost of such measures, along with 
necessary Fire Service, Ambulance and Police would I am sure be prohibitively expensive. 

I feel that a 20 mph area around the play ground could make all drivers be more considerate of the 
future generations. It too could have the effect for a few drivers to abandon the Othello rat run. 

 

Upon reviewing the planned changes to parking restrictions on Othello Avenue I wish to object. 

These do not address the main cause of dangerous parking and obstruction to driving. 

The key area of concern is on the left hand side just, up from the park. (it is missing from your 
diagrams but is opposite numbers 56 upwards to Juliet Drive).  Due to the line of traffic consistently 
parked here and the bend in the road, there is a rat run where cars have to proceed with no visibility 
of oncoming traffic. When I have raised this previously it was suggested to me this was a safety 
measure as it meant cars had to slow down. Unfortunately, the opposite is true as cars speed up to 
get through this piece of road as quickly as possible. 

I also don’t understand the need to put double yellows on the corners of roads. I have never seen 
anyone parked on any of these corners and it is against the highway code anyway. I live at Othello 
Avenue and note there are plans to put double yellow lines around the mini roundabout outside our 
houses, this is also pointless as in all the years I have lived here no-one has ever parked there. I 
would be interested to know the thought process behind these proposals. 

 

Whilst I support the additions of double yellow lines I am extremely frustrated that the problem 
seems to have been misunderstood considerably.  Parking is generally not so much of a problem 
around traffic calming roundabouts and at junctions, but is a HUGE problem down Othello Avenue 
between the park and the shops at the top of the road.  It is down the length of Othello Avenue that 
double yellow lines are required.  The proposed new double yellow lines could also possibly 
compound the current problem, forcing more people to park down the length of the road which 
creates only one lane that traffic can drive down, visibility problems so that “stand-offs” and road 
rage incidents occur and also forces pavement mounting by vehicles stuck in an impasse situation, 
which is a danger to pedestrians.   I have lived in my current property for 20 years and this problem 
is getting worse and worse, I personally take a “long-cut” through the estate at every opportunity, to 
avoid the road right by my own home.  Please don’t allow half a job to be done this time, a solution 
is greatly required. 

 

The letter we have received today is just not good enough. I live on Banquo Approach and after 
looking at the plans as the where the yellow lines will be painted I am disappointed. The lines do not 
go anywhere the actual chaos that is caused every morning / afternoon / evening. The yellow lines 
need to go much further up orthello Avenue - all the way upto the shops. This will stop all the 
potential accidents and people having to take their vehicle into the pavement in order to get past. 

Watching emergency vehicles struggle is something that makes me very sad and the fact the yellow 
lines are not going to be painted upto where the actual problem is - is just ridiculous 

 

Page 162

Page 74 of 153



I live on Warwick Gates and use the Othello Avenue road daily. I would like to recommend that the 
whole of the Othello avenue should have no parking (i.e. double yellow lines) restrictions on it; 
particularly the stretch leading down to the park from the Co-Op end. This is a very busy road and is 
now being used by double decker buses too. Since cars are parked on one side of the road, it makes 
the traffic movement very slow and is also very dangerous with a number of near misses in the area. 
Thanks. 

Page 163

Page 75 of 153



1.  
Dear Rory O’Connor, 
 
Plymouth Place and Farley Street – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the north and south sides of the 
junction of Plymouth Place and Farley Street. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic, and 
ensuring free flow of traffic. 
 
Re: Plymouth Place - No Waiting at Anytime  
i. North side, from its junction with Farley Street, westwards for 8 metres  
ii. South side, from its junction with Farley Street, westwards for 8 metres   
 
We write to object to the above proposal, we believe the objection period now ends on 1st May 
2020. 
 
It is clear that there is, or can be, at many times during the year, huge amounts of traffic parking in 
the area of Plymouth Place and Farley Street, most of which tend to be commercial vehicles using 
the area as a free-car park, taxis, mini-bus or hire vans or people parking and leaving vehicles for 
long periods probably using the train to go to Birmingham Airport for a holiday or indeed, parking 
and walking into town. 
 
Therefore to avoid danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic it would feel 
including Plymouth Place and Farley Street into a Residents' Parking Zone, to be a sensible way 
forward rather than paint the area in further ugly double yellow lines? 
 
We had thought some time ago local councilor, Helen Adkins, was going to kindly encourage a 
consultation paper on this subject, within the area of Plymouth Place and Farley Street? 
 
Perhaps therefore the above proposal could be paused and a consultation re residents' views on 
extending nearby Residents' Parking Zones to include Plymouth Place and Farley Street, would be 
wise to take place instead? 
 
Many thanks. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
XXXXXXXXX (& XXXXXXXX) 
 
Cc XXXXXXX, XXXXXXXX 
 
XXX Plymouth Place 
Leamington Spa 
CV31 1HW   
 

 

2.  
Hi there  
I am a resident of Plymouth Place and wish to raise objections about the new parking proposals.  
 

Page 164

Page 76 of 153



The new approach will not solve the parking issue but instead, make the situation worse by forcing 
people to park on both sides of the street and make the street too narrow for fire engines and 
ambulances to drive down. 
 
It will mean that I am not able to park outside my house any longer and will result in cars clogging up 
other streets including further down Farley street. 
 
The permit parking that was introduced in Russell Terrace a few years ago has meant more and 
more people parking in Plymouth Place and Farley Street - this new proposal will exacerbate the 
issue and is not the right solution to the issue. 
 
The fundamental issue is that a number of commercial taxi companies or van hire companies are 
using Farley street as a parking area rather than renting sufficient commercial spaces.  
 
By introducing the proposed yellow lines all it will do is force residents to park further and further 
away - as the taxis and van hire companies will still be parking their vehicles before ordinary 
residents get home from work. 
 
I am literally begging please do not introduce this as I won't be able to park outside my own house. 
 
Regards 
XXXXX XXXXXX 
XXX Plymouth Place 
 
 

3.  
Dear Mr O’Connor, 
 
I am writing with regards to the notice of intended parking changes at Plymouth Place/Farley Street. 
 
Whilst I consider the idea of preventing parking within the first meters as very good (as driving in 
and out the street has become difficult on both ends of Plymouth Place due parking on both sides), I 
object to the plan due to the already strained parking situation in Plymouth Place for the following 
reasons: 
 
- numerous multiple occupancy house properties appear to have more cars than there used to be -
there are newly constructed properties in Plymouth Place which although they have allocated 
parking may add further cars if used for multiple occupancy -over the last few years Farley street has 
become a parking area (nights/weekends) for mini busses and taxis which reduces the parking for 
residents further 
- multiple occupancy properties in Radford Road use Plymouth Place and Farley Road as well as 
commuters for the train station -Residents of Plymouth Place are not able to park in Russell Terrace 
due to a parking permit zone there 
 
Whilst a 10m parking restriction may not appear much it will definitely add to the existing parking 
problems.  
 
I think therefore that these changes should only be implemented in conjunction with a parking 
permit scheme similar to those implemented in other parts of Leamington. 
 

Page 165

Page 77 of 153



As there are no speed restrictions (e.g speed bumps) in Plymouth Place tighter parking may also be a 
H&S issue, as it appears that there are cars frequently exceeding the speed limit in a small street 
where families with young children live. 
 
Kind Regards, 
XXXXX XXXXXXXXX 
 
 

4.  
Hi  
I have seen the notice about proposed works. 
We were told it was going to be Russell Terrace/ Farley Street junction at the sit meeting with count 
councillors. 
This is the junctions where there have been accidents. As people have been parking their Vans . Kids 
are crossing without knowing what is comming the other way.Accident waiting to happen 
 
Thanks 
X X XXXXX 
XXXXXXXXXXX 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

5.  
To whom it may concern, 
 
I have seen today that a sign has been put up outside my house showing intended work to paint 
lines showing a no waiting zone on the road. (A photo of the order is attached) 
 
Can someone please send me a plan of what is going to be done and why? Why are the restrictions 
so long? Why is it only on this end of the road when a fire engine wouldn’t be able to get down the 
west end of Plymouth place due to the parking.  As a resident I would rather see a parking permit 
system on the entire road controlled so that the council ensures there are enough spaces for all cars. 
 
The plan will remove 28 metres of parking which at an average car length of 4.5 metres, will remove 
6 parking spaces. On a road that is already congested and that the council has just passed planning 
on a new 2 bedroom property on this junction which will come with at least two cars for which the 
council said there are spaces two roads away.  Where are these 6 cars now suppose to park? 
 
Best regards, 
 
XXXXX XXXXXX 
 
Email: XXXXXXXXXX@hotmail.com 
Tel: XXXXXXXXXX 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 166

Page 78 of 153



In response to the notices posted in Reeve Drive regarding the proposed yellow lines. Due to Covid 
19 and Government guidelines we have been unable to engage on a face to face basis with the 
neighbours (stakeholders) to fully discuss the implications proposed by the council. As you know all 
contact has been stopped which has severely limited any attempt to fully gather a consensus of 
opinion. We did letter drop on the matter and had a response by email from seven housholds, all 
against the proposal and none for supporting. It is my intention to have a face to face meeting with 
the residents upon the lifting of the current restrictions. 

My reason for this is because of a statement made by Haresh Kumar of WCC, who is recorded as 
saying: 

“I trust you will understand that the County Council would prefer to be given clear guidance from the 
residents on what they wish to see, otherwise the decision falls to the Council Officers. Unfortunately 
in this day and age decisions may be challenged, as it could be construed by some that such a 
decision was not in line with the residents’ requirements” 

Statement 

The traffic measures in place currently were approved by council at the development stage as 
calming measures by 1) restricting the width of the road in part to less than that of the road where a 
parked car would be and 2) a give way. Therefore, traffic can never be free flow because of the 
physical limitations of the road and so to remove cars would not increase the free flow of traffic and 
therefore, this would not avoid danger to persons or traffic. 

Summary 

Currently, the flow of traffic is not comprised by parked cars but by traffic calming measures (a give 
way). Therefore, this is not an improvement to safety by extending or adding yellow lines. 

We request this proposal is withdrawn as there is no safety case and its burdensome to the majority 
of residents. 

I was slightly surprised to read below - without any apparent prior notification to local Councillors - 
on the lampposts in Reeve Drive about proposed parking restrictions in the road. As I'm sure you're 
aware, this is a very busy road used by parents of children at St Nicholas School in preference to 
blocking the even busier and more dangerous Whateley's Drive. 

Can you please advise what has caused you to consider introducing these parking restrictions, what 
consultation you've undertaken and what your plans are to stop parents reverting to using 
Whateley's Drive? 

I wish to object to part of the parking restrictions planned for Reeve Drive, Kenilworth: The 
extension of the current restriction on the north side of Reeve Drive would reduce the amount of 
parking available for residents of both Reeve Drive and Whateleys Drive with no benefit in terms of 
safety or traffic flow. 

The proposed restrictions on the south side of Reeve Drive would, however, be beneficial. 

Page 167

Page 79 of 153



I want to register my objections to the expansion of double yellow lines along Rugby Road. 

We live at Rugby Road, on the corner of Oswald Road. I firmly believe that removing parked cars at 
this location will encourage drivers to increase their speed as the road becomes wider. We already 
have an issue with speeding cars along this road. In the last year there have been two significant 
traffic accidents involving speeding cars. Both have resulted in significant damage to cars and 
properties close to our house and one of those in a fatality. 

I have two children (8 and 10) and am extremely concerned that cars regularly pass our house at 
speeds approaching 50mph. 

I would request that the council reconsider this proposal and keep the on street parking. 

I would like to object to the proposal (Ref: Warwick District CPE Variation 6) for double yellow lines 
outside no 203 Rugby Road, CV32 6DY. 

 

Nobody has asked me for these double yellow lines.  They do not appear to be required.  There are 
already major parking problems for residents in the area and any further loss of on-street parking 
will just make a bad situation worse.  This proposal is likely to push car parking further  down the 
road that will make the exiting and entry to the driveways there more dangerous.  In short I fail to 
see any evidence of the need for these double yellow lines that are likely to make the road more 
dangerous not safer. 

I write in connection with the proposal to extend the double yellow lines along a section of Rugby 
Road, from the junction with Oswald Road in the Warwick direction. 

I object to this proposal; I can see no justification for it, as it would appear to offer no benefits but 
only disadvantages. 

There are no vision problems for cars entering Oswald Road (for some years now a one-way street) 
from Rugby Road from either direction; there are already double yellow lines on the opposite side of 
Rugby Road, so the road width is not restricted at this point.  As for disadvantages, with the loss of 
two parking spaces outside numbers 201 and 203, there will be increasing pressure on any other 
meagre spaces along the road. I live at number, and although I am fortunate to have a driveway, like 
some of my neighbours, there is already considerable difficulty entering or exiting my property 
because cars are often squeezed into the small spaces between driveways. Moreover, I suggest that 
the loss of parking availability will cause considerable inconvenience for the residents at 201 and 
203, as they will be unable to load or unload as they can currently and indeed have done for many 
years. 

Please reconsider withdrawing this proposal and use the money saved on other more worthwhile 
projects, of which there are many. 

We would like to express our concern and object to the proposal for double yellow lines outside no 
203 Rugby Road, CV32 6DY. 

We are best placed to give honest real time information on the situation in our area of this section of 
Rugby Road in relation to the following Parking / speeding / neighbourhood watch and so on. 

We have off road parking at No. Rugby Road as do our neighbours which allows parking for our 
neighbours on the opposite side of the road which has double yellow lines. However there is still not 

Page 168

Page 80 of 153



enough space and to reduce these spaces further will simply push the parking issue in front of our 
property at which is already very dangerous to exit and enter if cars are parked on both sides of our 
entrance. 

The proposed plan would remove the right for parking outside no 203 and this in turn would reduce 
the parking by one or two cars on the rugby road in a situation where we are already very short of 
parking. 

I have received your letter of 28th February regarding the new double yellow lines for Rugby Road; a 
letter which does not explain the reasons for this remarkable and unthinking change. In objecting I 
would like to point out that this change will affect me and the houses opposite. I am 84 and have 
difficulty walking, my immediate neighbours are of a similar age and will also be badly 
inconvenienced. 

I wish to object to the proposed new waiting restrictions in Rugby Road Leamington.  I cannot see 
any danger to persons under the present arrangements and changing them will cause avoidable 
inconvenience in an area where on road parking is constrained.  As far as the free flow of traffic is 
concerned, this is far more affected by the large vehicles that park on the stretch of road parallel 
with the shops. 

I am writing to object to the proposed changes to parking restrictions on Rugby Road. 

I live at Rugby Road with my family. Our household includes five adults with three cars that we use 
on a daily basis. On the side of the road that we live, very few houses have driveways and therefore 
our household and our neighbors rely on the street parking that is available opposite. 

If the council were to extend the double yellow lines as proposed, this would remove two parking 
spaces that are utilised daily by the community. 

Currently, myself and my neighbors are careful not to obstruct any driveways and to park 
considerately. If these spaces were removed, we would be forced to try and find parking on Oswald 
Road, Cross Road and Percy Terrace. These streets are already congested and under pressure from 
resident parking. 

If the plans were to go ahead, you would be removing two parking spaces that are currently safe, 
unproblematic and cause no obstructions. By removing the available parking that is relied upon, you 
will be encouraging drivers to park less considerately and potentially, more dangerously. 

I cannot see any advantages to extending the double yellow lines; Oswald Road is a one-way street 
which means that no cars access the Rugby Road from Oswald Road and therefore there is no 
visibility hazard. 

On another note, a more important priority for the Rugby Road is the speeding and dangerous 
driving that occurs and caused a pedestrian death shortly before Christmas. I would be interested in 
hearing whether the council has plans to introduce traffic calming measures in the area. 

I cannot see the reason to extend the double yellow lines further along than they already are. I, 
myself live at. The bus stop is directly outside my house, which restricts the number of parking 
spaces our row of houses has. Bearing in mind there are eight houses in this row, there is space for a 
maximum of five cars, although due to some people not parking neatly enough its very often only 
four. Therefore to lose that extra bit of parking outside 203 will make things even more inconvenient 

Page 169

Page 81 of 153



than it already is. I have lived on Rugby Road since 1972 and have never considered those parking 
places to be of any safety issue, especially after Oswald Road was made on-way. 

I am writing to strongly object to the proposal to paint double yellow lines outside 203 Rugby Road, 
CV32 6DY, and ask you to reconsider the proposals. 

There are 16 properties between Acacia Road and Oswald Road/Fairlawn Close junctions on Rugby 
Road. The net loss of 2 parking spaces out of currently 6 on this stretch of road will exacerbate 
regular problems already confronting visitors and deliveries to my house Rugby Road CV32 6EH. We 
have lived here for 25 years and parking continues to get more difficult. 

My garage fronts onto Fairlawn Close. Shortage of parking spaces locally often leads to inconsiderate 
parking affecting my access to this garage. 

As the residents of Rugby Road we wish to register our agreement with the proposed parking 
restrictions. 

The attached photo shows the parking on the double yellow lines and below, up to the white line 
outside of 205 Rugby Road This type of parking is a regular occurrence. 

As you will observe from the photo, parking makes exiting the property onto Rugby Road extremely 
difficult and the proposed restrictions will be an improvement as long as the other residents observe 
the restrictions. 

Ideally we would like to suggest the double yellow lines be continued to outside no. 205.  Because of 
the signpost, any vehicles parking on the road outside 205 have to park up to the white line and into 
the road which means we have to drive into the side of oncoming traffic when exiting our property. 

I am concerned that one of the properties opposite is operating two businesses from their home, 
one of which is a taxi company and parks up to 4 vehicles on the road sometimes causing a hazard. 

The attached photos are a few that we have taken over a period of time and show how hazardous it 
makes exiting onto the main road. 

I live at Rugby road in Milverton and today have received a letter indicating a traffic scheme 
proposal.  I am writing to object to the traffic scheme on the grounds of it making parking even more 
of a nightmare than it already is. 

Every day there is a different car parked outside my house which makes getting in and out of my 
driveway difficult. I can only think that extending the double yellow line will make this worse as 
people will struggle to park. My relatives often have nowhere to park as it is. 

Page 170

Page 82 of 153



With reference to the above proposed waiting restrictions which extend past the front of our house 
at Southam Road, we would like to object on grounds of safety. In order to exit our drive safely onto 
the main road we have to reverse in so that we do not have to reverse out. It appears from the plan 
that we would not be able to wait on the road for a suitable opportunity to reverse in without 
contravening the waiting restriction. As the road is now very busy due to housing developments 
along it, we sometimes have to wait a long time for a gap in the traffic to reverse in to the drive. 

Although we have always preferred to reverse in the drive for safety reasons, we (and other 
residents) actually had a letter from the police last year requesting that we do this as there have 
been incidents along Southam Rd of residents reversing out onto the road which was causing a risk 
to other road users. This proposal seems to contradict what the police have asked us to do so is 
rather confusing. 

Please can you clarify what the position will be for us if the new waiting restrictions go ahead as we 
have 4 cars and so do not have the option of turning around in the drive before joining the road. 

Page 171

Page 83 of 153



Spring Pool – Warwick Correspondence 

 

1) 

Dear Rory, 
 
We are writing to show our support for the traffic proposal for Spring Pool, Warwick. We 
contacted the council back in December 2018, after purchasing our house and experiencing 
endless problems with non-residents parking on the street. Our main concern was that the 
emergency access point was regularly blocked, risking the safety of NHS staff, patients 
and spring pool residents.  
 
We welcome the proposals to place restrictions on parking on the street as this will hopefully 
alleviate some of the issues we face each day. We feel this will be very effective if the 
measures are actively enforced by a traffic warden on a daily basis. Commuters are 
regularly becoming more brazen, parking on double yellow lines at the entrance of Spring 
Pool and blocking private parking bays. This demonstrates that a combined approach of 
enforcement by a traffic warden with the new road marking & signage will be required. The 
Management Company who manage Spring Pool are actively trying to stop commuters 
parking in our private resident bays so the pressure will need to been maintained to ensure 
all approaches work together.    
 
We have looked at the plans for Spring Pool which on the whole look great. After living here 
consistently for two years, we wish to make a couple of points that will make the parking 
proposals even more effective. As you can see from pictures commuters are continually 
overhanging the T-Junction and blocking the entrance to the bays of the private car park. We 
are concerned and hope that the two parking spaces proposed to remain on the T-Junction 
will be very tightly positioned together. This would enable residents and large vehicles such 
as fire engines to be able to access the houses further down Spring Pool and the emergency 
access point as intended. We have personally experienced issues when we moved into the 
house where our delivery van could not navigate the T-Junction due to the way cars were 
positioned and this has remained a problem with further deliveries. 
 
The second point we would like to make is that cars are parking across the opening of 
private bays in front of properties 6 - 14 and 47 - 69 (see map). Looking at the proposal, the 
double yellow lines seem to stop at the opening of the private bays which will encourage 
people to continue to park like this. Therefore, is it possible to extend the double yellow lines 
so they are continuous throughout the street to combat this? Obviously, residents will know 
they will be able to continue to use their private bays beyond the yellow lines. 
 
It has been a long and stressful two years for my partner and I having to deal with these 
issues. I know that many other residents of Warwick will welcome these changes and an end 
to this daily stress. We hope that these changes will not only be implemented, but will be 
properly enforced.

Page 172

Page 84 of 153



Page 173

Page 85 of 153



Page 174

Page 86 of 153



 

 

 

 

 

Page 175

Page 87 of 153



2) 

Dear Mr o`Connor 
 
As residents of xxx Spring Pool, we fully support these proposals, At present there are no 
parking restrictions here with the exception of the double yellow lines at the junction 
of Spring Pool and Cape Road. The current work from home scenario does not show the 
usual problems with indiscriminate parking by commuters, including abuse of the double 
yellow lines at the junction. Apart from.making access difficult for commercial vehicles, on 
occasions we have cars double parked which make it very difficult for ordinary motors to 
pass through the space. Sometimes we have vehicles which park partly on the pavement 
causing problems for mothers and prams . 
Thank you 
 
 
3) 
I write to comment on the parking changes proposed for Spring Pool. 
 
I frequently visit a friend who lives in Victoria Street, Warwick. My visits are usually at 
evenings and weekends. On 95% of my visits there are no car parking spaces available at 
all in Victoria Street, Albert Street or Cape Road. Therefore the only nearby place to park is 
in Spring Pool, where there are always spaces available at all times in my experience. I 
understand a lot of the residents of Victoria Street rely on this parking as they have the same 
experience as me.  
 
I support the proposal for Spring Pool being included in the W2 Residents Parking Scheme. 
However the proposals reduce significantly the length of that road to be available for parking, 
with a large amount of double yellow lines shown on the proposed plan. This could cause 
friction between residents. Considering traffic speeds are very low in Spring Pool, I suggest 
that it would be safe to provide more parking bays as I have marked on the attached copy of 
the proposals plan. Vehicles currently park in these locations and there never seems to be 
any problems. 
 
I also suggest that as an alternative, residents with a W2 Residents Parking Scheme permit 
should be allowed to use the County Council car park at the eastern end of Cape Road free 
of charge or restriction at all times, not just evenings and weekends. 
 

 

4) 

Dear Sir  
 
I’m writing to support the proposed change to introduce parking restrictions on Spring Pool. 
As  a resident the cars parked on the road during working hours obstruct access to the road 
and at times come close to blocking the road for delivery vehicles and as such present a 
hazard. 
 
5) 

Dear Sir, 
As owner of number  xxx Spring Pool, Warwick, I would like to support the proposed new 
parking regulations. 
I believe Spring Pool is the only remaining road in the area which at present allows all day 
parking, and so is used by office workers etc. to leave their cars all day without incurring 

Page 176

Page 88 of 153



parking fees. The road is always jammed solid with cars during the week, use being made of 
both sides of the road and other inappropriate places, leaving little space for fire engines, 
ambulances etc. to get through. Equally there is nowhere for visiting health workers, carers, 
and other essential visitors to park at present. Restricting to 2 hours only would, for the most 
part, solve these issues. 
 

 

 

 

Page 177

Page 89 of 153



St Micheal`s Road.Correspondence.Redacted 

 

1) 

That's great thank you for letting me know.Mum will be a lot happier now . 
 
2) 
Hello 
 
I fully support these proposed extensions noted on drawing TR/11124-32 
 
3) 
Thank you for your consultation letter on the changes to parking restrictions on St Michaels 
Road. 
  
I have the viewed the plan showing the proposed extension to the double yellow lines and 
can confirm that I fully support this. It resolves the issue of badly parked cars (mainly 
Warwickshire County Council and NHS workers) partially obstructing my driveway on 
weekdays. Please be aware that the road will need to be resurfaced before this work can be 
done. 
  
 
 
4) 
I am all for the parking restrictions in St Michael's road, although I think more than what you 
are planning on doing should be done. 
I am lucky to have a driveway so do not experience car parking issues. But one of the major 
reasons why some of us on this side of St Michael's have drives is due to the issues we 
faced with parking from non residents parking to avoid paying for parking at the hospital, at 
the local technology park and some even park here and bus it into town. 
Some of these selfish drivers do not consider that their parking will cause traffic issues. And 
they will very often park between the drop curbs between the drives. But these have stakes 
in to stop cars parking between the drives on the grass verges. 
So instead some will then fully park on the road not considering the cars parked opposite 
who have to park on the grass verge to allow the flow of traffic. 
When they do this they cause major traffic issues and as there is the bend in the road, which 
many cars speed round, it's an accident waiting to happen. I often here cars speeding round 
that corner coming from the Cape Road end and suddenly having to slow down due to the 
congestion cars parked on my side of the road have caused. 
I totally agree to this restriction. 
But I feel more is needed.  
Firstly cars drive too fast round that corner so maybe speed bumps for that section to stop 
the speeding cars. And they really do whizz round very fast. And it becomes dangerous to 
pull off your own drive and even to pull on. An example was the other day i was coming from 
the Cape Road end of the road and slowed down to reverse onto my drive. A car came 
speeding round the corner so fast it had to stop so suddenly its brakes screeched. This was 
one example. It happens almost everyday and I am very surprised that there hasn't been a 
crash. 
The yellow lines or other restrictions should be extended further down St Michael's and go 
past St Christopher's Close and maybe round the corner heading towards Saliford Gardens. 
Many cars will park on the bend or just after the bend and due to cars parking on either side 
it can be very tricky to get past especially if a big lorry or a bus is also stuck trying to get 
past. 

Page 178

Page 90 of 153



Another area I think you should look at is the same kind of parking restrictions you have 
around the hospital. This is because of many visitors to with Warwick Hospital or St 
Michael's Hospital use my street as a car park. Also your own staff use our street as a free 
car park and will often block drives, park in stupid ways and take up residential spaces. 
Most of the issue in St Michael's is caused not by residents but those mentioned above, who 
use our street as a free car park. They even park in disabled bays.  
So maybe you should consider a residential parking only scheme. Make it so only residents 
and their guests can park in St Michael's and no one who isn't a resident can like round the 
hospital. This will free up the road even more. 
But for now I am happy for the yellow lines to be put in. But I hope you can get a traffic 
warden to come down the road on a daily basis because many drivers park on the yellow 
lines, disabled spaces and over drop pavements regularly and almost daily. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 179

Page 91 of 153



Stratford Road.Correspondence.Redacted 

 

1) 

I want to raise an objection to the addition of double yellows on Stratford road and 
surrounding areas. 
 
Reasons: waste of tax payers money. 
 
I’d rather you install a speed camera on Stratford road where I often see people speeding up 
and down the road, I have two young children and I worry about this constantly. 
 
The places you propose double yellows I’ve never seen anybody parking there, it won’t 
make any difference to road safety. It’s complete waste of money and time. As a tax payer I 
urge you to consider better use of public funds to properly make our roads safer. 

2) 

Good afternoon 
We live at  xxx Stratford Road and whilst we agree with the current proposals we do not feel 
they go far enough. We would be happier to see double yellow lines on the whole of 
the Stratford Road (apart from the parking inlet opposite the Kia garage. ) 
We are concerned that the current proposals will just move the problem further up 
the Stratford Road. We already have an issue with speeding on this road and do not want an 
issue with parking. 
It will make it increasingly difficult to see when we exit our driveway. When people have 
parked outside our house in the past they have often overhung our driveway which is even 
more frustrating. 
I hope that our concern will be taken into account. 

3) 

Sir/Madam 
  
I wholeheartedly agree with the proposed parking restrictions planned for Alders Grove. 
However the proposal does not go far enough to achieve the desired results. 
  
Alders Grove is one of two feeder roads serving Foxes Way and the rest of our small estate. 
The feeder roads are narrow in relation to other roads in the area and are difficult to navigate 
safely to avoid potential vehicle collisions. A number of recent incidents have been narrowly 
avoided. 
  
Installing double yellow lines on the north side of Alders Grove will not achieve the desired 
requirements and resolve the current problem. Installing double yellow lines on both the 
north and south side of Alders Grove would allow the free flow of pedestrians and traffic and 
avoid an impending serious health and safety issue. 
 

 

 

 

Page 180

Page 92 of 153



4) 

Sir/Madam 

We wholeheartedly agree with the proposed parking restrictions planned for Alders Grove. 
However the proposal does not go far enough to achieve the desired results. 

Alders Grove is one of two feeder roads serving Foxes Way and the rest of our small estate. 
The feeder roads are narrow in relation to other roads in the area and are difficult to navigate 
safely to avoid potential vehicle collisions. A number of recent incidents have been narrowly 
avoided. 

Additionally due to the traffic using one side of the road, a number of large pot holes appear 
frequently and although they are filled from time to time, they soon reappear. This is 
damaging to vehicles and dangerous to bicycles. 

Installing double yellow lines on the north side of Alders Grove will not achieve the desired 
requirements and resolve the current problem. Installing double yellow lines on both the 
north and south side of Alders Grove would allow the free flow of pedestrians and traffic and 
avoid an impending serious health and safety issue. 

Kind regards, 

5) 

    Although our County Councillors problem, as one of you r district Cllrs I have campaigned 
for a long time to get double yellows put down there, i doubt if this is the finished article and i 
think we will end up with double yellows both sides,  
 

 

 

Page 181

Page 93 of 153



Trinity Street.Correspondence,Redacted 

 

1) 

Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
I understand there is a plan to increase the double yellow lines on Trinity Street, I am 
assuming to improve access for the garages opposite. 
 
I do however feel this will have a considerable affect on the availability of parking, for the 
other Permit Holding residents of Trinity Street, which is already very limited in nature. 
 
I find it difficult to understand how parking on the opposite side of the street severely impacts 
the accessibility of these garages as this surely would don’t normally be the case. 
 
Therefore I would like to register an objection to these proposed changes as it will be 
detrimental to the other Permit Holding users of parking on this road. 
 
Many thanks, 

 

2) 

I am writing to object to the proposals for change of parking in Trinity Street, Leamington 
Spa.  The proposal is to increase the no parking on the south side of the street at the 
western end by extending the yellow lines. 
The residents in the western end of Trinity Street need more parking, especially L1 permit 
parking [the L1 permit scheme has been tremendously successful and we, the residents, are 
very appreciative of it]. 
Please note that: 
1. Three further houses have been built by the very area that the extra yellow lines will 
cover. 
2. A little further east on Trinity Street at the junction of Trinity Street and Beauchamp Road 
there is construction of houses of multiple occupancy with many additional bedrooms but not 
additional parking was included [the residents of Trinity Street and Binswood Avenue 
objected but it was approved on appeal to London].  If the residents of these properties are 
granted L1 permits there will be massively more cars and permits issued than spaces 
available. 
3. It is proposed that residents of Binswood Street [numbers 2-62 even numbers] will be 
eligible for L1 parking permits.  They will inevitably park on the limited spaces on Trinity 
Street near to Binswood Street, and the proposal to reduce the available parking with yellow 
lines will exacerbate the problem. 
4. I recommend that Trinity Street from Binswood Street to Beauchamp Road be all made an 
L1 parking permit area on both parts of the street. 
There is a real risk that the situation area will be like the one that happened in London 
where Chelsea Kensington Council issued many more parking permits than there were 
parking spaces available.help. 
If there is an issue over road safety for pedestrians and other road users then 
making Trinity Street one way from Binswood Street to Beauchamp Road would help. 
It is not clear from the diagram/proposed plan if the proposed yellow lines will reduce the 
two L1 parking spaces by the garages just east of 157 Trinity Street.  If that happens 
that will be an additional reduction of parking spaces. 

Page 182

Page 94 of 153



At night and late in the evening the residents are often having to park on yellow lines or 
in front of garage entrances because there are already too many vehicles of people 
returning from work compared to the number of spaces available. 
Yours sincerely 
 
3) 
As the owner of xxx Binswood Avenue I am in full support of the proposed changes to the 
yellow lines in Trinity Street as shown on drawing number TR/11124-35. 
 
4) 
I am full supportive of the proposed changes to the yellow lines in Trinity St  as shown on 
drawing number TR/11124-35. 
 
 

Page 183

Page 95 of 153



Wedgeknock Green, Oken Road, Cape Road, Deerpark Drive, Newburgh Crescent. 
Corespondence.Redacted 

 

1) 

As a resident of Newburgh Crescent, I am writing with a number of concerns regarding the 
proposed changes to the parking plans for our road, Wedgnock Green and the surrounding 
roads. 

Although the current situation in Newburgh Crescent with no parking restrictions results in 
the haphazard parking of cars in the road, I am very concerned that the introduction of the 
proposed parking restrictions will result in an increase in the speed of cars in our road. The 
current parking of cars on both sides of the road does have the effect of causing chicanes in 
the road, which slows the speed of cars. From our upstairs window at the front of the house I 
have a view of almost the whole of Newburgh Crescent all the way up to Cape Road, and 
often see cars driving too fast down our relatively narrow residential road. However the 
parked cars cause the cars to reduce their speed. I therefore feel it will be very important to 
make sure that traffic calming measures are introduced in Newburgh Crescent, given the 
number of families in the road, if the proposed parking restrictions are introduced. I would 
suggest that speed humps across the road would be necessary in the road, however I 
wouldn’t recommend using speed pillows, as personally I don’t think have any affect in 
reducing the speed of vehicles as they can be easily avoided. 

I understand that Deerpark Drive will still have parking on one side of the road, so given that 
Newburgh Crescent is roughly the same width, I would propose that our road has the same, 
rather than no parking at all. Any parked cars would then cause a reduction in speeding 
traffic. 

Although most people have drives, not everyone does and a lot of houses do have more 
than one car. We do have a drive that we can just get 2 vehicles on if necessary, so would 
not need a residents permit to park on Wedgnock Green, but would want to be able to have 
visitors permits for additional residents. I am not clear how this system would work, but 
understand that this would be done online, although I do not know how you would know 
when visitors were going to leave. We used to live in Haringey in North London and had a 
residents permit system in our road, and each year we were issued with a number of visitor 
permits you could use for any visitors. 

Wedgnock Green is used by quite a large number of NHS staff for parking in the day 
currently, which must have an impact on residents with no driveway trying to park, although 
at night time, there is lots of space. I understand there will be around 20 parking bays for 
residents here, but given the number of residents in the surrounding streets without drives, 
this does not seem sufficient. I would like this number to be increased, which would have the 
knock on effect of causing the hospital to make sure that it has sufficient parking for all staff. 
The current 30 minute waiting areas on Peel Road, are nearly always empty, as 30 minutes 
is not long enough for anyone to go to the hospital for an appointment, including waiting 
time. 

I also understand that there will still be some residents parking on Cape Road, between 
Oken Road and Deerpark Drive. As someone who uses this road each morning and evening 
to drive to work in Coventry, any parked cars here cause a lot of obstruction to the flow of 
traffic, which includes local buses and lorries. I would like to see this stretch of road to be no 
waiting/parking at any time. It is particularly difficult to see the traffic coming down Cape 

Page 184

Page 96 of 153



Road when turning out right from Deerpark Drive onto Cape Road to go north, as there are 
often parked cars on the right which obstruct your view. If parking is going to be allowed on 
this stretch of Cape Road, it should take this into account and not be close to the Deerpark 
Drive at all. 

I do hope that you will take these concerns into account when finalising your plans for 
parking restrictions in this area. 

 

2) 

I am in support of the proposed parking restrictions for Wedgnock Green, 

3) 

I am generally in favour of the proposed parking scheme measures.  At number xx 
Newburgh Crescent it's very difficult to get on/off the driveway when there is someone 
parked opposite.   
 
Might I suggest though, making it single yellows rather than double on our street?  With a 
time limit 1 to 2 hours? 
 
This would make it easier for elderly relatives and friends to drop by and visit, collect and 
drop off children, grand children.  It would prevent people parking all day which is the main 
problem with provision on our street. 
 
It would give delivery drivers some access to properties. 
 
It would also provide some traffic calming to slow the speed of vehicles as I fear if it's a clear 
run, for the cars that already speed down the street, the parked cars make it less easy for 
them to do so.  It's surprisingly quite a busy road as people use it as part of a cut through 
across the town when it's busy.  From Coventry Road to Saltisford for instance. 
 
May I also request that resident's permits are free and include visitors passes/permits too. 
 
I hope you'll consider my suggestions and look forward to hearing more about the scheme. 
 

4) 

Proposed Waiting Restrictions / Residents' Parking Scheme Wedgnock Green and 
Surrounding Area, Warwick  Warwick CPE Variation 6 TR\11124 - 37   
 
Thank you for your letter outlining the councils plans for parking on Cape Rd and 
surrounding area.  
 
I have viewed the plan and fully support the proposal with no objections. 
 
The only addition I would like to add is for wooden posts to be placed in the grass verges 
that run alongside Cape Rd. Continuous parking on these grass verges is a serious hazard, 
not only damaging the verge, but making reversing off our driveway into a fast flow of traffic 
dangerous due to the restricted vision.  
 
I have already made a request for the above - PEM reference No. 507439, but as of today 
received no reply. 

Page 185

Page 97 of 153



 

5) 

Warwick District CPE variation 6 /Deerpark Drive/Wedgnock Green/Cape Road. 
 
With reference to the above scheme and additionally to objections we recently presented 
please view the two attached Pictures. 
The pictures were taken on Monday 23rd March around 10am. I monitored this over the 
following days and can confirm no additional vehicles were seen parking. 
Obviously no issues with parking which is odd considering most residents are home due to 
the Covid-19 regulations which require people to stay home. 
All vehicles in the pictures are those belonging to residents and this is representative of 
weekend parking. 
 
Therefore it is obvious that residents do not cause this problem yet will be financially 
penalised and possible inconvenienced. 
NHS staff have been blamed for the parking issues but I am confident that the stay at home 
policy highlights that other workers are the main culprits as NHS heroes are still working! 
 
Solve the problem of inconsiderate workers parking in residential streets. 
Do not impose extra burdens on hard working residents. 
 
We look forward to your response to our objections. 
 

Page 186

Page 98 of 153



 
 

 

Page 187

Page 99 of 153



 
 

6) 

As a resident of Deerpark Drive I’m writing to show my overwhelming support in favour of the 
parking restrictions proposed in and around our street.  Driveways are blocked, causing 
home owners great difficulty in coming and going from their own homes. Footpaths 
obstructed with no regard for the elderly, disabled or young families.  The general increase in 
footfall in the area causing other forms of anti social behaviour such as littering. 
 
Please let’s get this done! 

 

7) 

As you can see by the address below we live on Cape Road in the affected areas so I can 
only really comment on the area around our house. 
  

Page 188

Page 100 of 153



On a normal work day, most of the cars that park on Cape Road (between Dear Park & 
Oken Road) and directly outside our house (sometimes blocking the our drive) have 
Warwickshire County Council Staff Parking Permits displayed in their windscreens. Watching 
the drivers getting out most have lanyards with WCC ID passes. Simple evidence shows that 
the majority of the parking problems in the area are caused by the people and their work 
colleagues that work for the WCC and more than likely the Highways department! 
  
The proposed limited waiting / Permit Parking area along the east side of Cape Road is 
nearly impossible, only about 3 or 4 of the houses along this stretch of road “do not” have off 
street parking and dropped kerbs. Parking is very limited already. 
  
Parking is available on the west side, but most park on the very wide pavement to ease the 
flow of traffic along the road. There is still plenty of room on the pavement for mobility 
scooters etc to pass when cars are parked. So the idea of double yellows is a good idea as 
long as you allow permit parking on the pavement as you have done in the surrounding 
roads. 
  
Parking Permits for our visitors that stop for more than 30 mins, Are they free or do our 
visitors have to pay to parker there car? None of this is mentioned! 
  
Warwick District Council, in there “Residential Design Guide” May 2018, clearly state 
that “Existing front gardens, should be protected from becoming hardstanding for vehicle 
parking areas”. The proposal to remove all, or nearly all, of the on street parking goes 
against the Planning Guidelines and will force property owners to convert their gardens to 
hard surfaces for parking. This is something I unfortunately will have to look into. 
  
The traffic is worse than ever at the moment due to the over running works on Birmingham 
Road. So any analysis should be does after these works are complete and the traffic has 
settled down. 
  
If you would like to discuss any of my comments, please contact me on the number below. 
 

8) 

We live at xx Wedgnock Green and we are writing to offer our support and happiness at the 
proposal for Wedgnock Green and surrounding roads. 
 
As for justification of our support; our house we often get inconsiderate parking, berate 
drivers and hostilities when a hospital or local worker is requested to move their car. At times 
we have found difficulty in parking our car in our drive due to this. Twice last year we have 
not been able to drive out and at least ten times we have seen a car parked outside our 
house almost all night. I previously mentioned before that this was possibly taking away 
revenue from the hospital carpark as well as being a nuisance to us. 
 
All in all we are happy for this scheme and would happily provide counter arguments should 
anyone disagree with this! 
 

 

 

9) 

Page 189

Page 101 of 153



I strongly object to the proposal to introduce parking restrictions to Oken Road which will 
ultimately penalise friends and relatives visiting this street at any time, when the real problem 
is almost exclusively council employees parking in this area during normal office hours. 
 
 
The council should grasp the nettle and encourage their staff to find other modes of transport 
to travel to work.  
 

10) 

With regard to the proposed scheme from the “statement-of-reasons.pdf” Warwickshire 
County Council Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984The Warwickshire County Council (District 
of Warwick) (Permitted Parking Area and Special Parking Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On-
Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation No. 6) Order 
2020Wedgnock Green,Oken Road, Cape Road, Deerpark Drive, Newburgh Crescent–No 
Waiting at any Time. It is proposed to introduce “no waiting” at any time restrictions for the 
extents of the junction of Wedgnock Green. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or 
traffic,and ensuring free flow of traffic. Objections: 1. Residents have NOT caused this 
current issue. Workers leave their vehicles during the day Monday to Friday, leave them in 
an inconsiderate manner with little regard for road traffic regulations or effects on residents. 
There is no issue on weekends or school holidays when the majority of residents are home. I 
have lived here since 1982 and this problem has appeared in the last couple of years. We 
are in effect being penalized for other persons actions. 2. The proposed plan reduces 
available parking bays within view of our home address. Our property is severely 
disadvantaged due our location. Our frontages are barely deep enough to accommodate a 
vehicle. We currently use pavements and an area around a small green space. The area 
around green space is NOT shown as parking in the plan and I estimate at least six spaces 
will disappear near our address. We would have two options. Park in a bay used by a 
neighbour (on a first come first served basis!) Park further away within the W7 permit zone. 
We have very good relations with our neighbours and do not wish to upset anyone by 
parking outside their property. 3. We note that there are limited resident bays proposed 
around Wedgnock Green. If this area is to become a residents permit area the number of 
unrestricted bays should be reduced to a minimum, ensuring residents are able to park 
within a the W7 zone. If there are no available residents or unrestricted bays where would 
we park? 4. We have concerns over security of ourselves and vehicles. Our Daughter 
returns home late from work some evenings due to her shift pattern and the street lights go 
off well before her return. She suffers from severe anxiety attacks and this could exacerbate 
her condition . Page 1 She is (as we are) very concerned over her personal safety. There 
have been numerous instances of lone females being followed recently in the area. Is fair to 
expose her or anyone else to such heightened risks? 5. My partner is self employed and 
owns a long wheel base van. He currently parks directly opposite our property. The plan 
shows that this space will be disappearing. Due to the length of the vehicle he will occupy 
two bays and may cause other residents to complain. Due to the fact that his vehicle has 
been broken into we now have CCTV covering it whilst parked. If he had to park in another 
location this security would disappear. Furthermore he removes all valuable tools overnight 
and loads these in the morning before commencing work. Some of the equipment is large 
and heavy. Parking within a reasonable distance allows him to continue his business. He 
would NOT be able to continue in business if he is expected to park away. It would add extra 
time and stress to his working day. 6. Financial implications We note that there are 
proposals to increase the price of the permit to £80 pa per vehicle. From the start of this year 
our costs have increased significantly. Both household and business costs have shown large 

Page 190

Page 102 of 153



increases, whilst our combined incomes have failed to meet the increases. I would in effect 
work one week of my part time job to cover an £80 permit! Why are we now expected to pay 
a fee per vehicle with no guarantee of finding a space locally? We write this as the 
implications around Covid 19 add to the uncertainty for household incomes. Even at this 
early stage it is highly likely that my partner will be impacted. His self employment status 
affords him no right to any financial support and the impact on my work security is not clear. 
7. The statement of reasons sets out : “avoiding danger to persons or traffic, and ensuring 
free flow of traffic” We do not believe that introducing “no waiting” at any time and permit 
parking will achieve this outcome. We feel that many of the people leaving vehicles 
immediately in the vicinity of our house work for the council and NHS. Due to lack of 
provision or planning with regard to workers arriving by car both the council and NHS have 
caused this problem. The solution lies in providing provisions for workers arriving by car or 
ensuring workers adopt alternative modes of transport ensuring cars are not left in 
residential streets during working hours. The roads surrounding our area were never 
intended to cope with the levels of vehicles when the estate was conceived 100 years ago. 
Traffic Chaos in the Warwick area often results in queues on Cape Road and surrounding 
roads as traffic volume increase. Parked vehicles on Cape Road from the junction of Oken 
Road to Deerpark Drive often cause hindrance to traffic flows. Your plan does nothing to 
avoid this aspect and will fail to “ensure free flowing Traffic”. We object to the plan in the 
current form as we do not think your objectives will be met. At the same time certain 
residents will be impacted disproportionally in a negative way. We believe the cause of the 
problem should be addressed. We also think it would be constructive to explore the 
possibilities of a one way system and 20 MPH zone in the area of Deerpark Drive, Newburgh 
Crescent, Wedgnock Green. 

 

11) 

 I am concerned about road safety on Newburgh Crescent if these plans go ahead. Already 
to many drivers go to fast on this narrow road .if parking is restricted it will lead to more even 
more speeding and danger to residents . Road bumps will be needed to reduce this situation 
or the plans need to be reconsidered .Further residents having to pay £25 for a parking 
badge is unfair as they are parking where they live and this has always been free .it 
discriminates against those residents who cannot afford to have a car port . 

    Please let me know how the issues I have raised are to be addressed. 

12) 

 
I am a resident in Deerpark drive I fully support the restrictions as I am getting fed up with 
people parking outside my house in such a way that pedestrians sometimes having to go in 
the road to get back on the path many of them with young children,we have alot of drivers 
pass down this road who think it's ok to use it as a race track and that is dangerous for the 
people who have to walk on the road because of the cars that dont park close to the kirb 
then I see people looking towards my house shaking there heads thinking it's someone at 
my house,I am not the only one that feels this way,and also when people pull up to park 
sometimes I have to say to them can u park properly please or say would you kindly find 
somewhere else to park as I'm having work done hear the odd few are ok but most of them 
get aggressive towards me and insult me,please please do something about the parking in 

Page 191

Page 103 of 153



the area it cannot go on like this so many residents have had enough but are to afraid to say 
so. thank you 

 

13) 

I am a resident of Newburgh Crescent and fully support the proposals suggested. I have a 
young child and am about to give birth to my second. I will be a stay at home mum for a 
while. We also have a dog. It is getting increasingly awkward and dangerous going out for a 
walk with both the pushchair and dog as I’m constantly having to walk in the road due to 
inconsiderate parking taking up most of the pavement. These plans would eradicate this 
issue. It is also very difficult if I have any visitors during the day as there is nowhere for them 
to park. The green at the top of our road is pretty much full by almost 7/7.30am during the 
week. My husband walks our dog around this time and says that people are parking up so 
early and leaving their engines running for lengths of time just to secure a parking space. 
This is obviously not great for the environment either. I’ve lived on the Crescent for nearly 12 
years now and have definitely noticed the situation getting worse and worse. 
 
I just hope there is enough support to allow the plans to go ahead. 
 

14) 

I am writing to you to give my support for the proposed parking changes for Wedgenock 
Green and the surrounding roads 
 
Being a resident of Deerpark Drive with no driveway, I have found that parking near my 
property is often hard due to non-residents vehicles often being parked on the pavement 
outside my property. This has caused quite a bit of inconvenience, especially as myself and 
my partner have recently moved in and are often having to carry heavy/large items to and 
from the property 
 
Despite this support, I implore the council to work with the hospitals and other local business 
to ensure adequate transport and parking provisions are made to alleviate the problem 
parking and to ensure that the problem is solved rather than moved 
 
Many thanks for your work serving our community, 
 

 

 

15) 

Further to the letter dated 28 February 2020 and a request for support or objections to the 
proposed scheme, please see pictures below taken outside and opposite our house (37 
Newburgh Crescent) last week and previous. These images are not extraordinary for 
weekday parking in the road by non-residents (hospital and council workers), even though 
they are ridiculous from an access / egress perspective not only for residents but for 
pedestrians and emergency vehicles. People are having to walk in the road as pavements 
are blocked, including those with pushchairs or mobility aids. My husband has a visual 
impairment and frequently has to walk in the road due to the poor parking. This is also 
hazardous as despite the parking situation, there are many drivers who think that our road is 
a race track - despite it being narrow and cars parked everywhere. 
 

Page 192

Page 104 of 153



There is frequently trouble backing off the drive and having to go backwards and forwards as 
someone's parked right behind our car on the road. We have also had people drive on and 
off our drive to turn around as they can't be bothered to drive round the block. Is this not 
trespassing? 
 
We have taken numerous photos and have been in correspondence with John Holland, our 
local PCSO Peter Groom and to others at the council over the years as this has got worse 
over recent times. When I first moved in, there was nothing like the poor parking there is 
now..... 
 
We have been lobbying to get the parking situation resolved for several years now and are 
pleased it is finally being taken notice of. Therefore please consider this e mail of whole 
hearted support for the scheme - and not before time! 

 
 

Page 193

Page 105 of 153



 
 

Page 194

Page 106 of 153



 
 

Page 195

Page 107 of 153



 

Page 196

Page 108 of 153



 
 

 

16 ) 
I received your letter dated 28 February Re: Warwick District CPE Variation 6. 
 
I wish to register an objection to the apparent Proposed Limited Waiting zone on the 
Wedgenock Green traffic scheme outside number xx Deerpark Drive as this would be 
straight across my driveway restricting access to the road. 
 
I can only think this is a mistake. 
 
https://wccroadsafetyengineering.files.wordpress.com/2020/03/wedgenock-green-
warwick.pdf 
 
Can you acknowledge this objection and assure me it is being reviewed please?  
 

17) 

To whom it may concern, 
 
We are fully in support of the parking proposals. Measures such as those proposed are long 
overdue. 

 

Page 197

Page 109 of 153

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwccroadsafetyengineering.files.wordpress.com%2F2020%2F03%2Fwedgenock-green-warwick.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C4ba6506215954aeff5c808d7c4166881%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637193472836553916&sdata=Sng%2B4LHbycTXUe8b8m5wkKv%2FWu22hLP7VR8g0fDV3%2Bg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwccroadsafetyengineering.files.wordpress.com%2F2020%2F03%2Fwedgenock-green-warwick.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C4ba6506215954aeff5c808d7c4166881%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637193472836553916&sdata=Sng%2B4LHbycTXUe8b8m5wkKv%2FWu22hLP7VR8g0fDV3%2Bg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwccroadsafetyengineering.files.wordpress.com%2F2020%2F03%2Fwedgenock-green-warwick.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C4ba6506215954aeff5c808d7c4166881%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C0%7C637193472836553916&sdata=Sng%2B4LHbycTXUe8b8m5wkKv%2FWu22hLP7VR8g0fDV3%2Bg%3D&reserved=0


18) 

I am resident at xx Newburgh Crescent, and I would like to object to the proposal on safety 
grounds.  
 
Currently, unrestricted parking means cars can be parked on the road / pavements 
effectively narrowing the road. This has the effect of slowing down those muppets who wish 
to drive fast on this road (over 30mph) meaning children and other pedestrians / road users 
are at less risk from collision. As per its name, Newburgh Crescent is a curved road, 
meaning that speeding cars are hard to see until it's too late. Even driving on / off the 
hardstanding is sometime tricky when encountering some idiot racing down the empty road. 
 

 

19) 

Hello, further to the letter outlining the consultation on parking restrictions effecting 
Newburgh Crescent Warwick.  
 
We would like to express our support for parking restrictions on Newburgh Crescent and the 
surrounding streets. 
 
Firstly I could not locate the proposals and plans on the website mentioned in the letter, not 
sure if you could check out if they have been uploaded yet? 
 
We have lived here for 19 years and for the following reasons we support the plans:- 
 
Newburgh Crescent is very narrow road and people who work at the hospital and in the town 
use our road and the surrounding streets to park for long periods of time, often very badly. 
 
On occasions we struggle to drive out of our estate for badly parked cars.  We once 
witnessed an ambulance who could not get through - what hope would a fire engine have? 
 
People have no thought for the residents - we once had someone visiting the hospital park 
over our drive blocking our cars in and her reason for this action "parking round here is a 
nightmare "!! 
 
We have three young children who we have to get to school on time and because of 
inconsiderate people, with often bad attitudes (if challenged) we find driving from my home 
very stressful . Accidents with parked cars or cars coming out of junctions with poor visibility 
is just waiting to happen. 
 
We would welcome the restrictions which we feel would benefit our physically being able to 
drive our young family safely from our home on a daily basis and also our mental health in 
doing so. 
 
We very much hope that the restrictions come into place. 

 

20) 

I hereby agree to the proposals for Deerpark Drive Warwick 

Page 198

Page 110 of 153



 

21) 

Good morning. 
I have just received a letter regarding parking restrictions on millers road Warwick.. having 
look on the website millers road is not listed. Can you please express the proposed plans to 
my parking? If I’m receiving a letter 1 day before the objection period ends then I would like 
to receive information regarding this. 
 
Parking is extremely tight already in this area and with hospital workers parking we struggle 
to park outside our own house. If the council are willing to pay for kerb removal then I will be 
ok with it. Having 2 small children I request that I’m able to park outside my own hose. 

 

 

 

Page 199

Page 111 of 153



Page 200

Page 112 of 153



Page 201

Page 113 of 153



Page 202

Page 114 of 153



Page 203

Page 115 of 153



Page 204

Page 116 of 153



Page 205

Page 117 of 153



Page 206

Page 118 of 153



Page 207

Page 119 of 153



Wharf Street.Corespondence.Redacted 

 

1) 

With reference to the proposal above and specifically with regard to parking restrictions in 
Wharf st. I would like to say thank you for this long overdue proposal. I live at xx wharf st and 
have been plagued by inconsiderate drivers parking outside the house and half way across 
my drive. I have had one accident coming off my driver due to not having any visibility to 
oncoming traffic due to vehicles blocking any view and other road users speeding and not 
being able to see me. 
  
I also have a drop kerb that only covers half the drive and drivers constantly park up to the 
edge of the drop kerb restricting my access. As an example if I’m approaching wharf st from 
under the railway bridge and a car is parked up-to the drop kerb I have no option but to 
reverse onto the drive. This is ok during quiet times but in rush hour on a number of 
occasion i have nearly been hit from behind by speeding drivers. 
  
I wholeheartedly support this initiative which will reduce traffic, poor parking reduce risk of 
accidents and improve traffic flow in what is a residential street and would be grateful if the 
yellow lines can be painted up-to the drop kerb at number xx wharf st. 
  
Thanks for making my day today with the letter through our door. 
 
2)  
 
Whilst the councils proposals to paint double yellow line in Wharf Street as per the plans 
outlined is an excellent idea my concern it that it will only move the parking  problem further 
up the road.  
I live at number xx and there is often cars parked on both sides of the road sometimes 
blocking the disabled dropped curb and on occasions parked in such a way that it makes it 
difficult for lorries and buses to get through. I personally would like the scheme extended so 
the double lines run the complete length of the street adjacent to Campriano Drive. 
Regards  
 
3) 
 
I'm writing to express my support for the proposed parking restrictions to be implemented 
on Wharf Street in Warwick. I live in at xx Wharf Street and the double yellow line will ensure 
that access to my driveway is not impeded by other vehicles.  
 
In addition, I believe that the proposed changes will greatly improve the overall access along 
the street and prevent past incidents where vehicles have had difficulty passing due to 
parked vehicles. This has previously been a particular problem when events have taken 
place at St Nicholas Park.  
 
4) 
 
My name is xxxxxxxxxxx, I live in xx Wharf Street, Warwick. Yesterday, I received by post a 
letter from the Council about consultation for parking restrictions. 
 
As requested in the letter, below my suggestions. 
  
I agree there is need to put some restrictions in order to ensure free flow of traffic. However, 
I personally find too drastic the proposal of “no waiting at any time”’ in Wharf Street. I 

Page 208

Page 120 of 153



personally think that a restriction “No Waiting Monday – Saturday 8am-6pm” would be more 
appropriate. This because the problems of too many cars parked in the street are mainly in 
the day time (several people park there and then go to take the train). In the evenings the 
road is much more empty. Only few spaces are occupied by people that live in the area, 
which is good to me. 
 
5) 
 
We have received your communication with regards the changes to parking restrictions 
which will affect the street we live on, Wharf Street. 
 
Having looked at the proposed parking plans online, I see that you are to implement double 
yellow lines from the Railway end of Wharf Street up to the turning onto Cliffe Way. 
 
I have to say that as much as I welcome the proposals, at this time I will have to raise 
an objection as all the double yellow lines will do is move the parking problem further 
down Wharf Street. 
 
Every morning you can see cars going up and down Wharf Street looking for a space where 
they can park their car for the day, usually at the residents of Wharf Street expense.  All of 
the these cars tend to be for people working at the Fiat garage, people not wanting to pay for 
parking at Warwick Station and most commonly Warwick Hospital Staff where they park 
on Wharf Street, Cliffe Way, Nelson Lane and any other road they can find. 
 
Along wharf street we are currently experiencing more and more cars starting to park on the 
far side of the road if there are no spaces available which is creating problems in that 
sometimes residents are unable to reverse out of their own driveways as the cars are 
effectively blocking them in.   
 
One option would to be extend your proposals for double yellow lines to include the whole of 
the far side of the road on Wharf Street (hence preventing a car slalom course when cars 
are parked on both sides) and maybe introduce parking permits for the street. 
 
Another issue on Wharf Street is many houses have white T-lines that cover the dropped 
curb aspect of the street, yet we still have cars on a daily basis who park right across the T-
lines.  Maybe you could provide the residents with a communal clamp so we can point out 
the issue to them, obviously we wouldn't charge them to remove the clamp but it will teach 
them a valuable lesson! 
 
Wharf Street does feel like a forgotten street in the council's plans.  It was not that long ago 
when the road was to be re-tarmac'd... but shortly before it was due to happen it was 
cancelled because apparently Wharf Street is made of the wrong tarmac!! 
 
On Nelson Lane there is currently space where companies want to build houses but the 
plans are always refused on traffic grounds.  Why don't you open up this space and convert 
it to a temporary car park while the council find alternative solutions. 
 
Like I say, if you were to put double yellow lines the whole length of the far side of Wharf 
Street then you might get a lot more support but at the present time, until you come up a with 
a solution that will not just simply push all the parking problems further up the street then we 
would object to the proposal. 
 
6) 
 

Page 209

Page 121 of 153



Existing parking issues 

Parking along Wharf Street (top and bottom of) & Cliffe Way is already an issue due to: 

· Visitors to Warwick hospital (when parking down Nelson Lane is busy) 

· Visitors to Evolation Yoga (no parking for customers) 

· Employees of Warwickshire Napton House (housing for adults with learning disabilities) 

· Employees of the Fiat garage 

· Employees of Coten End School 

· Employees of the Storage companies by the bridge and employees of John Barber leaving 
personal vehicles as they pick up their work vans 

· People using the train that can’t park on Broad Street due to the permit system in place 

Current Impact 

· Cars already park on the side of the road opposite residents essentially creating a chicane 
at times and causing residents issues accessing and exiting driveways 

Risks 

· To Pedestrians; school children and homeowners 

· Speeding - Wharf Street is already seen as a “short cut” rather than Emscote Road, with 
motorists clearly exceeding the 30mph speed limit 

· This is a popular road for schoolchildren going to Coten End – it’s already dangerous given 
the current parking situation, plus volume and speed of traffic 

Proposed works 

Q) Can you confirm what the objectives of the proposed plans are? 

Q) What problem is it trying to solve? 

Q) Do you have an impact assessment on proposed plans you can share? 

Impact on proposed works 

· This will only exacerbate existing issues - pushing the problem further up Wharf Street 

Possible solutions for consideration 

· Parking permits for Wharf Street residents 

· Double yellow lines on the side of the road opposite properties 

Page 210

Page 122 of 153



· Pressure businesses to provide ample parking for their own employees and customers 

Key issue 

· Given Wharf Street and Cliffe Way’s proximity to schools; hospitals and businesses there 
isn’t enough space to accommodate parking demand – the question is how we manage this 
safely now and in the future for both pedestrians and motorists – as such the plans need 
reviewing. 

 
7) 
 
I live at xxWharf street and would like to submit comments about the proposed changes to 
parking on Wharf Street. 
 
Although the proposed changes will address the issue of parking around the junction of 
Wharf St and Cliffe way and under the railway bridge, it seems likely that the cars that park 
there reguarily will find alternative parking close by. 
 
My concern is that people will start to park on Wharf street opposite the houses that run from 
the junction of Cliffe way and Nelson lane. This has already started to happen albeit 
infrequently, but the proposed changes are almost guaranteed to ensure that this 
becomes  daily common practice for people looking to park their cars.  
 
My objection to this is twofold, people parking opposite the houses would make accessing 
and leaving the driveways somewhere between impossible and extremely difficult, 
depending on where the cars are parked. Cars parked on both sides  of the road also makes 
navigating traffic approaching from the opposite direction difficult, on occasion dangerous. 
The volume of traffic on Wharf street during the week is significant. 
 
My request or suggestion is that the proposed double yellow lines be extended all the way 
along Wharf street, on the opposite side from the houses that run between the junction of 
Cliffe Way and Nelson lane. If this cannot be done then I object to the proposed changes on 
the grounds that the change is likely to have material and negative consequence on the 
people who live on Wharf street. 
 
8) 
 
Thank you for sending us the letter ref changes to parking . My partner xxxx has submitted 
his thoughts , I wanted to add a couple of additional comments please . 
 
I have started to work at home in the last year or so now , I have noticed a vast amount of 
changes to the traffic on Wharf street . The parking is becoming intense and becoming a 
aggressive road as they speed down the road very fast I’m talking 40 mph plus . Cars are 
beeping at each other and exchanging hand gestures and bad language .  Sometimes they 
miss our parked cars by mm . I have enclosed some of the parking photos from junctions 
and parked cars on the other side of  the street . 
 In addition I watch the recycling lorry struggle on Fridays when cars are parked on the other 
side of the road as very little room to pass , this also continues with new cars being delivered 
to the Fiat garage which travel on a large lorry  . Additional large lorries come down this road 
also to deliver supplies to Storage unit next to the bridge . Tree surgeons , builders etc .I feel 
that we are always on the tail end of issues ,  it’s like a no Mans road . I would like to think 
that residents can park their own cars near their homes especially after recent break ins we 
suffered , 11 in total .  I would like to think possible residents parking permits and double 

Page 211

Page 123 of 153



yellow lines on the other side of our homes on Wharf street . 
I was trying to gain access to our drive this week , it took 14 point turn as the access was 
blocked by parked cars .  Would really value your help for us to be looked after , especially 
after the new apartments that are being built on Wharf street which have no parking as part 
of the sale and excessive cars from hospital staff , yoga centre etc 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 212

Page 124 of 153



 
 
 

Page 213

Page 125 of 153



 
 
 

Page 214

Page 126 of 153



 
 
 

Page 215

Page 127 of 153



 
 
 

Page 216

Page 128 of 153



 
 
 
10) 
 
In response to your letter dated 28 Feb, I’d like to formally object to the proposed parking 
restrictions on Wharf Street. 
 
 
There are a number of reasons for this that include: 

• The proposal is not solving the problem, you are just moving it further down the street 
• No impact assessment has been shared or objective for the proposed proposal 
• The road is used as a cut through and cars just speed down it - what is being done to 

prevent this? 
• What other options were considered and why were they not put forward in the 

proposal 
As I say the proposed restrictions do not seem to be solving the problem and as a resident 
of Wharf Street I am deeply concerned about this proposal. 
 
 
11) 
 
As a resident of Wharf Street, I am writing to stress my concerns over the proposed parking 
restrictions. Whilst I agree there is an issue by the fiat garage  and under the bridge,and 
double yellow lines will resolve this, it will only serve to push the parking problems further 
along to the residential end of the street, where parking is already at a premium. The 
majority of the homes have turned their gardens into off street parking and paid to have the 

Page 217

Page 129 of 153



kerbs dropped. With cars already parking where they can by  undropped kerbs it makes 
reversing off our drives quite difficult at the best of times. I foresee without double yellow 
lines on the opposite side of the road, all the current cars that park at the far end by the 
garage will park opposite the housing thus making it impossible to get on or off our own 
drives. 
When the housing was built and a path put on that side of the road, I believe parking bays 
and yellow lines were requested, but declined as the street would not be monitored by a 
traffic warden. Therefore would it be more prudent to give the residents parking permits for 
street parking as required, but that would still need reinforcing by a patrol. 
Yours sincerely 
 
11) 
 

Your ref - Wharf Street - No Waiting at Anytime i. West side, from its junction with Cliffe Way, 
northwards for 18 metres 

ii. West side, from its junction with Cliffe Way, northwards for 20 metres 

iii. West side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with Highlands Close, southwards 
for 37 metres 

iv. East side, from a point 150 metres north of its junction with Broad Street, northwards for 
77 metres 

These geographical descriptions appear nonsense, 

Item i and ii have restrictions that would be in the same place. 

Am I right in thinking that this should say ‘ At the junction of Wharf St & Cliffe Way the 
parking restriction will extend westwards up Cliffe way on either side of the road’ 

Item iii – Wharf Street has no junction with Highlands Close at all. 

So there cannot be a restriction ‘ south of Wharf Street junction with Highlands Close’ 

It concerns me that these descriptions are so inaccurate and this is the only link I could find 
– why couldn’t you send a link to a map? 

As a result I feel misled. 

In addition I have a number of points to raise – 

a)Yes for years there has been and is dangerous parking at the junction of Wharf Street and 
Cliffe Way - parking is on the verge in Cliffe way. 

b)Increasing parking on the east side of Wharf Street is making it dangerous for cars to 
reverse out from drives on the front of their properties. And residents are being verbally 
abused. 

c)The elbow bend in Wharf Street north east of nelsons lane and the parking bays outside 
the Wharf buildings on the east side of Wharf Street make that bend very dangerous. 

Page 218

Page 130 of 153



d)We have a residential home and a block of specially adapted flats for the disabled in Wharf 
Street, therefore we have a higher number than average of disabled residents. We have a 
number of dropped crossing for this reason but people regularly park on them and there is 
no enforcement. 

e)15 years ago I fought for 3 years to have safe pavement put on the east side of Wharf 
street, at that time the architect and myself specifically requested that double yellow lines be 
put in on the east side, of Wharf Street opposite residents houses. We were told that there 
was no point as no traffic wardens policed the road. 

Unless the council can guarantee that the ‘no waiting restrictions ‘will be enforced, there is 
no point in putting them in. 

f)When the new Residential Unit was built next to Gray’s garage – (who have car transporter 
deliveries) I pointed out that parking by 24 hour shift staff at the home would cause a 
problem. 

In addition parking outside Gray’s Garage makes entry and exit onto their premises really 
dangerous. 

g)Massive parking issues have been caused by totally inadequate parking provision in the 
housing estate around Campriano Drive; and now more parking problems are about to be 
caused by the Wharf buildings in Wharf Street which are currently being turned into flat and 
have no parking. 

These problems can be laid directly at the door of poor planning decisions. 

I reiterate unless you are going to enforce restrictions with regular traffic warden patrols 
there is no point 

h)In addition I would like to know if you do put in parking restrictions, will residents need to 
have permits for parking outside their own properties, require visitors permits, and what will 
they cost? 

I am objecting to the proposal. - 
Unless double yellow lines are put along the entire length of the east side of Wharf Street ie 
opposite all the residential houses from the junction of  Wharf Street and Cliffe Way to 
Nelson Lane - 
all that  the current plan will do is displace the parking to the residential part of Wharf Street, 
this will cause more traffic flow issues, endanger pedestrians, and cause more problems for 
access on and off to driveways. 
This proposal is ill thought through, you need to consult residents about double yellow line 
opposite the houses, and make sure the restriction will be enforced by wardens.  
 
 
12) 
 
I would like to protest the proposed double yellow lines along cliffe way and partial areas 
of wharf street. 
 
The fact is a lot of the parking down by the bridge, and further along the street is from people 
working down the street. Fiat garage. Storage solutions. The school. People parking and 
then going to the station. All putting double yellows down there and Cliffe Way will do is push 
it up our street. Moving the problem. Not solving it. we already have an issue with people 

Page 219

Page 131 of 153



starting to park at the bottom of the Nelson Lane junction for people going to the hospital. 
This will only make this worse. Causing problems entering and exiting our drives. 
 
Solution could be employers providing better parking for employees. Parking permits and 
double yellow lines but to be discussed on the opposite side of wharf street to the original 
houses. 
 
 
13) 
 
I’m not sure if you’ll be picking these emails up currently, but we would like to object to the 
proposed double yellow lines on Wharf Street please. We live in the property xxxxxxxx 
railway bridge. Cars often travel quite fast down Wharf Street, but do have to slow where 
cars are parked and it is often necessary for cars to pause and give way. We were 
concerned that without the parked cars, cars would continue to travel at speed and not need 
to slow down, increasing risk to pedestrians and our young family. Interestingly this strangest 
of weeks there are only a handful of parked cars here, and cars are travelling too quickly, 
which seems to have tested the hypothesis. 
  
A second, but less important concern, would be that our visitors (including elderly parents) 
would be unlikely to find parking outside our house (because other cars would likely be 
occupying the few available spaces). 
  
We would be grateful if you would consider our objection. 
 
 
14) 
 
I live at xx Wharf Street. Cars currently park on my side of the street outside my property 
which is fine. However if anyone also then parks on the opposite side of the street it makes it 
difficult to access my property safely with my car on to the drive. 
 
It seems a good idea to have double yellow lines under the bridge and at the corners 
of Wharf Street and Cliffe Way, but this will encourage parking at the Nelson Lane end, and 
as there are no restrictions people will park on both sides of the street. 
 
If the proposed restrictions go ahead, there should also be restricted parking all along the 
street opposite the houses to enable safe access to properties. 
 
Kind regards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 220

Page 132 of 153



William Street.Corespondence.Redacted 

 

1) 

Thank you for you coming back to me so quickly, I appreciate it. 
 
Just so I'm clear the proposal is to increase the L4 residents parking to include William 
Street?  Can I also just check that (as your plan indicates) that would include a (one?) bay 
on the William Street (EAST) where there used to be a loading bay but currently there are 
double yellow lines? 
 
Is there any consideration to making Wood Street (North of William Street) and on the West 
side also part of the scheme? 
 

 

2) 

I received a letter to my home address (xx Wood Street) to inform me of the consultation into 
parking restrictions. 
I believe related to William Street (as Wood street does not appear in the list) 
 
With regard to the proposals for William Street I am in favour of the residents scheme being 
extended as there is currently insufficient provision for the localised area and where there is 
potential capacity, close by, it is actually a different zone (Zone 0) so is no use to the 
residents of Zone 4. 
Previous contact with your department has requested that the remaining section of Wood 
Street, currently not included in the resident parking zone, should also have residents 
parking status and it seems such a shame this is not being applied at the same time. 
Marked on the attached map in RED (with current allocated areas marked in GREEN) [at the 
North end, on the West side of Wood Street.] 
I would request if this is a possible extension it could be considered at this time? 
   

 
 
The growing number of property developments of single dwellings / business premises 
changing to multiple number residential properties, within a very small area, has/will had a 
detrimental effect on availability. Even with the, limited, parking provision within these 
developments there is always further demand than is provided. 

Page 221

Page 133 of 153



 
However the increased capacity, especially where the proposed increase in parking charges 
being forced onto residents would at least be partially mitigated by the increased potential to 
be able to park in the area we are paying for, would be a positive step and I'm sure will be 
welcomed by all residents in the vicinity. 
 
Again, I would request the Wood Street proposal be considered in this stage as it would 
likely become unviable for any action to be taken for some time in the future. 
 

3) 

I am writing to you to communicate my support for the proposed introduction of parking 
restrictions on William Street, Leamington Spa. 
 
I am a William Street resident and currently pay for an L4 Residents' Parking Permit and a 
Visitors' Permit, and I often find it difficult to park near to my home. The situation has been 
gradually getting worse over the last few months and I wrote to the council about it a few 
months ago, so I am pleased to see action being taken. 
 

4) 

As a resident of william Street, Leamington Spa, I write in strong support of the proposals 
notified within the consultation document for this area. At present, William Street is a magnet 
for commuters (Monday to Friday) and shoppers (especially weekends). Commuters want to 
park all day, free. Shoppers want to linger in the town centre for long periods. All week, there 
has been a demand for places late into the night from those using town centre pubs and 
restaurants.   
 
 
The consequence is that it is impossible to park near the house on any day, when arriving 
home before at least until 6 p.m.. and that is not a certainty. Although we have now been 
allowed residents' parking permits in zone L4, our street in not (yet) in that zone. This just 
displaces the problem as residents in streets already within L4 need parking places too. 
Often William Street is an 'overflow' parking area for neighbours in adjacent streets.  
 
 
At present, we have the following problems, in addition to the above: 
1. commuters arrive earlier and earlier to secure a space, if available.  
2. they frequently sit in their cars, engine running, passing the time until their work place 
opens. This is bad for the environment, and for us, when near our open windows. 
3. cars circulate the area, looking for a place to become available, and competing for one 
when it does. 
4. 'parking rage' - hussling us (and sometimes verbally abusing us) to move more quickly 
when we are spotted leaving our house and getting into a car. 
 
 
In summary, the proposed scheme is to be warmly welcomed for reasons of amenity (as 
specified in the WCC document), practicality and environmental improvement. 
 
 
(It might be noted that a petition signed by many neighbours was submitted to WCC some 
time ago, calling for the inclusion of William Street in L4. I believe one of our neighbours will 
be forwarding a copy within their response to the consultation.) 
 

Page 222

Page 134 of 153



5) 

Reference to the consultation to permit William Street to L4 permiT. I would like to add my 
support to the proposal from myself and my husband who live on xx William Street, and have 
done for 5 years. In addition please find attached the petition signed by residents of William 
Street, Wood Street and Rosefield Street, which was conducted in March 2018. All residents 
were in support of permitting William street due to the increased issues we face regarding a 
lack of parking. We received both the support of our local Lib Dem councillor and our MP 
(labour), in attempts to get these changes implemented. We are pleased that you are now 
considering this.  
 
 

 
William Street - Petition for… 
 
 
William street is currently used as a free car park for many workers in leamington. It is unfair 
to both those that have to pay to park locally as well as the residents such as ourselves who 
can no longer park on the street. We have also encountered abuse and violent behaviour 
from those that do use the road as it is getting harder and harder to park. It is also used by 
parking attendants working for the council, who no longer wear their uniform when collecting 
their cars. We hope that you consider the wishes of residents who have to deal with this 7 
days a week, pay council tax and already pay for permits to park in the L4 zone who are 
permanent to the street above the needs of temporary users.  
 
 Although disappointed that the whole road is not up for consultation, I do think that the 
partial permitting would be a good compromise for all those involved.  
 

6) 

 

Page 223

Page 135 of 153

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kVsOGLEgu0iYKriml7rrc1yHNUQKbPkd%2Fview%3Fusp%3Ddrivesdk&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C80a1de93abc441218fdc08d7cdb4994d%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C1%7C637204047864531934&sdata=sdwC%2BSUt6s3FfPDijtya6JQsbLlGXq0ucOJDE%2FNTg38%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kVsOGLEgu0iYKriml7rrc1yHNUQKbPkd%2Fview%3Fusp%3Ddrivesdk&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C80a1de93abc441218fdc08d7cdb4994d%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C1%7C637204047864531934&sdata=sdwC%2BSUt6s3FfPDijtya6JQsbLlGXq0ucOJDE%2FNTg38%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kVsOGLEgu0iYKriml7rrc1yHNUQKbPkd%2Fview%3Fusp%3Ddrivesdk&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C80a1de93abc441218fdc08d7cdb4994d%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C1%7C637204047864531934&sdata=sdwC%2BSUt6s3FfPDijtya6JQsbLlGXq0ucOJDE%2FNTg38%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kVsOGLEgu0iYKriml7rrc1yHNUQKbPkd%2Fview%3Fusp%3Ddrivesdk&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C80a1de93abc441218fdc08d7cdb4994d%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C1%7C637204047864531934&sdata=sdwC%2BSUt6s3FfPDijtya6JQsbLlGXq0ucOJDE%2FNTg38%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kVsOGLEgu0iYKriml7rrc1yHNUQKbPkd%2Fview%3Fusp%3Ddrivesdk&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C80a1de93abc441218fdc08d7cdb4994d%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C1%7C637204047864531934&sdata=sdwC%2BSUt6s3FfPDijtya6JQsbLlGXq0ucOJDE%2FNTg38%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kVsOGLEgu0iYKriml7rrc1yHNUQKbPkd%2Fview%3Fusp%3Ddrivesdk&data=02%7C01%7Cpmc%40warwickshire.gov.uk%7C80a1de93abc441218fdc08d7cdb4994d%7C88b0aa0659274bbba89389cc2713ac82%7C0%7C1%7C637204047864531934&sdata=sdwC%2BSUt6s3FfPDijtya6JQsbLlGXq0ucOJDE%2FNTg38%3D&reserved=0


 

Page 224

Page 136 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 1 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Rory O’Connor 
Traffic and Road Safety 
PO Box 43 Shire Hall 
Warwick 
CV32 4SX 

 18 Clinton Lane 
Kenilworth 

Warwickshire 
CV 1AT 

 
Date 11th March 2020 

 

Re: Warwick District CPE Variation 6 
 
 
Dear Mr O’Connor, 
 
Please find enclose my response to the letter received regarding the proposed changes to 
parking restrictions on Clinton Lane in Kenilworth. 
 
I object to the proposed changes, the grounds for my objection are detailed in the attached 
report. 
 
I have also provided my opinion on alternative schemes that may be more beneficial to the 
safety of this particular road. 
 
I would be happy to discuss these and any other points in person or at future public meetings, 
so please keep me personally informed as your work progresses on this project. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Colin Murray 
 
Mobile: 0779 295 3935 
Home: 01926 853 050 
E-mail: colinneilmurray@gmail.com 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 225

Page 137 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 2 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

 
 
Contents Page 

1 Background ............................................................................................................. 3 

2 Objections to the Proposed Changes ........................................................................ 3 

2.1 Summary .................................................................................................................................... 3 
2.2 Review of Historical Accident Data ............................................................................................ 4 
2.3 The Effects of Alternative Parking .............................................................................................. 6 
2.4 Increased Likelihood of Collisions .............................................................................................. 6 
2.5 Increase in Vehicle Speeds ......................................................................................................... 8 
2.6 Devaluing of Property Prices and Increased Hardship ............................................................... 9 

3 Alternative Suggestions ......................................................................................... 10 

3.1 Residents Only Parking ............................................................................................................. 10 
3.2 Weight Restrictions .................................................................................................................. 10 
3.3 Beehive Hill Junction ................................................................................................................ 10 
 

 

 

 

Appendices 

Collision Data Document – “Clinton Lane, Kenilworth. 01/01/2010 – 17/02/2020” 

 

  

Page 226

Page 138 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 3 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

1 Background 

I am the homeowner of number 18 Clinton Lane. We have a drive with suitable space for one 
vehicle, and a dropped curve. Our second vehicle is therefore parked over the front of the 
drive.  
 
My wife, Alison, and I live there with our two children, ages 8 and 11, both are pupils at Priors 
Field Primary School on Clinton Lane. Their route to School is either on foot or by bicycle along 
Clinton Lane. 
 
I work full time in Adderbury, so I travel to and from work each day by car. Alison is self 
employed and works from home for the majority of the week, but regularly travels to a 
business address in Birmingham as part of her work. This means that two cars are essential to 
our situation, with public transport unable to provide these journeys in a suitable time and at a 
suitable cost. 
 
 

2 Objections to the Proposed Changes 

2.1 Summary 

Upon review of the information published by Warwickshire County Council on the proposed 
changes I note that the statement of reason given for the proposed change is “avoiding danger 
to persons or traffic”. 
 
My objection to this proposal is that the changes would not achieve this, in fact my opinion is 
that the likelihood of dangerous incidents occurring would actually increase. 
 
Further detail is given later in this document but the summary of my points is as follows: 
 

• Accident data for the last 10 years does not show any incidents that would have been 
avoided if the proposed parking restrictions were in place. 

• By introducing the parking restrictions you will be forcing car owners to park 
elsewhere, thereby moving the perceived problem to another area, and not reducing 
the risk of future accidents. 

• There will be an increased likelihood of a collision due to residents attempting to park 
on, or drive away from driveways that do not have sufficient space for 2 vehicles but 
who attempt to park in this manner. 

• Removing parked cars with yellow lines creates more road space, which may cause 
motor vehicle speeds to increase. 

 
In addition to the safety aspect there are secondary affects that these proposals will have, 
 

• Devaluing of property prices 
• Increased hardship for residents 

 
Each of these points are addressed in turn in the following sections. 
 

Page 227

Page 139 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 4 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

 

2.2 Review of Historical Accident Data 

Warwickshire County Council have kindly provided me with 10 years work of accident data for 
Clinton Lane. I have appended that report for reference “Clinton Lane, Kenilworth 01/01/2010 
– 07/02/2020”. 
 
Based on the data supplied there were 7 accidents on Clinton Lane in that time period, and the 
majority were at the junction of Beehive Hill. None occurred on the southern portion of 
Clinton Lane. 

 
Figure 1: Accident Locations 2010 - 2020 
 
Looking at each of the reported accidents in turn my conclusion is that none of these would 
have been avoided if the planned changes had been in place. 
 
For the following I am using the reference numbers shown on the map above, and as used in 
the appended report “Clinton Lane, Kenilworth 01/01/2010 – 07/02/2020” 
 
Accident 1: 
In this accident a driver was turning left off Clinton Lane onto her driveway.  
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided this accident. 
 
  

Page 228

Page 140 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 5 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

Accident 2: 
This was a collision between a car and a cyclist at the junction of Beehive Hill. 
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided this accident. 
 
Accident 3: 
Again this occurred at the junction of Beehive Hill. A motorcyclist braked too hard and locked 
their wheels. 
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided this accident. 
 
Accident 4: 
Once again this occurred at the junction of Beehive Hill. 
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided this accident. 
 
Accident 6: 
This also occurred at Beehive Hill and was caused by the poor road surface. 
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided this accident. 
 
Accident 7: 
This occurred when a vehicle travelling north was waiting to turn onto Cobbs Road and was hit 
from the rear. 
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided this accident. 
 
Summary 
 
It is clear from 10 years’ worth of accident data that the junction of Beehive Hill and Clinton 
Lane/Birmingham Road is where the Council should concentrate their efforts if the desire is to 
avoid danger to persons or traffic.  
 
The proposed parking restrictions would not have avoided a single one of all the accidents that 
have occurred on Clinton Lane in 10 years. 
 
  

Page 229

Page 141 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 6 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

2.3 The Effects of Alternative Parking  

By introducing the proposed parking restrictions the owners of numerous vehicles would have 
to find alternative parking places. 
 
I have surveyed the road on a number of occasions and at different times of the day and 
typically we see 25 – 30 cars parked in locations that would no longer be available after the 
introduction of the new restrictions. With all of these vehicles seeking alternative parking 
locations this would result in the perceived problems simply being moved elsewhere.  
 
There is insufficient additional parking capacity close by the affected properties on Clinton 
Lane to cope with that quantity of vehicles, and the proposed plans make no mention of 
alternative parking spaces being provided,  so this would result in an increase of poor parking 
practices, and most likely increasing the chances of danger to persons or traffic, which is the 
very reason given as the aim for these changes. 
 

2.4 Increased Likelihood of Collisions 

There are a number of properties on Clinton Lane where front gardens have been paved over 
to provide a driveway. The section for Clinton Lane where I live is mostly terrace houses, which 
naturally restricts the width of these driveways. 
 
For some of these driveways it may be physically possible to park two cars side by side, 
however this would restrict access to the property as the cars would be so close together, but  
following the introduction of the proposed parking restrictions the likelihood of residents 
resorting to parking like this will no doubt increase. 
 
The effect of this would be to increase the likelihood of a collision between cars travelling 
along Clinton Lane and cars attempt to park on, or leave these driveways. 
 
The reasons for this are that to first park in a tight spot like this the driver will need to position 
the car perpendicular to the centre line of the road to allow them to reverse onto their drive. 
This increases the time that the car attempting to park is in a vulnerable position on the 
carriageway. 
 
Similarly when leaving the driveway if residents have closely parked two cars together on a 
driveway, where there barely enough space, they will have to drive further into the path of 
oncoming cars before being able to turn onto the carriageway. 
 
From my own experience of witnessing residents parking practices on Clinton Lane a number 
drive straight onto their driveways, rather than reversing on. If these drivers continue this 
practice in the new scenario then they will be revising out of their space and far across the 
carriageway before having sufficient space to turn. With restricted visibility due to being 
parked closely to adjacent cars the poor, but common, practice of reversing out of spaces also 
increases the likelihood of an accident. 
 
  

Page 230

Page 142 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 7 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

These points are illustrated in the diagrams below, with “before” and “after” scenarios shown. 
 
 
           Current Vehicle         Future Vehicle 

 Path                              Path 

 
Figure 2: Driveway Parking Scenarios 
 
Using a standard risk calculation where risk = severity x likelihood the severity of the accident 
remains unchanged, but the likelihood increases, and hence the risk score. 
 
Particularly on weekday mornings and evenings when the volume of traffic on the road is high, 
and when there is also a high proportion of residents heading to or from work this would 
massively increase the chances of danger to persons or traffic.  
 
Considering that the statement of reasons for the proposed changes is to reduce the chances 
of danger then my conclusion is that the effect of the parking restrictions would be 
counterproductive. 
 
 
  

Page 231

Page 143 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 8 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

2.5 Increase in Vehicle Speeds 

Clearing parked vehicles from roads by means of double yellow lines tends to lead to 
an increase in vehicle speeds and thus an increase in the likelihood of serious injury if collisions 
occur. 
 
Implementation of the proposed restrictions could therefore increase the risk of accidents 
occurring anywhere along Clinton Lane, but as proven by the councils own published figures 
the junction with Beehive Hill already sees the majority of incidents, which would have an 
increased severity with comparative higher vehicle speeds. 
 
At the southern end of Clinton Lane there is a near 90 degree bend with Castle Road, and an 
increase in vehicle speed approaching this bend in a southerly direction would increase both 
the likelihood and severity of incidents.  
 
 
 
 

Figure 3: The bend at the southern end of Clinton Lane 
 
  

Page 232

Page 144 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 9 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

2.6 Devaluing of Property Prices and Increased Hardship 

As shown in the previous sections I see no safety benefit in the introduction of these changes, 
but the introduction of these changes will certainly have a negative impact on the 
homeowners affected.  
 
I appreciate that the council does not have any responsibility to provide parking on the public 
highway, but as parking is currently provided the removal of such can only be seen as a 
negative change by those personally affected. 
 
A property with no on street parking will command a lower purchase price, and be less 
desirable to potential buyers.  
 
The proposals also increase the hardship for residents. There are elderly residents on Clinton 
Lane who rely on external care service providers visiting them during the day, who will be 
unable to park in close proximity to the property.  
 

Page 233

Page 145 of 153



Objections to Warwick District CPE Variation 6  Page 10 of 10 
By Colin Murray, 18 Clinton Lane.  

3 Alternative Suggestions 

Hopefully it is clear from the previous sections that I see no benefit in the proposed parking 
restrictions. As an alternative I can suggest the following, which would go some way towards 
fulfilling the desire of avoiding danger to persons or traffic on Clinton Lane. 

3.1 Residents Only Parking 

With a nearby high profile tourist attraction (Kenilworth Castle) and other areas for leisure 
activities in the local area it is not uncommon for non-residents to park in the limited valid 
spaces available on Clinton Lane. I would not object to a residents only parking scheme being 
considered. 

3.2 Weight Restrictions  

Clinton Lane is a B road but regularly carries heavy goods vehicles. To reduce the risk of 
potential accidents I suggest the council investigate weight restrictions and alternative routes 
for those types of vehicles.  

3.3 Beehive Hill Junction 

If Warwickshire County Council are serious about avoiding danger to persons or traffic on 
Clinton Lane then the focus must be on the junction of Beehive Hill and Clinton 
Lane/Birmingham Road.  
 
From the accident figures provided by the Council it is clear that this is the area where the risk 
of incidents is highest, and not the stretch of Clinton Lane running south from this junction 
towards Castle Green. 

 
Figure 4: The Beehive Hill Junction 

Page 234

Page 146 of 153



Clinton Lane, Kenilworth. 01/01/2010 - 

17/02/2020

14 Sep 2011 to 25 Jan 2020

Report produced: 06/03/2020

Road Safety Intelligence Team

Tel: 01926 412740

Email: rsinfo@warwickshire.gov.uk

Page 235

Page 147 of 153



1

15S01065315

22-06-15

2

923465

25-01-20

3

S01048812

18-05-12
4

S01056613

11-06-13

5

S0107741414

13-07-14

6

S01093812

07-09-12

7

S01095111

14-09-11

Page 236

Page 148 of 153

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sl

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Sl

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Sl

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Sl

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Sl



ALL ROAD USERS - ACCIDENTS

TotalSlightSeriousFatalYear

2011  0  0  1  1

2012  0  2  0  2

2013  0  0  1  1

2014  0  0  1  1

2015  0  0  1  1

2020  0  0  1  1

TotalSlightSeriousFatalMonth

January  0  0  1  1

February  0  0  0  0

March  0  0  0  0

April  0  0  0  0

May  0  1  0  1

June  0  0  2  2

July  0  0  1  1

August  0  0  0  0

September  0  1  1  2

October  0  0  0  0

November  0  0  0  0

December  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalDay

Sunday  0  0  1  1

Monday  0  0  1  1

Tuesday  0  0  1  1

Wednesday  0  0  1  1

Thursday  0  0  0  0

Friday  0  2  0  2

Saturday  0  0  1  1

TotalSlightSeriousFatalPed Crossing

Not at crossing  0  2  5  7

Zebra  0  0  0  0

Pelican  0  0  0  0

Ped Phase  0  0  0  0

Footbridge  0  0  0  0

Refuge  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalBends (Veh Totals)

Left Hand Bend  0  0  0  0

Right Hand Bend  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalTime

0000-0059  0  0  0  0

0100-0159  0  0  0  0

0200-0259  0  0  0  0

0300-0359  0  0  0  0

0400-0459  0  0  0  0

0500-0559  0  0  0  0

0600-0659  0  0  0  0

0700-0759  0  0  0  0

0800-0859  0  0  0  0

0900-0959  0  1  0  1

1000-1059  0  0  1  1

1100-1159  0  0  0  0

1200-1259  0  0  0  0

1300-1359  0  0  0  0

1400-1459  0  0  0  0

1500-1559  0  0  2  2

1600-1659  0  0  1  1

1700-1759  0  0  1  1

1800-1859  0  0  0  0

1900-1959  0  0  0  0

2000-2059  0  0  0  0

2100-2159  0  1  0  1

2200-2259  0  0  0  0

2300-2359  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalLighting

Daylight  0  1  5  6

Darkness  0  1  0  1

TotalSlightSeriousFatalWeather

Fine without high winds  0  2  5  7

Raining without high winds  0  0  0  0

Snowing without high winds  0  0  0  0

Fine with high winds  0  0  0  0

Raining with high winds  0  0  0  0

Snowing with high winds  0  0  0  0

Fog or mist - if hazard  0  0  0  0

Other  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalRoad Surface

Dry  0  2  5  7

Wet/Damp  0  0  0  0

Snow  0  0  0  0

Frost/Ice  0  0  0  0

Flood  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalDistrict

Warwick  0  2  5  7

TotalSlightSeriousFatalRoad Class

M  0  0  0  0

A(M)  0  0  0  0

A  0  1  3  4

B  0  1  2  3

Other  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalSpeed Limit

20  0  0  0  0

30  0  0  4  4

40  0  2  1  3

50  0  0  0  0

60  0  0  0  0

70  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalObstruction (Veh Totals)

Sign/Signal  0  0  0  0

Lamp Post  0  0  0  0

Pole  0  0  0  0

Tree  0  0  0  0

Bus Stop  0  0  0  0

Barrier  0  0  0  0

Other  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalJunction Type

Not at Junction  0  0  0  0

Roundabout  0  0  0  0

Mini R'about  0  0  0  0

T or Staggered  0  0  1  1

Slip Road  0  0  0  0

Crossroads  0  2  3  5

Multiple Junct  0  0  0  0

Private Drive  0  0  1  1

Other Junction  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

P
age 237

P
age 149 of 153



ALL ROAD USERS - CASUALTIES

TotalSlightSeriousFatalYear

2011  0  0  2  2

2012  0  2  0  2

2013  0  0  1  1

2014  0  0  2  2

2015  0  0  1  1

2020  0  0  1  1

TotalSlightSeriousFatalMonth

January  0  0  1  1

February  0  0  0  0

March  0  0  0  0

April  0  0  0  0

May  0  1  0  1

June  0  0  2  2

July  0  0  2  2

August  0  0  0  0

September  0  1  2  3

October  0  0  0  0

November  0  0  0  0

December  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalDay

Sunday  0  0  2  2

Monday  0  0  1  1

Tuesday  0  0  1  1

Wednesday  0  0  2  2

Thursday  0  0  0  0

Friday  0  2  0  2

Saturday  0  0  1  1

TotalSlightSeriousFatalPed Crossing

Not at crossing  0  2  7  9

Zebra  0  0  0  0

Pelican  0  0  0  0

Ped Phase  0  0  0  0

Footbridge  0  0  0  0

Refuge  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalBends

Left Hand Bend  0  0  0  0

Right Hand Bend  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalCasualty Age

0 - 5  0  0  0  0

6 - 10  0  0  1  1

11 - 16  0  0  0  0

17 - 25  0  0  1  1

26 - 35  0  1  3  4

36 - 45  0  1  0  1

46 - 55  0  0  2  2

56 - 64  0  0  0  0

65+  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalTime

0000-0059  0  0  0  0

0100-0159  0  0  0  0

0200-0259  0  0  0  0

0300-0359  0  0  0  0

0400-0459  0  0  0  0

0500-0559  0  0  0  0

0600-0659  0  0  0  0

0700-0759  0  0  0  0

0800-0859  0  0  0  0

0900-0959  0  1  0  1

1000-1059  0  0  1  1

1100-1159  0  0  0  0

1200-1259  0  0  0  0

1300-1359  0  0  0  0

1400-1459  0  0  0  0

1500-1559  0  0  2  2

1600-1659  0  0  2  2

1700-1759  0  0  2  2

1800-1859  0  0  0  0

1900-1959  0  0  0  0

2000-2059  0  0  0  0

2100-2159  0  1  0  1

2200-2259  0  0  0  0

2300-2359  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalLighting

Daylight  0  1  7  8

Darkness  0  1  0  1

TotalSlightSeriousFatalWeather

Fine without high winds  0  2  7  9

Raining without high winds  0  0  0  0

Snowing without high winds  0  0  0  0

Fine with high winds  0  0  0  0

Raining with high winds  0  0  0  0

Snowing with high winds  0  0  0  0

Fog or mist - if hazard  0  0  0  0

Other  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalRoad Surface

Dry  0  2  7  9

Wet/Damp  0  0  0  0

Snow  0  0  0  0

Frost/Ice  0  0  0  0

Flood  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalDistrict

Warwick  0  2  7  9

TotalSlightSeriousFatalRoad Class

M  0  0  0  0

A(M)  0  0  0  0

A  0  1  4  5

B  0  1  3  4

Other  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalSpeed Limit

20  0  0  0  0

30  0  0  5  5

40  0  2  2  4

50  0  0  0  0

60  0  0  0  0

70  0  0  0  0

TotalSlightSeriousFatalObstruction

Sign/Signal  0  0  0  0

Lamp Post  0  0  0  0

Pole  0  0  0  0

Tree  0  0  0  0

Bus Stop  0  0  0  0

Barrier  0  0  0  0

Other  0  0  0  0

P
age 238

P
age 150 of 153



ALL ROAD USERS - CASUALTIES

TotalSlightSeriousFatalJunction Type

Not at Junction  0  0  0  0

Roundabout  0  0  0  0

Mini R'about  0  0  0  0

T or Staggered  0  0  2  2

Slip Road  0  0  0  0

Crossroads  0  2  4  6

Multiple Junct  0  0  0  0

Private Drive  0  0  1  1

Other Junction  0  0  0  0

Unknown  0  0  0  0

P
age 239

P
age 151 of 153



D-PRINT CRASH REPORT 6-Mar-2020

09:13:27

TimeNo Location Date Street

Lighting

Road Surface Weather Pedestrian 

Direction

Factors InvolvedDaySeverity

Road No B4103 

Section SLIGHT

22/06/2015 15:33 LGrid

Ref

427844E

272853N

Dry Fine 21

P/C

B4103 CLINTON LANE J/W DRIVE WAY TO NO. 129 KENILWORTH Warwick

Vehicles 2
Casualties 1DR/V1 TURNS LEFT OFF MAIN RD  INTO HER DRIVEWAY FAILING TO 

SEE ONCOMING 7 YR OLD CYCLIST CYCLING ON PAVEMENT 

RESULTING IN SLT COLL

Veh1, car, S -> W

Veh2, pedal cycle, N -> S

Road No A452 

Section SLIGHT

25/01/2020 10:09 LGrid

Ref

427787E

273251N

Dry Fine 72

R.TURN P/C

BEEHIVE HILL (A452)  AT JUNCTION WITH CLINTON LANE (B4103) Warwick

Vehicles 2
Casualties 1DRIVER OF VEH01 HAS APPROACHED JUNCTION OF BEEHIVE HILL 

AND BIRMINGHAM ROAD AND HAS FAILED TO LOOK CORRECTLY 

BEFORE COMMITTING ONTO THE BIRMINGHAM ROAD AND COLLIDING 

WITH CYCLIST ALREADY TRAVELLING ON BIRMINGHAM ROAD

Veh1, car, SE -> N

Veh2, pedal cycle, N -> S

Road No B4103 

Section SERIOUS

18/05/2012 09:30 LGrid

Ref

427786E

273233N

Dry Fine 6 S.VEH3 M/C

B4103 Clinton Lane, at its Junction with A452 Beehive Lane, Kenilworth Warwick

Vehicles 1
Casualties 1V1 tvl N on Clinton LAne rider applied brake and the wheels have locked the 

bike skidded and the rider fell off

Veh1, m/cycle > 500cc, S -> N

Road No A452 

Section SLIGHT

11/06/2013 15:11 LGrid

Ref

427786E

273256N

Dry Fine 34 M/C

A452 Birmingham Rd, at its Junction with B4103 Clinton Lane , Kenilworth Warwick

Vehicles 2
Casualties 1V1 trav east, failed to give way at x rds and collided withy V2 trav north on 

main rd

Veh1, car, W -> E

Veh2, m/cycle 50 - 125cc, S -> N

Involved

PED Pedestrian

HGV Heavy Goods Vehicle

GV Goods Vehicle

M/C Motor Cycle

P/C Pedal Cycle

PSV Bus/Coach

Street Lighting

L Daylight

STL Street Lights

USL Street LIghts Unlit

NSL No Street Lights

STU Street Lights Unknown

FACTORS

+VE Positive Breath Test

R.TURN Right Turn Manoeuvre

O/TAKE Overtaking Manoeuvre

S.VEH Single Vehicle

Special Conditions

ATS OUT Traffic Lights Not Working

ATS DEF Traffic Lights Defective

SIGNS Road Signs Defective or Obscurred

RD WRKS Road Works

Surface Road Surface Defective

Key

Page 1

P
age 240

P
age 152 of 153



D-PRINT CRASH REPORT 6-Mar-2020

09:13:27

TimeNo Location Date Street

Lighting

Road Surface Weather Pedestrian 

Direction

Factors InvolvedDaySeverity

Road No A452 

Section SLIGHT

13/07/2014 17:36 LGrid

Ref

427799E

273250N

Dry Fine 1 S.VEH5 M/C

A452 BEEHIVE HILL J/W B4103 CLINTON LANE KENILWORTH Warwick

Vehicles 1
Casualties 2V1 MCYCLE TURNING LEFT AT JCT TRAVS OVER POOR RD SURFACE 

RESULTING IN RIDER BRAKING HARD, LOOSING CONTROL OF BIKE 

WITH HIM AND PILLION PASSENGER FALLING OFF

Veh1, m/cycle > 500cc, N -> SE

Road No A452 

Section SERIOUS

07/09/2012 21:05 DRK STLGrid

Ref

427785E

273255N

Dry Fine 66

R.TURN

M/C

A452 Birmingham Road, at its Junction with A452 Beehive Hill, Kenilworth Warwick

Vehicles 2
Casualties 1V1 turning R from Beehive Hill onto A452, V1 starts turn and collides with V2 

(mbike) tvl S on A452

Veh1, car, E -> N

Veh2, m/cycle > 500cc, N -> S

Road No B4103 

Section SLIGHT

14/09/2011 16:00 LGrid

Ref

427833E

272994N

Dry Fine 47

R.TURN

Clinton Lane J/W Cobbs Rd Kenilworth Warwick

Vehicles 3
Casualties 2All Vehs Trav N. V3 Stationary in Crown of Rd Waiting to Turn Rt. V2 

Stationary Behind. V1 Ran into Rear of V2 Pushing it into Rear of V3

Veh1, car, S -> N

Veh2, car, S -> N

Veh3, car, S -> E

Involved

PED Pedestrian

HGV Heavy Goods Vehicle

GV Goods Vehicle

M/C Motor Cycle

P/C Pedal Cycle

PSV Bus/Coach

Street Lighting

L Daylight

STL Street Lights

USL Street LIghts Unlit

NSL No Street Lights

STU Street Lights Unknown

FACTORS

+VE Positive Breath Test

R.TURN Right Turn Manoeuvre

O/TAKE Overtaking Manoeuvre

S.VEH Single Vehicle

Special Conditions

ATS OUT Traffic Lights Not Working

ATS DEF Traffic Lights Defective

SIGNS Road Signs Defective or Obscurred

RD WRKS Road Works

Surface Road Surface Defective

Key

Page 2

P
age 241

P
age 153 of 153



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Warwickshire County Council 
 

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 

 

The Warwickshire County Council (District of Warwick) (Permitted Parking Area and 

Special Parking Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places and Residents’ 

Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation No. 6) Order 2020 

 

1. Background 

 

Requests for parking restrictions in various locations in Warwick District have been 

considered and these have resulted in the proposals below. 

 

 

Consultation 
Drawing 

Street Town 
ParkMap 

Tile 
Revision 

No. 

TR\11124 - 01 Binswood Avenue Leamington Spa 
FU59 2 

FU60 1 

TR\11124 - 02 Binswood Street Leamington Spa 
FU59 2 

FV59 1 

TR\11124 - 03 Birmingham Road Warwick   

TR\11124 - 04 Broxell Close Warwick FW51 1 

TR\11124 - 05 Castle Close Warwick 

GC52 2 

GC53 1 

GD52 2 

TR\11124 - 06 Chapel Street Leamington Spa FZ61 2 

TR\11124 - 07 Charter Approach Warwick GD52 2 

TR\11124 - 08 Clinton Lane Kenilworth 

EU52 0 

EV52 1 

EX52 1 

TR\11124 - 09 Cross Road Leamington Spa 
FW58 1 

FX58 1 

TR\11124 - 10 Culworth Close Leamington Spa GE60 2 

TR\11124 - 11 Emscote Road Warwick FZ55 1 

TR\11124 - 12 Fernhill Drive Leamington Spa 
FW62 1 

FX62 1 

TR\11124 - 13 
Gas Street/ Priory 
Street 

Leamington Spa 
GA60 1 

GB60 1 

TR\11124 - 14 Greville Road Warwick FW56 1 

TR\11124 - 15 Heathcote Road Leamington Spa 
GH61 1 

GH62 1 

TR\11124 - 16 Monarch Gardens Leamington Spa GC59 1 

TR\11124 - 17 Montgomery Road Leamington Spa GG60 2 

TR\11124 - 18 Myton Gardens Warwick GC55 1 

TR\11124 - 19 New Brook Street Leamington Spa FX59 2 

Page 243

Page 1 of 7Page 1 of 7



FX59 2 

TR\11124 - 20 Newbold Terrace Leamington Spa 
FX61 3 

FY61 2 

TR\11124 - 21 
Newbold Terrace 
East 

Leamington Spa 
FX61 3 

FX62 1 

TR\11124 - 22 
Old Milverton 
Road 

Leamington Spa 
FW57 1 

FX57 1 

TR\11124 - 23 

Othello Avenue Warwick 

GH60 

GI60 

GJ60 

1 

0 

1 

TR\11124 - 24 

TR\11124 - 25 

TR\11124 - 26 

TR\11124 - 27 Percy Terrace Leamington Spa FW58 1 

TR\11124 - 28 Plymouth Place Leamington Spa FZ62 1 

TR\11124 - 29 Reeve Drive Kenilworth 
EY55 1 

EZ55 1 

TR\11124 - 30 Rugby Road Leamington Spa FW58 1 

TR\11124 - 31 Southam Road Radford Semele 

GC65 0 

GC66 0 

GD65 0 

GD66 0 

TR\11124 - 32 Spring Pool Warwick FZ53 1 

TR\11124 - 33 St Michael’s Road Warwick FY52 1 

TR\11124 - 34 Stratford Road Warwick 
GF52 0 

GG52 0 

TR\11124 - 35 Tower Street Leamington Spa GA61 2 

TR\11124 - 36 Trinity Street Leamington Spa FV60 2 

TR\11124 - 37 
Upper Grove 
Street 

Leamington Spa FW59 1 

TR\11124 - 38 Wedgnock Green Warwick 

FX52 1 

FX53 1 

FY52 1 

FY53 2 

TR\11124 - 39 Wharf Street Warwick FZ55 1 

TR\11124 - 40 William Street Leamington Spa FX61 3 

TR\11124 - 41 Wise Street Leamington Spa GH60 1 

Page 244

Page 2 of 7



 
2. Statement of Reasons 

 

Binswood Avenue – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 
It is proposed to extend the existing limited waiting bays with L1 exemption on the south side of Binswood 

Avenue on to the north side. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which 

the road runs. 

Binswood Street – Disabled Bay Removal 

We have been notified that this disabled bay is no longer required. Whilst it is acknowledged that the bay 

can be used by other blue badge holders, conversion to a standard limited waiting bay with L1 exemption 

will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

Birmingham Road – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions onto the laybys of Birmingham Road, thereby 

avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Birmingham Road Service Road – No Waiting at Anytime 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at anytime restrictions on the north, west, and south sides of the 

Birmingham Road Service Road, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Birmingham Road Service Road – No Waiting Monday – Friday, 11am-2pm 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting restrictions on the north, west, and south sides of the Birmingham 

Road Service Road, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Broxell Close, Wedgnock Lane – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the north and south sides of Broxell 

Close, continuing onto Wedgnock Lane, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Castle Close – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the south and west sides of Castle Close 

Road, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Chapel Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 
It is proposed to extend the section of limited waiting bays with L6 exemption on the north side of Chapel 

Street. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

Charter Approach – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend existing no waiting at any time restrictions on Charter Approach for the length of 

the bollards, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic.  

Clinton Lane – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce new, and to extend existing, no waiting at any time restrictions on the east and 

west sides of Clinton Lane, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Cross Road – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the junctions along the length of Cross 

Road acting as junction protection, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

 

 

Page 245

Page 3 of 7



Culworth Close – Removal of Limited Waiting Restriction 
It is proposed to remove the limited waiting restriction on Culworth Close. This will in turn preserve or 

improve the amenities of the area through which the road runs. 

Emscote Road – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 
It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with W3 permit exemptions on the north side Emscote 

Road, between Ilex Court and Broad Street, this will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area 

through which the road runs. 

Fernhill Drive – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce new, and to extend existing, no waiting at any time restrictions on the north 

east, south east, and south west sides of Fernhill Drive, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Gas Street, Priory Street – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce a residents parking schemes on Gas Street and Priory Street. Sections of no 

waiting at any time restrictions along the length of Gas Street and Priory Street will thereby avoid danger 

to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Gas Street, Priory Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 
It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with L7 permit exemptions along sections of Gas Street 

and Priory Street, this will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road 

runs. 

Greville Road – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend the no waiting at any time restrictions on the east and west sides of Greville 

Road, north of its junction with Dickins Road, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

 

Heathcote Road and Avon Street – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend existing no waiting at any time restrictions on Heathcote Road connecting 

restrictions on the north side, and extending south side restrictions up to and a short distance into Avon 

Street, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring the free flow of traffic. 

Monarch Gardens and Kingsway – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the east and west sides of monarch 

gardens extending into Kingsway, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Montgomery Road and Tachbrook Road – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the on the north and south sides on the 

junction of Montgomery Road extending into Tachbrook Road, avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

Myton Gardens – No Waiting Monday – Friday, 9am-5pm 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting restrictions on sections of Myton Gardens, thereby avoiding danger 

to persons or traffic. 

New Brook Street – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the remaining junction on New Brook 

Street providing junction protection. This is in order to avoid danger to persons or traffic. 

New Brook Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 
It is proposed to extend the existing limited waiting bays with L3 exemption on the east side of New Brook 

Street on to the west side. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the 

road runs. 

 

 

Page 246

Page 4 of 7



Newbold Terrace – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction along the east side Newbold Terrace 

through the length on the coaches only bay opposite Newbold Street. This will preserve or improve the 

amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

Newbold Terrace East – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce sections of no waiting at any time restrictions on the south side of Newbold 

Terrace East in order to create passing points for traffic, thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic. 

 

Old Milverton Road – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions along the east side of Old Milverton Road 

outside of Drive Vauxhall, replacing the existing restrictions, thereby avoiding danger to persons and 

traffic. 

Othello Avenue – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce sections of no waiting at any time restrictions for junctions and central island 

features for the length of Othello Avenue. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free 

flow of traffic. 

Percy Terrace – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to remove approximately ten metres of the no waiting at any time restriction on Percy 

Terrace. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

Reeve Drive – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction on the south side of Reeve Drive 

and introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the northern side, in a southwards direction. Thereby 

avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Plymouth Place and Farley Street – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the north and south sides of the junction 

of Plymouth Place and Farley Street. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow 

of traffic. 

Rugby Road – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction along the south side of Rugby Road 

in a westward direction. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Southam Road, Church Lane, School Lane – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the north and south sides of the Southam 

Road junctions with Church Lane and School Lane. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and 

ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Spring Pool – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce a residents parking scheme on Spring Pool. Sections of no waiting at any time 

restrictions along the length of Spring Pool will thereby avoid danger to persons or traffic and ensuring 

free flow of traffic. 

Spring Pool – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 

It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with W2 permit exemptions along sections of Spring Pool, 

this will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

 

 

 

Page 247

Page 5 of 7



St Michael’s Road – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction on St Michael’s Road in a westward 

direction up to the disabled bays. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of 

traffic. 

Stratford Road, Stratford Road Service Road, Shakespeare Avenue, Alders Grove, 

Foxes Way, Fisher’s Court – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce double yellow lines on the junctions of Stratford Road, Stratford Road Service 

Road, Shakespeare Avenue, Alders Grove, Foxes Way, and Fisher’s Court. Thereby avoiding danger to 

persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Tower Street, Court Street – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions for the extents of tower street, and the 

southern junction of Court Street. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of 

traffic. 

Trinity Street – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction on the south side, thereby avoiding 

danger to persons or traffic, and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Upper Grove Street – No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to extend the existing no waiting at any time restriction on the east side of Upper Grove 

Street for its entire length. This is in order to avoid danger to persons or traffic. 

 

Upper Grove Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 

It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with L3 exemption on the west side of Upper Grove Street. 

This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

Wedgnock Green – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 

It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with W7 exemption for sections of Wedgnock Green. This 

will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs. 

 

Wedgnock Green, Oken Road, Cape Road, Deerpark Drive, Newburgh Crescent – 

No Waiting at any Time 

It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions for the extents of the junction of Wedgnock 

Green. Thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

Wharf Street – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time restriction on the east and west sides of Wharf Street, 

thereby avoiding danger to persons or traffic, and ensuring free flow of traffic. 

William Street – Limited Waiting with Resident Permit Exemption 
It is proposed to introduce limited waiting bays with L4 exemption on the unrestricted sections of William 

Street. This will preserve or improve the amenities of the local area through which the road runs.  

 

Wise Street and Wise Terrace – No Waiting at Anytime and No Waiting Monday – 

Saturday 8am-6pm 
It is proposed to introduce no waiting at any time, and no waiting restrictions and prohibition of waiting 

restrictions along the west side of Wise Street, and for the length of Wise Terrace. This is in order to avoid 

danger to persons or traffic, and for facilitating the passage on the road or any other road of any class of 

traffic (including pedestrians). 

 

Page 248

Page 6 of 7



 

Administrative Changes 
 

Bedford Street (odd numbers inclusive 79-81) - Permit Eligibility for Residents' 
Parking Zone L0 

Following conversion from commercial to residential properties, it is proposed to remove the 
above properties from the L0 Residents' Parking Zone permit eligibility. 
 
Binswood Street (even numbers inclusive 2-62) - Permit Eligibility for Residents' 
Parking Zone L1 

To correct an administrative error, it is proposed to include the above properties within the L1 
Residents' Parking Zone for the purposes of permit eligibility. 
 
Trinity Street (1-9 inclusive), Arlington Avenue (even numbers 4-8 inclusive) - 
Permit Eligibility for Residents' Parking Zone L2 

To correct an administrative error, it is proposed to include the above properties within the L2 
Residents' Parking Zone for the purposes of permit eligibility. 
 
Dale Street (odd numbers1-27 inclusive, even numbers 4-22 inclusive), Regent 
Street (5a only) - Permit Eligibility for Residents' Parking Zone L3 

To correct an administrative error, it is proposed to include the above properties within the L3 
Residents' Parking Zone for the purposes of permit eligibility. 
 
Warwick Road (89-97a inclusive) – Permit Eligibility for Residents’ Parking Zone 
K2 

To correct an administrative error, it is proposed to include the above properties within the K2 
Residents' Parking Zone for the purposes of permit eligibility. 
 

3. Existing orders to be varied 

The Warwickshire County Council (District of Warwick) (Permitted Parking Area and Special Parking 

Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) Order 

2017 

4. Priority 
High 

Page 249

Page 7 of 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Warwickshire cycling links: A package of infrastructure improvements
	2 Residential Rehabilitation and Inpatient Detoxification Commissioning
	3 Warwick Variation 6 TRO
	Appendix A for Warwick Variation 6 TRO
	Appendix B for Warwick Variation 6 TRO
	Appendix D for Warwick Variation 6 TRO
	Appendix D
	Binswood Avenue
	Castle Close
	Chapel Street
	Charter Approach
	Cross Road
	Emscote Road Correspondence-Redacted
	Fernhill Drive Correspondence-Redacted
	Gas St.-Priory St. Correspondence-Redacted 
	Greville Road Correspondence-Redacted
	Heathcote Road Correspondence-Redacted
	Monarch Gardens & Kingsway Correspondence- Redacted
	Montgomery Road Correspondence-Redacted
	Myton Gardens
	Newbold Terrace East
	Old Milverton Road
	Othello Avenue
	Plymouth Place-Farley Street Correspondence-Redacted
	Reeve Drive
	Rugby Road
	Southam Road
	Spring Pool.Correspondence.Redacted
	St Micheals.Correspondence.Redacted
	Stratford Road.Correspondence.Redacted
	Trinity Street.Correspondence..Redacted
	Wedgeknock Green.Corespondence.Redacted
	Wedgenock Green files
	Wedgnock Green 1
	Wedgnock Green 2
	Wedggnock Green 3
	Wedgnock Green 4
	Wedgnock Green 5
	Wedgnock Green 6
	Wedgnockgreen 7
	Wedgnockgreen 8

	Wharf Street.Corespondence.Redacted
	William Street.Corespondence.Redacted

	Response Letter C Murray 18 Clinton Lane 11032020
	Response Letter C Murray 18 Clinton Lane - Warwick District CPE Variation 6
	1 Background
	2 Objections to the Proposed Changes
	2.1 Summary
	2.2 Review of Historical Accident Data
	2.3 The Effects of Alternative Parking
	2.4 Increased Likelihood of Collisions
	2.5 Increase in Vehicle Speeds
	2.6 Devaluing of Property Prices and Increased Hardship

	3 Alternative Suggestions
	3.1 Residents Only Parking
	3.2 Weight Restrictions
	3.3 Beehive Hill Junction


	Collision Data - Clinton Lane Kenilworth


	Appendix C for Warwick Variation 6 TRO


